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(Source: Tudum, A Netflix official site) 

Part of the Global Top 10 Non-English Shows in 58 countries. The first 

India series to trend in 58 countries. 
. (Source: Tudum, A Netflix official site) 

Part of the Global Top 10 for 4 consecutive weeks and 
was #1in 8 countries. 

(Source: Tudum, A Netflix official site) 
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Dear Shareholders, 

This has not been an easy year. On January 8, we lost our Founder Chairman, Pritish Nandy. I lost my husband, my 

children their father. 

Pritish Nandy was many things to many people. Poet, writer, journalist, legendary editor, founder of Pritish Nandy 
Communications, Member of Parliament from the Rajya Sabha, Padma Shri awardee, animal warrior, recipient of the 

international Genesis Humanitarian Award but most of all mentor, luminary, friend, family. Pritish Nandy’s legacy 

originates with him and today runs strong with the team that he hand-picked, coached and worked shoulder-to-shoulder 

with, readying them for this day, to succeed him. A team that has today, despite the setback of losing their Chairman, 

produced, delivered and successfully released 2 original shows: The Royals on Netflix that released on May 9, and has 

already become the only Indian show to have found its spot on Netflix’s Top 100 Most Watched Shows Worldwide, 

trending in 58 countries on release, on the Netflix Top 10 Global Shows for 4 consecutive weeks and Netflix Top 10 

Indian shows for 11 consecutive weeks and Ziddi Girls on Amazon Prime Video that released on February 28 stealing 

hearts and winning rave reviews. They have also just wrapped the filming of the fourth season of our international Emmy 

nominated original series Four More Shots Please! and as you read this, are readying it for an end of the year release. 
Our Founder Chairman would be proud, I know I am, and I know you must be too. 

“Your Company continues to be in strong hands. The coming days will display that plenty, the coming years will celebrate 

it robustly. As you are aware, the Promoter Group has acquired 4.87% of the Companys shares during March 2025, thus 

increasing our holding to 59.72%. 

2025 has not been an easy year, but it is the year we will all remember forever. For our most aching blow and some of 

our biggest Indian and global accomplishments. Your Company remains unwaveringly committed to the task we set 

ourselves almost 32 years ago. To emerge as a world class creative team, storytellers to the world. 

1 would like to thank our shareholders, business associates, bankers, talent and technicians, as well as Team PNC. 
Their dedication and your unwavering faith in the future of your Company will propel PNC ahead. 

Rina Pritish Nandy 

Founder Director 

August 25, 2025
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
PRITISH NANDY COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED
THE 32ND ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2025

To
The Members
Pritish Nandy Communications Limited

Your Directors present the 32nd Annual Report on the business and operations of the Company together with the audited financial accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2025.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Total income for this year was ` 3,424.99 lakh as compared to ` 5,835.50 lakh for the previous year. The Company incurred a loss of ` 97.14 lakh after tax as compared to a profit of ` 218.68 lakh after tax in the preceding year.  

	 In ` lakh

Particulars Standalone

Year ended March 31, 2025 Year ended March 31, 2024

Income from operations 3,358.42 5,771.93

Other income 66.57 63.57

Total income 3,424.99 5,835.50

Total expenditure 3,562.99 5,628.64

Profit/ (loss) before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax (138.00) 206.86

Current tax 0.00 0.00

Profit/ (loss) after current tax (138.00) 206.86

Deferred tax (40.86) (11.82)

Profit/ (loss) after tax (97.14) 218.68

Dividend (%) 0 0

Transfer to reserves 0 0

Balance in statement of profit and loss (933.96) (835.98)

Paid up capital 1,446.70 1,446.70

Earnings per share (`) (0.67) 1.51

Book value per share (`) 51.52 52.20

PRESENT ECONOMIC SITUATION AND PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY

The year under review has seen intense activity for your Company in various stages of production and release across 3 original shows with the industry’s top 2 streaming platforms, Netflix and Amazon Prime Video. This was 
a first for us, but displayed abundantly to us, what we are capable of and set benchmarks for the future.

First up, the Company’s newest Amazon original series, Ziddi Girls, premiered on February 27, 2025, to much critical acclaim and audience fanfare and is currently in contention across award platforms and festivals for the 
diversity and originality of its content.

Season 1 of the Company’s first Netflix original series, The Royals, premiered on May 9, 2025 globally, and trended across 58 countries while holding onto its position in the top 10 shows of Netflix internationally for 4 weeks, 
a first for any Indian original till date. Netflix has since, additionally announced the second season of The Royals which is currently in developmental writing. Production of season 2 of The Royals is likely to commence during 
the current financial year.

During the year, the Company also commenced the principal photography of Season 4 of the Company’s very popular and international Emmy nominated series, Four More Shots Please!, for Amazon Prime Video and the 
show is expected to release in the current financial year.

During the year under review, the Company’s total income reached ` 3,424.99 lakh with a net loss after tax of ` 97.14 lakh. The Company continued to review advances for content as in the past and the Company has written 
off net amount of ` 42.73 lakh incurred in developing content that is no longer viable to take up in the future.

As per the FICCI EY Report 2025, The Indian M&E sector continued to grow in 2024,  at 3.3%. During 2024, the M&E sector grew by ` 81 billion to reach ` 2.5 trillion (US$ 29.4 billion). The M&E sector is expected to 
grow 7.2% in 2025 to reach ` 2.68 trillion (US$ 31.6 billion), then grow at a CAGR of 7% to reach ` 3.07 trillion (US$ 36.1 billion) by 2027. The Report has also shown a significant growth of digital media. With streaming 
platforms continuing to grow viewership, the immediate future of the content business looks stable and strong. Particularly for a Company like us, which makes shows for global streaming platforms.  As per the FICCI EY 
Report 2025, Digital media overtook television for the first time to become the largest segment, contributing 32% of M&E sector revenues. The M&E sector contributes 0.73% to India’s GDP.

The PNC film library is streaming on multiple OTT platforms, giving our earlier work a new life and a new audience, apart from those who watch these films on satellite television on the Star TV platform. This growing 
viewership strengthens our Company’s repute as Storytellers to the World.

Work on new series and films continues in development and it is the Company’s endeavor to take atleast one more production on the floors, later this financial year.

Our objective is to scale up our existing business primarily through continuing to create and make new content, both original series and movies, that top-rated global studios are ready to fund and acquire. Simultaneously, we 
intend to leverage our existing content library across various platforms on a global scale. Our business model intends to remain predictable, scalable, and sustainable, ultimately leading to profitability.

DIVIDEND

Your Directors do not recommend a dividend for this year.  

LISTING WITH THE STOCK EXCHANGES

The equity shares of the Company continue to remain listed with the Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd (BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India Ltd (NSE). The listing fees payable to both the stock exchanges for the year 
2025-2026 have been paid.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Your Company has not transferred any amount to the general reserve. 

DEPOSIT FROM PUBLIC

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73, 74 and 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules framed thereunder.

SUBSIDIARIES

The Company has two subsidiaries: PNC Digital Limited and PNC Wellness Limited. There are no associate companies within the meaning of Section 2(6) of the Act. There has been no material change in the nature of the 
business of its subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Act, in addition to the financial statements provided under Section 129(2) of the Act, consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries in the same form 
and manner as that of its own, shall also be laid before the Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company. A statement containing salient features of the financial statements of the Company’s subsidiaries in Form AOC–1 
is appended as Annexure I.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
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PRITISH NANDY COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED
THE 32ND ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2025

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 136 of the Act, the standalone financial statements and consolidated financial statements of the Company along with relevant documents and separate audited accounts in respect of its 
subsidiaries are available on the Company’s website www.pritishnandycom.com.

PNC Digital Limited

This subsidiary was kept in order to explore new opportunities that may emerge in the streaming business by leveraging the goodwill and stature of the PNC brand. One of its roles can be that of an intermediary providing 
distribution services to content makers who are struggling to shift from traditional media to digital, where our Company believes the future lies. 

PNC Wellness Limited

This subsidiary operates in the wellness business segment which it pioneered in India when it opened Moksh: The Wellness Place in Mumbai. After a decade of innovative activity, with rentals increasing and the wellness 
business, like many others, shifting to digital platforms, Moksh was shut down.

The subsidiary however continues, intending to use the brand’s goodwill and reputation to build a digital opportunity at an appropriate time.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Act, the Board of Directors, to the best of their knowledge and ability, confirm that:

a. 	 in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed and there are no material departures;

b. 	 they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at 
the end of the financial year and profit/ (loss) of the Company for that period;

c. 	 they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
fraud and other irregularities;

d. 	 they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e. 	 they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and such controls appear adequate and are operating effectively;

f. 	 they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established and maintained by the Company, the work performed by the internal, statutory and secretarial auditors and external consultants, 
including the audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting by the statutory auditors and the reviews performed by management and the relevant board committees, including the audit committee, the Board is of 
the opinion that the Company’s internal financial controls were adequate and effective during FY 2024-2025.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Mr Pritish Nandy, Founder, belonging to the Promoter Group, Non-Executive Director and Chairman of the Company has ceased to be a member of the Board of the Company, due to his unfortunate demise on January 8, 2025.

As on March 31, 2025, the Board of Directors of the Company comprised 7 (seven) Directors, including 2 (two) Executive Directors, 1 (one) Non-Executive Non-Independent Director and 4 (four) Non-Executive Independent 
Directors, in compliance with Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

In accordance with the provisions of the Act and Articles of Association of the Company, Mrs Rina Pritish Nandy (DIN: 00055748), Director of the Company, retires by rotation at the ensuing AGM, and being eligible, offers 
herself for re-appointment. A resolution seeking Shareholders’ approval for her re-appointment forms part of the Notice of AGM.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company as on March 31, 2025 are as follows:

Mr Pallab Bhattacharya (DIN: 00008277), a Wholetime Director of the Company, was appointed for a further period of 3 years w.e.f. February 17, 2025.

Ms Rangita Pritish Nandy (DIN: 00005690), a Wholetime Director of the Company, was appointed for a further a period of 3 years w.e.f. February 18, 2025.

Mr Kishor Palkar is the Chief Financial Officer of the Company.

Mr Santosh Gharat, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer resigned w.e.f. June 6, 2024.

Mr Hemant Auti, was appointed as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer on August 6, 2024 and subsequently resigned w.e.f. November 12, 2024.

Ms Priyanka Shah was appointed as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer w.e.f. February 7, 2025.

COMPLIANCE ON CRITERIA OF INDEPENDENCE BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company has received necessary declarations from each independent Director under Section 149(7) of the Act, that he/ she meets the criteria of independence laid down in Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 25 of 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the year, except for their sitting fees, the Independent Directors of the Company had no other pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

This disclosure required to be furnished pursuant to Section 197(12) read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is appended as Annexure II.

BOARD MEETINGS HELD DURING THE YEAR

As required under the Act and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, during the year 5 meetings of the Board of Directors were held and 1 meeting of Independent Directors was held. 
The details of the meetings of the Board are furnished in the Corporate Governance Report.

ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES, AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, Board Committees and individual directors including Independent Directors pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the Corporate 
Governance requirements as prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Further, the Independent Directors, at their exclusive meeting held during the year on March 12, 2025, reviewed the performance of the Board, its Chairman and Non-Executive Directors, as well as its Executive Directors, 
and other items as stipulated under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT, IF ANY, AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY FROM THE END OF FINANCIAL YEAR AND TILL THE DATE OF REPORT

There has been no material change and/ or commitment made affecting the financial performance of the Company that has occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements relate 
and the date of this report.

POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION AND OTHER DETAILS

The Company’s policy on Directors’ appointment and remuneration and other matters provided in Section 178(3) of the Act has been disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of this Directors’ report.

AUDITORS

Statutory Auditors

BD Jokhakar & Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN 104345W) were re-appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for another term of 5 years at the 29th AGM held on August 26, 2022, on a remuneration mutually agreed 
upon by the Board of Directors and the Statutory Auditors till the conclusion of the 34th AGM of the Company to be held for the financial year 2026-2027.

AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Auditors’ Report does not contain any qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks.

In the Emphasis of Matter paragraph, the auditors have stated:

We further draw attention to note 35 (a) on the standalone financial statements which describe the facts related to the legal proceedings initiated by the Company for the recovery of an advance of ` 1.5 crore. The management 
considers the same as good and fully recoverable. The legal opinion obtained by the Company supports this. We have relied on the opinion and consequently the Company has not made provision of any amount there against.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
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Pursuant to the provisions of Section 136 of the Act, the standalone financial statements and consolidated financial statements of the Company along with relevant documents and separate audited accounts in respect ofits: 
subsidiaries are available on the Company's website wwe pritishnands com com. 
NC Digital Limited. 
“This subsidiary was kept in order to explore new opportunites that may emerge in the streaming business by leveraging the goodwill and stature ofthe PNC brand. One of its roles can be that of an intermediary providing 
distribution services to content makers who are struggling to shift from traditional media to digital, where our Company believes the fiture lis. 
NC Wellness Limited 
‘This subsidiary operates in the wellness business segment which it pioneered in India when it opened Mosh: The Wellness Place in Mumbai. After a decade of innovative activity, with rentals increasing and the wellness 
business, ike many others, shifin to digital platforms, Moksh was shut down. 
‘The subsidiary however contimes, intending to use the brand's goodwill nd reputation to build a digital opportunity at an appropriate time. 
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 
Pursuant to Section 134(5) ofthe Act, the Board of Directors, to the best of heir knowledge and ability, confirm that 
2 inthe preperation ofthe annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed and there are no material departures; 
b. they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonsble and prudent s0 a fo give 2 true and far view of th state of ffir of the Company at 

the end ofthe financial year and profit (loss) ofthe Company for that period: 
© they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 

fraud and other imegulartes; 
they have prepared the annual accounts on 2 going concern basis; 
© they have aid down intemal financial controls to be followed by the Company and such controls appear adequate and are operating effectively; 
2 they have devised proper ystems to ensure compliance with provisions of al applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively: 
Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established and maintained by the Company, the work performed by the internal, statutory and secretarial auditors and external consultants, 
including the audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting by the statutory auditors and the reviews performed by management and the relevant board committes, including the audit committe, the Board is of 
the opinion that the Company's internal financial controls were adequate and effective during FY 2024-2025 
DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
Mir Pritsh Nandy, Founder, belonging tothe Promoter Group, Non-Executive Director and Chairman ofthe Company has ceased to be 2 member of the Board of the Company, due to his unfortunate demise on January 8, 2025. 
son March 31, 2025, the Board of Directors ofthe Company comprised (seven) Directors, including 2 (to) Executive Directors, 1 (one) Non-Executive Non- Independent Director and 4 (fou) Non-Executive Independent 
Directors, in compliance with Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 
In accordance with the provisions of the Act and Articles of Associaton of the Company, Mrs Rina Pritsh Nandy (DIN: 00055748), Director of the Company, retires by rotation at the ensuing AGM, and being eligible, offers 
herself for re-2ppointment A resolution seeking Shareholders’ approval for her re-appointment forms part ofthe Notice of AGM. 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Key Manageril Persomnel of the Company as on March 31, 2025 are as follows: 
Mr Pallab Bhattacharya (DIN: 00008277), a Whletime Director of the Company, was appointed for a further period of 3 years we.£ February 17, 2025. 
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Mr Kishor Palka is the Chief Financial Officer of the Company. 
Mr Santosh Gharat, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer resigned we £ June 6, 2024. 
Mr Hemant Aut, was appointed as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer on August 6, 2024 and subsequently resigned we. £ November 12, 2024. 
Ms Priyanka Shah was appointed as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer we.£ February 7, 2025 
‘COMPLIANCE ON CRITERIA OF INDEPENDENCE BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
‘The Company has received necessary declarations from each independent Director under Section 149(7) of the Act, that he! she mets the criteria of independence laid down in Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 25 of 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
During the year, except fo their sitting fees, te Independent Directors of the Company had mo other pecuniary relationship or transactions withthe Company. 
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126
DIRECTORS’ REPORT
PRITISH NANDY COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED
THE 32ND ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2025

We draw attention to note 35 (b) on the standalone financial statements which describes that the Company has received an award of ` 3.52 crore plus interest of ` 35 lakh in its favour in the arbitration case filed against White 
Feather Films (Proprietor Sanjay Gupta). White Feather Films has gone in appeal against the above said award. The court has directed the proprietor not to dispose off/ create any third-party rights on his properties which are 
valued at ` 12 crore. Proceedings are ongoing and in view of the same, the outstanding of ` 3.17 crore is considered as fully recoverable, and consequently there is no provision made of any amount there against.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters”.

Your Directors confirm that the matters referred to in the segment relation to Emphasis of Matter by the independent auditors in their report, have been clarified in notes 35(a), 35(b), of the standalone financial statements 
which are self-explanatory and reproduced below.

Note 35(a)

The Company has initiated proceedings for the recovery of an amount of ` 1.50 crore given to Saboo Films Pvt Ltd and Bharat film Works against film rights. Proceedings are ongoing before the City Civil Court and the 
management considers the same as fully recoverable and hence no provision has been made in the accounts at this stage. Legal opinion obtained by the Company supports this.

Note 35(b)

The Company had received an award of ` 3.52 crore plus interest of ` 35 lakh in its favour in the arbitration filed against White Feather Films (Proprietor Sanjay Gupta). White Feather Films has gone in appeal against the 
award and was directed to deposit an amount of ` 3 crore by the Bombay High Court, which they failed to do. The Company has filed a petition for execution of the arbitration award. The Bombay High Court has restrained 
Sanjay Gupta from disposing of, encumbering, alienating, transferring, and parting with the possession of or creating any third-party rights or interest in his 3 properties in Pune and Khandala valued at ` 12 crore. The advance 
of ` 3.18 crore is therefore considered as fully recoverable.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS’ REPORT

VN Deodhar & Company, practicing Company Secretaries, was appointed for a term of 5 years commencing from F Y 2025-26 to F Y 2029-30 to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company, as required under Section 204 
of the Act and rules thereunder.

The Secretarial Auditors’ Report is given as Annexure III which forms part of this report. The Secretarial Auditors’ Report states that during the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, 
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned therein.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIONS AND ANALYSIS

A detailed report on Management Discussion and Analysis is enclosed with this report.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND ITS ADEQUACY

The Company has an internal control system, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its operations. The scope and authority of the internal audit function is well defined in the organization. To maintain its 
objectivity and independence, the Internal Auditor submits his report to the Audit Committee of the Board.

The Internal Auditor monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of the internal control system of the Company, its compliance with operating systems, accounting procedures and policies of the Company. Based on the 
report of the Internal Auditor, officers undertake corrective action in their respective areas and thereby strengthen control. Significant audit observations and corrective actions suggested are presented to the Audit Committee 
of the Board.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has adopted a Risk Management Policy, pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(n) of the Act, which enables identification and evaluation of business risks and opportunities. This policy seeks to create 
transparency, minimize adverse impacts on business objectives and enhance the Company’s competitive advantage.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE ACT

The particulars of loans, guarantees and investments have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

All Related Party Transactions entered into during the financial year were on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business. Details of Related Party Transactions are disclosed in note 31 of the Audited standalone 
Financial Statements of the Company.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 92(3) of the Act, the Annual Return for FY 2023-24 is available and FY 2024-25 shall be available on Company’s website. www.pritishnandycom.com.

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE

As per the requirement of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 (‘POSH Act’) and Rules made thereunder, your Company has constituted an Internal Complaints 
Committee (ICC). While maintaining the highest governance norms, the Company has, within the ICC, appointed an external independent person who has worked in this area and has the requisite experience in handling such 
matters.

During the year, no complaints were received by the Committee.

REPORTING OF FRAUDS

There was no instance of fraud during the year under review, which required the Statutory Auditors to report to the Audit Committee and / or Board under Section 143(12) of Act and Rules framed thereunder.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

The Company’s CSR policy is aimed at demonstrating care for the community through its focus on education, skill development, health, wellness and research on content.

Further, in accordance with the provisions of Section 135 of the Act and rules framed thereunder, the Company has adopted and constituted a CSR Committee of Directors comprising of the following:

1.	 Mr Sunil Alagh, Chairman

2.	 Mr Karan Ahluwalia

3.	 Mr Pallab Bhattacharya

The detailed policy and constitution of the committee is available on the Company’s website.

No CSR provision is applicable for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025, as the average net profit of the Company for the last three financial years is inadequate.

DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENT

As per SEBI Listing Regulations, Corporate Governance Report with auditors’ certificate thereon and Management Discussion and Analysis are attached, which forms part of this report.

The Company has devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and confirms that such systems are adequate 
and operating effectively.

Details of the familiarization programs of the Independent Directors are available on the website of the Company.

Policy for determining material subsidiaries of the Company is available on the website of the Company.

Policy on dealing with related party transactions is available on the website of the Company.

Policy on fair disclosure and code of conduct required to be set out by the Company under SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading)Regulations, 2015 is available on the website of the Company.

The Company has formulated a Whistle Blower Policy to provide vigil mechanism for employees including Directors of the Company to report genuine concerns. The provisions of this policy are in line with the provisions 
of Section 177(9) of the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations with stock exchanges, and is available on the website of the Company.

The website of the Company is www.pritishnandycom.com.
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

As per Section 134(3) (m) of the Act, the particulars of Energy Conservation, Research and Development and Technology Absorption are not applicable to your Company.

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo during the year are given in Annexure IV which forms part of the report.

TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

There are no amounts which remained unclaimed and unpaid, for a period of 7 years from the date of declaration of dividend.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Board thanks all stakeholders in the Company, clients, bankers and financial institutions for their continued support to the Company and their confidence in its management. It also wishes to record its appreciation of the 
efforts put in by all staff and associates of the Company.

The Board takes note of the sad demise of Mr Pritish Nandy, Founder, belonging to the Promoter Group, Non-Executive Director and Chairman of the Company on January 8, 2025 and places on record a deep appreciation 
for his invaluable vision, contribution leadership, innovations and steering of the Company since its inception.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Pallab Bhattacharya
Wholetime Director and CEO
DIN:00008277

Raghu Palat 
Director
DIN:00311994

Mumbai, August 7, 2025
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For and on behalf o the Board of Directors 

Pallab Bhattacharya Ragin Palat 
Wholetime Director and CEQ Director 
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Mumbai, August 7, 2025
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ANNEXURE - I
STATEMENT PURSUANT TO FIRST PROVISO TO SUB-SECTION (3) OF SECTION 129 OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013, READ WITH RULE 5 OF COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014 IN THE PRESCRIBED 
FORM AOC – 1 RELATING TO SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

	   (In ` lakh)

PARTICULARS
Sr. No. Name of Subsidiary Company PNC Wellness Limited PNC Digital Limited

 1. Date of incorporation June 4, 1999 March 4, 1994

2. Reporting currency INR INR
3. Exchange rate NA NA
4. Share capital 66.00 50.00
5. Reserves and surplus (54.54) (30.18)
6. Total assets 35.54 20.11
7. Total liabilities (except share capital and reserve and surplus) 24.08 0.29
8. Investments 0.00 0.00
9. Turnover (including other income) 2.00 1.35

10. Profit/ (loss) before taxation (1.50) 0.66
11. Provision for taxation (including deferred tax) 0.00 0.17
12. Profit/ (loss) after taxation (1.50) 0.49
13. Proposed dividend Nil Nil
14. % of shareholding 100% 99.78%

Note

1.	 Reporting period for all the Subsidiaries is March 31, 2025.

ANNEXURE II
THE INFORMATION REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, READ 
WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL 
PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 ARE GIVEN BELOW

a.	 The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the 
Company for the financial year 2024-25.

Description Ratio of median 
remuneration 

Wholetime Directors 

Mr Pallab Bhattacharya 3.82

Ms Rangita Pritish Nandy 8.88

b. 	 The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial 
Officer, Company Secretary in the financial year 2024-25

Name % increase in 
remuneration in the 

financial year 

Mr Pallab Bhattacharya, Wholetime Director and CEO 22.73%

Ms Rangita Pritish Nandy, President and Creative Director 33.33%

Mr Kishor Palkar, CFO. 24.19%

c.	 The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: (38.03) %.

	 The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on March 31, 2025: 17

d.	 The explanation on the relationship between average increase in remuneration and Company 
Performance

	 The increment in remuneration during the year 2024-25 was 27.75%.

e.	 Comparison of the remuneration of the key managerial personnel against the performance of the 
Company for financial year 2024-25.

Particulars Amount (In ` lakh)

Aggregate remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 171.17

Revenue 3,358.42

Remuneration of KMP (as % of revenue) 5.10%

Profit/ (loss) before tax (PBT) (138.00)

Remuneration of KMP (as % of PBT) (124.04)%

f.	 Variations in the market capitalisation of the Company, price earnings ratio as at the closing date of the 
current financial year and previous financial year

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 % Change

Market Capitalization (in ` lakh) 3,661.60 7,757.21 (52.80)

Price Earnings Ratio (37.78) 35.51 (206.39)

g.	 Percentage increase over decrease in the market quotations of the shares of the Company in comparison 
to the rate at which the Company came out with the last public offer

Particulars March 31, 2025 IPO % Change

Market Price (BSE) 25.31 155 (83.67)

Market Price (NSE) 26.00 155 (83.23)

h.	 Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees in the last financial year and its 
comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and 
point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration.

	 During the year, there was increment in employee’s salary by 27.75% and increment in managerial 
salaries by 28.48%.

i.	 Comparison of remuneration of each key managerial personnel against the performance of the 
Company.

	 During the year under review the principal photography of The Royals Season 1 got completed, the 
show was premiered on May 9, 2025, Ziddi Girls was premiered on February 27, 2025 and principal 
photography of Four More Shots Please! Season 4 also commenced.

j.	 The key parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed by the Directors:

	 The Company does not have any variable component of remuneration availed by the directors.

k.	 The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid director to that of the employees who are not 
Directors but receive remuneration in excess of the highest paid director during the year:

	 There is no employee drawing remuneration which exceeds the highest paid Directors.

l.	  Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company:

	 The Company affirms remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company.

m.	 The statement containing particulars of employees as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read 
with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014

	 There was no employee drawing remuneration of ` 102 lakh per annum or ` 8.50 lakh per month.
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ANNEXURE-III
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED  MARCH 31, 2025
 [Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To
The Members
Pritish Nandy Communications Limited
87/88, Mittal Chambers
Nariman Point
Mumbai- 400021

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Pritish Nandy Communications Limited (hereinafter called the Company). 
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and 
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 complied with the statutory 
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by Pritish Nandy Communications Limited. (“the Company”) for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 according 
to the provisions of

i 	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

ii. 	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under;

iii. 	 The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

iv. 	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

v. 	 The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’)

	 a. 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

	 b. 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

	 c. 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2009 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit period),

	 d. 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations,2014 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit period),

	 e. 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit period),

	 f. 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

	 g. 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit period);

	 h. 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,1998 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit period); and

	 i. 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015.

vi. 	 During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Acts, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

vii.	 We have been informed that there are no laws applicable specifically to the Company. Additionally, we have been informed that compliance of various statues is monitored on monthly basis by the Compliance officer 
and necessary action is initiated for any noncompliance. Additionally, we have been informed that a status report signed by the Whole time Director and the Chief Financial Officer on compliance of various statues is 
submitted to the Board at its every meeting.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following

i. 	 Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India,

ii. 	 Auditing Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India and

iii. 	 SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors.

Generally adequate notice is given to all the directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were generally sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining 
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and its operations to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

For VN DEODHAR & CO.,
COMPANY SECRETARIES

Proprietor
FCS number. 1880

C P number. 898
PR No.: 6464/2025

FRN No: S1986MH002900
Mumbai, May 27, 2025	 UDIN: F001880G000451340

This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of this Report.

Annexure A
To
The members
Pritish Nandy Communications Limited
Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 is to be read along with this letter.
1. 	 Maintenance of Secretarial Record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Secretarial Records based on our Audit.

2. 	 We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure 
that correct facts are reflected in the Secretarial Records. We believe that the process and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. 	 Due to the inherent limitations of an audit including internal, financial and operating controls, there is an unavoidable risk that some misstatements or material non-compliances may not be detected, even though the 
audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with the Standards.

4. 	 We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

5. 	 Wherever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the Compliance of Laws, Rules & Regulations and happening of events, etc.

6. 	 The Compliance of provisions of Corporate and other applicable Laws, Rules, Regulations, Standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.

7. 	 The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For VN DEODHAR & CO.
COMPANY SECRETARIES

VN DEODHAR
Proprietor

FCS number. 1880
C.P. number. 898

PR No: 6464/2025
FRN No: S1986MH002900

Mumbai, May 27, 2025	 UDIN: F001880G000451340
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ANNEXURE-IIT 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Personnel) Rules, 2014] 
To 
The Members 
Pritsh Nandy Communications Limited 
§7/85, Mita] Chambers 
Nariian Point 
Mumbai. 400021 
We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Priish Nandy Communications Limited (hereinafter called the Company). 
Secretarial Adit as conducted in a manmer that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts statutory compliances and expressing our opiaion thereon. 
Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returus fled and other records mainfained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and 
‘authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2023 complied with the statutory 
provisions listed hereunder and also thatthe Company has proper Board-processes and compliznce mechanism in place to th extent, n the manner ad subject tothe reporting made hreizafer 
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns fled and othe records maintained by Pritsh Nandy Communications Limited. (the Company”) forte financial year ended on March 31, 2025 according 
to the provisions of 
i The Companies Act, 2013 (he Act) andthe rules made there under; 
i The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA) and the rules made there under; 
Gi The Depositries Act, 1096 and the Regulations and Bye laws framed there under; 
iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign Direct Ivestment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings: 
©. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Bord of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act) 

2 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 
b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (robibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 
© The Securities and Exchange Board of India (sso of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2009 (Nt applicable o the Company during the Audit period), 
4 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations 2014 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit period), 
© The Securities and Exchange Board of India (ssue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 (Not pplicble tothe Company during the Audit period), 
£ The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to n sue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dling with client; 
& The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Share) Regulations, 2009 (Not applicable tothe Company during the Audit period); 
bh The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audi period; and 
i The Securities and Exchange Bord of India (iting Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regaltions 2015. 

vi. During the period under revi the Company has complied withthe provisions ofthe Acts, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, tc. mentioned sbove. 
vii. We have been informed that there are no laws applicable specifically tothe Company. Additionally, we have been informed that compliznce of various statues is monitored on monty basis by the Compliance officer 

and necessary action i niited for any noncompliance. Additonaly, we have been informed tht status report signed by the Whole time Director and the Chief Financial Officer on compliance of various statues is 
submitted tothe Board at its very meting 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses ofthe following 
i Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India, 
i Auditing Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India and 
iii SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
We further report that 
The Board of Directors of the Company i duly constituted with prope balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. 
‘Generally adequate notice is given to all the directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were generally sent atleast seven days in advance, and 2 system exists for seeking and obiaining 
further information and clarifications on the agenda tems before the meeting and for meaningful ariipation at the meetin. 
1 decisions at Board Meetings and Comittee meetings are cared out unanimously as recorded inthe minutes ofthe meetings of the Board of Directors or Commitee of the Board, as the case may be 
We frther report that thre are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and its operations to monitor nd ensure compliance with applicable lve, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

For VN DEODHAR & CO, 
COMPANY SECRETARIES 

Proprietor 
FCS number 1880 
CP umber. 98 

PR No. 64642025 
FRN No: SI986VE02900 

Mumbai, May 27, 2025 'UDIN: FOO1880G000451340 
“This Report i to be read with our eter of even de which i annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral pat of tis Report. 

Annexure A 
To 
The members 
Pritsh Nandy Communications Limited 
Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date orth financial year ended March 31, 2025 i to be read along vith this eter 
1. Maintenance of Secretarial Record i the responsibilty of the management of the Company. Our responsibilty i o express an opinion on these Secretarial Records based on our Audit 
2. We have followed the audit practices and processes x were appropriate to btan reasonable assurance bout the correctness ofthe contents of the Secttaial records. The verification ws done on test basis to ensure 

{hat correct facts are reflected inthe Secretarial Records We belive that the process nd practices, we followed provide reasonable bass fo our opinion. 
3. Due tothe inherent imitations of an audit inching internal, nancial and operating contol, ther i an wiavoidabl is tha some misstatements of material non-compliances may not be detected, even though the 

‘audits propery planned and performed i accordance withthe Standards 
4. Weave not verified th correctness and appropriateness of firancial records and Books of Accounts of the Company. 
5. Wherever required, we have obtined the Management Representation about the Compliance of Laws, Rules & Regulations and happening of evens, etc 
6. The Compliance of provisions of Corporate and ther pplicble Laws, Rules, Regulations, Standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test bass 
7. The Secretarial Audit Report neither an assurance as to the ture viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the afar of the Company 

For VN DEODHAR & CO. 
COMPANY SECRETARIES 

VN DEODHAR 
Proprietor 

FCS number 1880 
CP. umber $98 

PR No: 6464/2025 
FRN No: SI986\H002900 

Mumbai, May 27, 2025 UDIN: FO01880G000451340
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ANNEXURE - IV
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

(In ` lakh)

Particulars For the year 2024-25 For the year 2023-24

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS 

Sale of owned content 3.17 3.57

Total 3.17 3.57

FOREIGN EXCHANGE OUTGO

Cost of production  10.30  30.48 

Traveling expenses  5.05 0.00 

Total 15.35 30.48
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PRITISH NANDY COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED
THE 32ND ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2025

OVERVIEW OF THE BUSINESS AND ITS ENVIRONMENT

The year under review has seen intense activity for your Company in various stages of production and release across 3 original shows with the industry’s top 2 streaming platforms, Netflix and Amazon Prime Video. This was 
a first for us, but displayed abundantly to us, what we are capable of and set benchmarks for the future.

First up, the Company’s newest Amazon original series, Ziddi Girls, premiered on February 27, 2025, to much critical acclaim and audience fanfare and is currently in contention across award platforms and festivals for the 
diversity and originality of its content.

Season 1 of the Company’s first Netflix original series, The Royals, premiered on May 9, 2025 globally, and trended across 58 countries while holding onto its position in the top 10 shows of Netflix internationally for 4 weeks, 
a first for any Indian original till date. Netflix has since, additionally announced the second season of The Royals which is currently in developmental writing. Production of season 2 of The Royals is likely to commence during 
the current financial year.

During the year, the Company also Commenced the principal photography of Season 4 of the Company’s very popular and international Emmy nominated series, Four More Shots Please!, for Amazon Prime Video and the 
show is expected to release in the current financial year.

During the year under review, the Company’s total income reached ` 3,424.99 lakh with a net loss (after tax) of ` 97.14 lakh. The Company continued to review advances for content as in the past and the Company has written 
off net amount of ` 42.73 lakh incurred in developing content that is no longer viable to take up in the future.

As per the FICCI EY Report 2025, The Indian M&E sector continued to grow in 2024,  at 3.3%. During 2024, the M&E sector grew by ` 81 billion to reach ` 2.5 trillion (US$ 29.4 billion). The M&E sector is expected to 
grow 7.2% in 2025 to reach ` 2.68 trillion (US$ 31.6 billion), then grow at a CAGR of 7% to reach ` 3.07 trillion (US$ 36.1 billion) by 2027. The Report has also shown a significant growth of digital media. With streaming 
platforms continuing to grow viewership, the immediate future of the content business looks stable and strong. Particularly for a Company like us, which makes shows for global streaming platforms.  As per the FICCI EY 
Report 2025, Digital media overtook television for the first time to become the largest segment, contributing 32% of M&E sector revenues. The M&E sector contributes 0.73% to India’s GDP.

The PNC film library is streaming on multiple OTT platforms, giving our earlier work a new life, a new audience, apart from those who watch these films on satellite television on the Star TV platform. This growing viewership 
strengthens our Company’s repute as Storytellers to the World.

Our objective is to scale up our existing business primarily through continuing to create and make new content, both original series and movies, that top-rated global studios are ready to fund and acquire. Simultaneously, we 
intend to leverage our existing content library across various platforms on a global scale. Our business model intends to remain predictable, scalable, and sustainable, ultimately leading to profitability.

DIGITAL AND WELLNESS: THE SUBSIDIARIES

The Company has two subsidiaries viz. PNC Digital Limited and PNC Wellness Limited.

PNC Digital Limited

This subsidiary was kept in order to explore new opportunities that may emerge in the streaming business by leveraging the goodwill and stature of the PNC brand. One of its roles can be that of an intermediary providing 
distribution services to content makers who are struggling to shift from traditional media to digital, where our Company believes the future lies.

PNC Wellness Limited

This subsidiary operates in the wellness business segment which it pioneered in India when it opened Moksh: The Wellness Place in Mumbai. After a decade of innovative activity, with rentals increasing and the wellness 
business, like many others, shifting to digital platforms, Moksh was shut down.

The subsidiary however continues, intending to use the brand’s goodwill and reputation to build a digital opportunity at an appropriate time.

RISKS, CONCERNS AND THREATS

Like almost all businesses, the content business is also risk-prone. Shifting audience tastes and lifestyle patterns, continue to ensure that the theatrical market remains unpredictable for films. Distributors are risk averse and are 
reluctant to pay minimum guarantees upfront as are studios. The Company is currently focusing on de-risked strategies for recovering its investments in content. We currently make content that is pre-sold or commissioned. It 
is however possible that we may, in the future, if and when the market returns to normal, invest in shows and films where small investments may need to be made for a stake in the IPR.

The Company is constantly researching shifting audience tastes and trying to create innovative products that can meet the expectations of a maturing viewership which expects higher and higher standards of quality. For this, 
we are regularly updating our technological skills as well as anticipating trends. Global content consumption offers interesting insights as even the new generation of Indian viewers are increasingly watching the best of global 
content on streaming platforms.

The negatives of the Company’s archived filmed content are ageing and in the current digital scenario, can risk becoming technology-obsolete. To counter this and continue to generate income from these films, the Company 
has digitized its entire films archive. Our films, some of them over two decades old, continue to be shown on the best and most rewarding satellite and streaming platforms available.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

The Company has appropriate internal control systems in place. These systems constantly assess and vet creative ideas. There is collective responsibility at every stage of decision making and a Corporate Leadership Team, 
led by the CEO that includes representation from all key departments, examines and clears each project. The Company has in place an adequate system of internal controls of procedures covering all corporate functions. 
Systems of internal control are designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the effectiveness and efficiency of operations, the adequacy of safeguards for assets, the reliability of financial controls and compliance with 
applicable laws and regulations.

Adequate internal control measures are in the form of various policies and procedures adopted by the management covering all important activities like revenue management, production, purchase, finance, statutory 
compliances, human resources, systems management, safety and audit. These policies and procedures are updated from time to time. Compliance is monitored by internal audit. The effectiveness of internal controls is reviewed 
through the internal audit process, which is undertaken for every operational activity. The focus of these reviews is as follow:

• 	 Identify weakness and areas of improvement

• 	 Compliance with defined policies and processes

• 	 Safeguarding of tangible and intangible assets

• 	 Management of business and operational risks

• 	 Compliance with applicable statutes

• 	 Compliance with the PNC Code of Conduct

The business process under the supervision of the Audit Committee of the Board oversees the adequacy of internal control environment through regular reviews of the Internal Audit Report and monitoring implementations of 
internal audit recommendations through the compliance reports submitted to them. The Company is faced with different types of risks which need different approaches for mitigation.

On a primary basis our Company has identified and categorized the following risks:

Operational risks like injury to lead actor/s and/or technical crew, loss by fire, high personnel turnover, piracy, delay in production cycles for reasons beyond our control, censor certification, litigation, recovery of pending dues, 
unanticipated technological shifts, shifting trends in consumption patterns, and statutory and legal compliances. Financial risks like shortage of working capital, diminution of asset values, data loss, inventory loss, bad debts 
and theft/loss of cash and valuables. Intangible asset risks such as piracy, misuse of intellectual property rights and injury to the PNC brand image.

Depending on the nature, impact and probability of the risk, our Company has various mitigating solutions like providing for contingencies, taking insurance cover wherever possible, devising appropriate marketing strategies, 
aligning pay scale with industry standards, training staff and offering growth opportunities, maintaining work-life balance, providing for leisure, installing proper payment systems, ensuring effective project management, 
forming multiple teams with experienced team leaders, ensuring that the content complies with guidelines, ensuring proper contractual documentation of all acquired rights, ensuring clarifications are disseminated swiftly 
in the event of any mis-reporting, identifying new platforms, ensuring staff familiarity with the latest technology, identifying trends, carrying out research, ensuring proper filing of statutory documents and returns, ensuring 
proper budgetary planning and cash flow, complying with proper depreciation accounting policy, ensuring timely replacement of technology at best prices, maintaining proper inward and outward register for content, checking 
the library periodically, initiating legal action whenever required, monitoring cash levels and installing cash safe investing in liquid funds or fixed deposits, registering intellectual property with appropriate authorities and 
monitoring and managing brand imaging.

The Company has in place a Risk Management Policy, pursuant to provisions of Section 134 of the Act and Regulation 17 of SEBI Listing Regulations. The Company has an organisational structure for managing and reporting 
on risks. The senior management periodically reviews the risk management framework to keep updated and address emerging challenges. Risk assessment and management procedures and status are discussed at the meetings of 
the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company. In terms of Regulation 21 of SEBI Listing Regulations, the constitution of Risk Management Committee was not applicable during the financial year 2024-25.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

During the year under review, the Company’s total income reached ` 3,424.99 lakh with a net loss after tax of ` 97.14 lakh. The Company continued to review advances for content as in the past and the Company has written 
off an amount of ` 42.73 lakh incurred in developing content that is no longer viable to take up in the future.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Company is continuously building its talent base. Its Corporate Leadership Team has qualified and experienced members drawn from different specializations. The middle management cadre has been developed and 
strengthened. The Company, as a policy, sees its core content making business essentially as project management. It prefers to assemble talent teams for each content project and these teams are disbanded once the project is 
complete. The talent bank that PNC has access to remains independent and is yet available to the Company at short notice.

The Company enjoys cordial relations with its employees and the talent that it hires on a project basis.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company’s objectives and expectations may be forward looking statements within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual 
results could differ from those expressed or implied.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
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‘OVERVIEW OF THE BUSINESS AND ITS ENVIRONMENT 
‘The year under reviews has seen intense activity for your Company in various stages of production and release across 3 original shows with the industry's top 2 streaming platforms, Netflix and Amazon Prime Video. This was 
2 frst fo us, but displayed ebundantly to us, what we are capable of and set benchmarks fo the futur. 
First up, the Company's newest Amazon original series, Ziddi Girls, premiered on February 27, 2025, to much critical acclaim and audience fanfare and is curently in contention across award platforms and festivals for the 
diversity and originality of its content. 
Season 1 ofthe Company's first Netix orginal series, Te Royals, premiered on May 9, 2025 globally, and trended across 38 countries while holding onto its position in the top 10 shows of Netfix internationally for 4 weeks, 
2 frst for any Indian origina till date. Netfix has since, additionally announced the second season of The Royals which is curently in developmental writing. Production of season 2 of The Royals i likely to commence during 
the curcent financial year 
During the year, the Company also Commenced the principal photography of Season 4 of the Company's very popular and international Emmy nominated series, Four More Shots Please! for Amazon Prime Video and the 
show is expected to release in the current financial year 
During the year under review; the Company's total income reached ¥ 3,424 99 lk with a net los (ate tax) of 97.14 lakh. The Company continued to review advances for content a in the pat and the Company has written 
off net amount of 42.73 lakh incurred in developing content hat is no longer viable to take up in the future 
As per the FICCI EY Report 2025, The Indian M&E sector continued to grow in 2024, at 3.3%. During 2024, the MAE sector grew by € 81 billion o reach 2.5 trillion (USS 29.4 billion). The MAE sector is expected to 
row 7.2% in 2025 to reach ¥ 2.68 trillion (USS 31.6 billion), then grow at 2 CAGR. of 7% foreach € 3.07 trillion (USS 36.1 billion) by 202. The Report has also shown a significant growth of digital media. With streaming 
platforms continuing to grow viewership, he immediate future of the content business looks stable and strong. Particulaly for 2 Company like us, which makes shows for global streaming platforms. As pr the FICCI EY 
Report 2025, Digital media overtook television forthe firs ime to become the largest segment, contributing 32% of MAE sector revenues. The ME sector contributes 0.73% to India’s GDP. 
‘The PNC fim library is streaming on multiple OTT platforms, giving our earlier worl anew life a new audience, apart from those who watch these films on satelite television on the Star TV platform, This growing viewership 
strengthens our Company's repute 2s Storytellers tothe World 
Our objective is to scale up our existing business primarily through confining to create and make new content, both original series and movie, that top-rated global studios are ready to fund and acquire. Simultaneously, we 
intend to leverage our exiting content library across various platforms on a global scale. Our business model intends to emain predictable, scalable, and sustainable, ultimately leading to profitability 
DIGITAL AND WELLNESS: THE SUBSIDIARIES 
‘The Company has two subsidiaries viz. PNC Digital Limited and PNC Wellness Limited. 
NC Digital Limited. 
“This subsidiary was kept in order to explore new opportunites that may emerge in the streaming business by leveraging the goodwill and stature ofthe PNC brand. One of its roles can be that of an intermediary providing 
distribution services to content makers who are struggling to shift from traditional media to digital, where our Company believes the fiture lis. 
NC Wellness Limited 
‘This subsidiary operates in the wellness business segment which it pioneered in India when it opened Mosh: The Wellness Place in Mumbai. After a decade of innovative activity, with rentals increasing and the wellness 
business, ike many others, shifin to digital platforms, Moksh was shut down. 
‘The subsidiary however contimes, intending to use the brand's goodwill nd reputation to build a digital opportunity at an appropriate time. 
RISKS, CONCERNS AND THREATS 
Like almost all businesses, the content business i aso isk prone. Shifting audience tastes and lfestyle patterns, continue to ensure thatthe theatrical market remains unpredictable for films. Distributors are risk averse and are 
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‘The negatives of the Company's archived filmed content are ageing and inthe current digital scenario, an risk becoming technology-obsolete. To counter this and continue to generate income from these films, the Company 
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INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS 
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through the internal audit process, which is undertaken for every operational activity. The focus of these reviews is as follow: 
+ Ldentify weakness and areas of improvement 
“Compliance with defined policies and processes 
+ Safeguarding of tangible and intangible assets 
“Management of business and operational risks 
+ Compliance with applicable statutes 
“Compliance with the PNC Code of Conduct 
‘The business process under the supervision of the Audit Committe of the Board oversees the adequacy of intemal control environment through regular reviews of the Internal Audit Report and monitoring implementations of 
internal audit recommendations through the compliance reports submitted to them. The Company is faced with diferent types of risks which need different approaches for mitigation. 
On a primary basis our Company has identified and categorized th following risks: 
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Depending on the nature, impact and probability ofthe risk, our Company has various mitigating solutions like providing for contingencies, taking insurance cover wherever possible, devising appropriate marketing strategie, 
aligning pey scale with industry standards, training staff and offering growth opportunities, maintaining work-life balance, providing for leisure, installing proper payment systems, ensuring effective project management, 
forming multiple teams with experienced team leaders, ensuring tha the content complies ith guidelines, ensuring proper contractual documentation of al acquired rights, ensuring clarifications are disseminated swifly 
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he library periodically, inifiaing legal action whenever required, monitoring cash levels and installing cash safe investing in liquid funds or fixed deposits, registering intellectual property with appropriate authorities and 
‘monitoring and managing brand maging. 
‘The Company has in place a Risk Management Policy, pursuant to provisions of Section 134 ofthe Act and Regulation 17 of SEBI Listing Regulations. The Company has an organisational structure for managing and reporting 
onrisks. The senior management periodically reviews the risk management framework to keep updated and address emerging challenges. Risk assessment and management procedures and status are discussed at the meetings of 
the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company. In terms of Regulation 21 of SEB Listing Regulations, the constitution of Risk Management Committe was not applicable during the financial year 2024-25. 
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During the year under review; the Company's total income reached ¥ 3,424.99 lak with a net loss after tax of 97.14 lakh. The Company continued to review advances for content as inthe past and the Company bas written 
off an amount of € 42.73 lakh incurred in developing content that i no longer viable to take up in the futur. 
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‘The Company enjoys cordial relations with is employees and the talent that it hires on 2 roject basi. 
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Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company's objectives and expectations may be forward looking statements within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual 
results could differ fom those expressed or implied.
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The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of Corporate Governance. It believes in and puts in action, fair dealing, ethical conduct and best practices that recognize the importance of all shareholders.

This means ensuring accountability, efficiency and compliance. The Company believes that its actions must reflect a sense of social responsibility and incorporate the importance of ethical values in all transactions. A systematic 
approach has therefore been followed for proper internal controls, timely dissemination of information to investors, and compliance with listing norms. Information to investors is being provided through the website of the 
Company and the stock exchanges, publication of quarterly financial results in newspapers, and through the annual report and accounts to shareholders.

Effective corporate governance practices constitute the foundation on which successful commercial enterprises are built. The Company’s philosophy on corporate governance oversees business strategies and ensures fiscal 
accountability, ethical corporate behavior and fairness to all stakeholders comprising regulators, employees, suppliers, service providers, investors, our clients and society at large.

Strong leadership and effective corporate governance practices have been the Company’s hallmark. It has a legacy of fair, transparent and ethical practices.

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its employees including its Executive Directors. In addition, the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its Non-Executive Directors which includes a Code of Conduct 
for Independent Directors which suitably incorporates the duties of Independent Directors as laid down in the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). The Company’s corporate governance philosophy has been further strengthened 
through the PNC Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading and the Code of Corporate Disclosure Practices (“Insider Trading Code”).

The Company is in compliance with the requirements stipulated under Regulations 17 to 27 read with Schedule V and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) as applicable, with regard to corporate governance.

1.	 THE COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE

	 The Company’s philosophy is to maintain high levels of transparency, accountability and equity in all areas of its operations and in all interaction with its stakeholders. It believes that it must attain the objective of 
enhancing stakeholder value on a continuing and sustainable basis.

	 The Company is in compliance with the requirements stipulated under Regulation 27 and Schedule II of SEBI Listing Regulations, as applicable, with regard to corporate governance.

	 At the core of the Company’s corporate governance practice is the Board of Directors, which oversees how the management serves and protects the long-term interests of its stakeholders. Your Company believes an 
active, well-informed, independent Board is crucial to ensure high standards of corporate governance.

	 The Company’s corporate governance policy is meant to assist the Board in the exercise of its responsibilities. This policy is subject to future changes as may be required in the light of the amendments in various 
regulations. To ensure that stakeholders are aware of all such changes, these are posted on the Company’s website: www.pritishnandycom.com.

2.	 BOARD OF DIRECTORS

	 The composition of the Board of Directors of the Company is governed by the Act and the listing regulations entered into with the stock exchanges where the securities issued by the Company are listed. The Company 
has 7 directors as on March 31, 2025, of whom one is Founder and Promoter Non-Executive Director, four are Independent and Non-Executive Directors and two are Executive Directors. All the Directors are eminent 
experts with specialist experience. Both the Executive Directors have grown from the ranks and emerged as widely respected professionals. Mr Pritish Nandy, Founder, belonging to the Promoter Group, Non-Executive 
Director and Chairman of the Company has ceased to be a member of the Board of the Company, due to his unfortunate demise on January 8, 2025.

	 None of the Directors on the Board hold directorships* in more than 10 public companies. Further, none of them is a member of more than 10 committees or chairman of more than 5 committees viz. Audit Committee 
and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, across all the public companies in which he or she is a director. The Directors have made necessary disclosures regarding their committee positions in other public companies 
as of March 31, 2025.

	 During 2024-25, the Board met 5 times: on May 21, 2024, August 6, 2024, November 12, 2024, February 07, 2025 and March 24, 2025. The time gap between any 2 meetings was not more than 120 days or more than 
4 calendar months. The following table gives details of Directors, their attendance at Board Meetings and at the last Annual General Meeting, number of memberships held by Directors on the board and committees of 
various companies as on March 31, 2025.

Director (Designation) Category Number of Board 
Meetings attended

Whether last 
AGM attended

Number of other Listed Company’s directorships*, 
committee+ memberships and chairmanship

Shareholding as on    
March 31, 2025 

Director Committee 
Member

Committee 
Chairman

Equity share of ` 10 each

#Late Mr Pritish Nandy** 
(Chairman till January 8, 2025)

Promoter, Non-Executive Director 3 Yes - - - 2,143,638

Mrs Rina Pritish Nandy ** Promoter, Non-Executive Director 5 Yes - - - 625,000

Mr Raghu Palat Independent, Non-Executive Director 5 Yes - - - -

Mr Sunil Alagh Independent, Non-Executive Director 5 Yes 1 - - -

Mr Karan Ahluwalia Independent, Non-Executive Director 5 Yes - - - -

Ms Neerja Shah Independent, Non-Executive Director 4 Yes - - - -

Mr Pallab Bhattacharya 
(Wholetime Director and CEO)

Executive Director 5 Yes - - - 107,000

Ms Rangita Pritish Nandy ** 
(Wholetime Director, President and 
Creative Director)

Executive Director 5 Yes - - - 643,500    

	 #Mr Pritish Nandy, Founder, belonging to the Promoter Group, Non-Executive Director and Chairman of the Company  has ceased  to be a member of the Board of the Company, due to his unfortunate demise on January 
8, 2025.

	 *Other Company directorships do not include directorship in private limited companies, foreign Companies and companies registered under Section 8 of the Act.

	 +Committee includes only two committees: Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee of other public companies.

	 **Relationship among Directors: Mr Pritish Nandy and Mrs Rina Pritish Nandy are husband and wife, founders and promoters of the Company, and Ms Rangita Pritish Nandy is their daughter.

	 All Directors have made necessary disclosures regarding committee positions occupied by them in other companies. The membership and chairmanship of committees of other companies in which the Directors of the 
Company are member or chairman are in compliance with Regulation 27 of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

3.	 AUDIT COMMITTEE

	 The constitution of the Audit Committee meets with the requirements of Section 177 of the Act, and the SEBI Listing Regulations with the stock exchange. The terms of reference specified by the Board to the Audit 
Committee are as per SEBI Listing Regulations and the same is part of the Corporate Governance policy adopted by the Board. 

	 During the year 2024-25, the Audit Committee met 4 times: on May 21, 2024, August 6, 2024, November 12, 2024 and February 07, 2025. Attendance of Committee members during the year 2024-25 is as under:

Name of member Attendance May 21, 2024 August 6, 2024 November 12, 2024 February 07, 2025

Mr Raghu Palat (Chairman) 4 Yes Yes Yes Yes

Ms Neerja Shah 4 Yes Yes Yes Yes

Mr Karan Ahluwalia 4 Yes Yes Yes Yes

4.	 NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (NRC) 

	 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) has been established with the duty to assist the Board of Directors in fulfilling their roles and responsibility involving human resources as defined under Section 
178 the Act.

	 To rationalize all employees related issues, while adhering to the requirements of the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations as amended from time to time, the Board of the Company has constituted the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee.

	 Constitution of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the terms of reference specified by the Board to the Committee are as per the requirements of SEBI Listing Regulations and Section 178 and Schedule 
V of the Act. This committee is constituted under the chairmanship of Independent Director Mr Raghu Palat. He, Mr Sunil Alagh, Mr Karan Ahluwalia, and Ms Neerja Shah are members of the Committee.

	 After, the resignation of Mr Hemant Auti, the previous Company Secretary, Ms Priyanka Shah was appointed as Company Secretary and Compliance Offices of the Company on February 7, 2025 and she serves as the 
Secretary of the Committee.
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	 Directors’ Remuneration

	 a.	 Advisory fees: Non-Executive Chairman’s entitlement of advisory fees is upto ` 96 lakh per annum. The same is in conformity with the statutory provisions.

	 b. 	 Sitting fees: Sitting fees are paid to Non-Executive Directors for attending Board and Audit Committee Meetings. All Non-Executive Directors are paid sitting fees of ` 75,000 each for attending Board Meetings 
as well as ` 50,000 each for Committee Meetings.

	 c. 	 Remuneration: Details of remuneration of Wholetime Directors are as under

		  Mr Pallab Bhattacharya was re-appointed as Wholetime Director and CEO of the Company for a further period of 3 years with effect from February 17, 2025 to February 16, 2028 on the terms and conditions 
and remuneration as set out in the agreement executed with him.

		  Present remuneration and perquisites are as hereunder:

		  a.	 Salary: Rs 750,000 per month.

		  b.	 Perquisite: Company car.

		  c.	 Gratuity is payable as per the rules of the Company at the end of service.

		  d.	 Reimbursement of travelling, hotel and other reasonable expenses actually incurred by him for Company work.

		  Ms Rangita Pritish Nandy was re-appointed as Wholetime Director of the Company for a further period of 3 years with effect from February 18, 2025 to February 17, 2028 on the terms and conditions and 
remuneration as set out in the agreement executed with her.

		  Present remuneration and perquisites are as hereunder:

		  a.	 Salary: Rs 800,000 per month

		  b.	 Perquisite: Company car.

		  c.	 Gratuity is payable as per the rules of the Company at the end of service.

		  d.	 Reimbursement of travelling, hotel and other reasonable expenses actually incurred by her for Company work.

	 Whole time Directors of the Company are entitled to annual increments, as decided by the Board. Annual increments are merit based and taking into account the Company’s performance. If in any financial year, the 
Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, remuneration by way of salary and perquisites will be subject to the provisions of schedule V of the Act.

	 The Shareholding of the Non - Executive Directors of the Company as on March 31, 2025 is as follows. of the 2 Non - Executive Director, Promoter Director, Mr Pritish Nandy and Mrs Rina Pritish Nandy hold 2,143,638 
( 14.82%) and 625,000 (4.32%) equity share of the Company respectively.

5.	 STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

	 Your Company has a Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee in accordance with the provisions of the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015.

	 This committee is constituted under the chairmanship of Independent Director Mr Raghu Palat. He, Mr Karan Ahluwalia and Mr Pallab Bhattacharya are members of the Committee. Company Secretary and Compliance 
Officer of the Company, serves as the Secretary of the Committee.

	 This Committee reviews and redresses the grievances related to securities, such as transfer of securities, dividend and any other investor grievances like non-receipt of annual report and non-receipt of dividends, etc. The 
Committee also oversees the performance of the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents (RTA) and recommends measures for overall improvement of the quality of investor services. The Board of Directors has delegated 
the power for approving transfer of securities to this Committee.

	 During the year, two complaints were received from an investor by the Committee. The Registrar and Transfer Agent gave an appropriate clarification to the complaints and resolved them. Both the  complaints were 
disposed-off during the year 2024-25.

6.	 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

	 Your Company has a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee in accordance with the provisions of the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015.

	 This committee is constituted under the chairmanship of Independent Director Mr Sunil Alagh. He, Mr Karan Ahluwalia and Mr Pallab Bhattacharya are members of the Committee. Company Secretary and Compliance 
Officer of the Company, serves as the Secretary of the Committee.

	 No CSR provision is applicable for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025, as the average net profit of the Company for the last three financial years is inadequate

7.	 GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

Year Location Date and Time

Annual General Meeting(s)

2021-2022 87/88, Mittal Chambers Nariman Point Mumbai 400021 August 26, 2022 at 3.00 PM (Through VC/OAVM)

2022-2023 87/88, Mittal Chambers Nariman Point Mumbai 400021 September 22, 2023 at 3.00 PM (Through VC/OAVM)

2023-2024 87/88, Mittal Chambers Nariman Point Mumbai 400021 September 26, 2024 at 3.00 PM (Through VC/OAVM)

8.	 OTHER COMMITTEES 

	 RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE:  The Risk Management Committee is applicable to top 1000 listed entities based on market capitalization and currently not applicable to our Company.

	 The Company has in place a Risk Management Policy, pursuant to provisions of Section 134 of the Companies Act and Regulation 17 of SEBI Listing Regulations. The Company has an organizational structure for 
managing and reporting on risks. The Senior management periodically reviews the risk management framework to keep it updated and address emerging challenges. Risk assessment and management procedures and 
status are discussed at the meetings of the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company. In terms of Regulation 21 of SEBI Listing Regulations, the Constitution of Risk Management Committee was 
not applicable during the financial year 2024-25.

	 INTERNAL COMPLAINTS COMMITTEE: The Company has in place, policy for prevention of sexual harassment at workplaces in line with the requirements of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & 
Redressal) Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder. An Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment.

	 The Complaints Committee is responsible for:

	 •	 Investigating every formal written complaint of sexual harassment.

	 •	 Taking appropriate remedial measures to respond to any substantiated allegations of sexual harassment.

	 •	 Discouraging and preventing employment-related sexual harassment.

	 During the year under review, no complaint was received.

9.	 DISCLOSURES

	 a.	 Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions i.e. transactions of the Company of material nature with its Promoters, the Directors or the Managerial Personal, their subsidiaries or relatives, etc. 
that may have potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large. None of the transactions with any related party were in conflict with the interests of the Company.

	 b.	 Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties, and strictures imposed on the Company by Stock Exchange or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets, during the last 3 
years:

	 The Stock Exchanges imposed a fine amounting to ` 1.64 lakh under regulation 18(1) & 19(1) for the year 2021-22 and ` 17.50 lakh for the year 2022-23 for the non-compliance of Regulation 17, 17(1A), 18(1) and 
19(1) of SEBI LODR Regulations, 2015 mainly for non-composition of board, audit and nomination and remuneration committees within the specified time limit. This was mainly because of delay in appointing an 
independent director in place of Mr Pradeep Guha who passed away during the pandemic, when the Company’s operations were largely shut. Subsequently, during the year 2024-25, the Company has recovered ̀  5.61 lakh 
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from the National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. This amount was received in response to the applications made by the Company to the respective stock exchanges for waiver of fines. During the year 2024-25, the Stock 
Exchanges have imposed a fine amounting to ` 10,000 for the non-compliance of Regulation 29(2) and 29(3) of SEBI LODR Regulations, 2015 mainly for delay in uploading prior intimation of Board Meeting due to 
some technical glitch of website and inadvertent reasons.

	 c.	 The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy and has established the necessary vigil mechanism for employees and Directors to report concerns about unethical behavior. No person has been denied access 
to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The said policy is also put up on the website of the Company.

	 d.	 The Board has adopted policies to establish transparency and good governance. These policies are the Board Diversity Policy, Code of Conduct of Directors and Senior Management, Policy on Material 
Subsidiary, Related Party Transaction Policy, Succession Policy and Insider Trading Policy and Fair Disclosure Policy. These policies are put up on the website of the Company.

10.	 CERTIFICATE FROM PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARY

	 Certificate as required under Part C of Schedule V of Listing Regulations, received from Vinayak N Deodhar (CP No. 898), Proprietor of  V N Deodhar & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries, that none of the Directors 
on the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of the Company by the Securities and Exchange Board of India/ Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any 
such statutory authority, was placed before the Board of Directors at their meeting held on  May 27, 2025.

11.	 SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT

	 SEBI vide its Circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD1/27/2019 dated February 8, 2019, read with Regulation 24(A) of the Listing Regulations, directed listed entities to conduct an Annual Secretarial compliance audit from a 
Practicing Company Secretary of all applicable SEBI Regulations and circulars/guidelines issued thereunder. The said Secretarial Compliance report is in addition to the Secretarial Audit Report by a Practicing Company 
Secretary in Form MR–3 and is required to be submitted to the Stock Exchanges within 60 days of the end of Financial Year.

	 The Company has engaged the services of Vinayak N Deodhar (CP No. 898), Practicing Company Secretary and Secretarial Auditor of the Company for providing this certification.

12.	 RECOMMENDATIONS OF COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

	 There were no instances during the financial year 2024-25, wherein the Board had not accepted recommendations made by any committee of the Board.

13.	 TOTAL FEES PAID TO STATUTORY AUDITORS OF THE COMPANY

	 Total fees of ` 7.25 lakh for financial year 2024-25, for all services, was paid by the Company to the statutory auditor and all entities in the network firm/ network entity of which the statutory auditor is a part.

14.	 SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

	 The audit committee reviews the Standalone and Consolidated financial statements of the Company and the investments made in its unlisted subsidiary companies. The minutes of the board meetings along with a report 
on significant developments of the unlisted subsidiary companies are periodically placed before the Board of Directors of the Company.

	 The Company does not have material non-listed Indian subsidiary companies.

15.	 MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

	 a.	 The unaudited quarterly financial statements, audited annual financial statements, quarterly shareholding pattern and corporate governance reports are posted on the website of the Company. The website also 
carries official news about the Company’s upcoming activities.

	 b.	 The quarterly unaudited and annual audited financial statements are generally published in all editions of the Business Standard and Lakshdeep, Mumbai, a vernacular Marathi daily. All the material information 
about the Company, including the financial results, are immediately submitted to Stock Exchanges, where the shares of the Company are listed to enable them to upload the same on their website.

	 c. 	 The Company also makes presentations to investors from time to time.

	 d.	 Management Discussion and Analysis forms part of this Annual Report.

16.	  GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

16.1 Annual General Meeting

Date and time : September 25, 2025 at 3 PM

Meeting through : VC or Other AudioVisual Mode

16.2 Financial calendar (tentative) for financial year April 1, 2025 to March 31, 2026

A. Board meetings to consider financial results

On August 7, 2025 : Results for the first quarter

Before November 14, 2025 : Results for the second quarter

Before February 14, 2026 : Results for the third quarter 

Before May 30, 2026 Results for the fourth quarter and year ending March 31, 2026

B. Annual General Meeting : By September, 2026

16.3 Date of book closure : September 19, 2025 to September 24, 2025 (both days inclusive) 

16.4 Dividend payment date : Not applicable

16.5 Listing on Stock Exchanges : a.	 Bombay Stock Exchange Limited
	 Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 
	 Dalal Street, Mumbai 400023
b. 	 National Stock Exchange of India Limited 
	 Exchange Plaza, Bandra Kurla Complex, 
	 Bandra (East), Mumbai 400051

16.6 Stock code and other information : Bombay Stock Exchange – 532387
National Stock Exchange – PNC
Market lot – 1 share
ISIN: INE 392B01011 (Equity)
Equity shares of the Company are traded only in dematerialized form.

16.7 Company’s share price performance in comparison to broad based indices – BSE Sensex and NSE Nifty

Period (As on March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2025) % change in Company’s share price % change in Indices

BSE-Sensex (52.80) 5.11

NSE-Nifty (51.99) 2.65
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16.8 Market price data

NSE BSE 

Month’s high price (`) Month’s low price (`) Month’s high price (`) Month’s low price (`)

April 2024 70.70 54.25 70.75 52.55

May 2024 68.60 56.90                    68.40 54.80

June 2024 73.39 53.50 73.43 53.00

July 2024 76.95 64.12 77.02 62.15

August 2024 74.40 65.60 74.00 65.53

September 2024 79.30 62.00 79.16 61.53

October 2024 71.00 54.28                              70.80 54.00

November 2024 70.55 58.92 70.40 56.35

December 2024 67.29 55.95 66.68 55.50

January 2025 59.84 38.01 59.50 39.30

February 2025 42.50 29.35 41.90 29.45

March 2025 29.54 22.12 29.89 22.50

16.9 Registrar and transfer agents    :  MUFG Intime India Private Limited

16.10 Share transfer system : Share transfer requests received in physical form are registered within 30 days from the date of receipt and 
demat requests are normally confirmed within an average of 15 days from the date of receipt.

16.11 Distribution of shareholding as on March 31, 2025

Equity shares of face value of ` 10 each

Shares of nominal value of ` Number of shareholders % Number of shares Share amount in (`) %

Up to 5,000 10,039 88.92 866,568 8,665,680 5.99

5,001 to 10,000 620 5.49 501,271 5,012,710 3.47

10,001 to 20,000 330 2.9 501,010 5,010,100 3.46

20,001 to 30,000 94 0.83 238,592 2,385,920 1.65

30,001 to 40,000 39 0.35 139,472 1,394,720 0.96

40,001 to 50,000 44 0.39 204,065 2,040,650 1.41

50,001 to 100,000 59 0.52 439,519 4,395,190 3.04

100,001 and above 65 0.58 11,576,503 115,765,030 80.02

Total 11,290 100.00 14,467,000 144,670,000 100

Distribution of shareholding as on March 31, 2025 (Category wise) 

Particulars %

Promoters holding 59.72

Banks and Financial Institutions 0.48

Clearing Member   0.01

Trust    0.01

Public and private corporate bodies 1.86

NRIs/ OCBs   0.32

Indian public and others 34.72 

Other Directors    0.74

HUF    2.14

Total 100

16.12 Dematerialization of shares and liquidity : About 14,464,880 equity shares of the Company are held in dematerialized form which constitutes 99.99% 
of the total number of equity shares as on March 31, 2025. Trading in the equity shares of the Company 
is permitted only in dematerialized form. The equity shares of the Company are actively traded on BSE 
and NSE.

16.13 Outstanding GDR/ADR warrants or convertible instruments 	 : The Company has no outstanding instruments convertible into equity shares

16.14 Plant locations : The Company has no plant.

16.15 Address for investor correspondence

Registrar and share transfer agent
MUFG Intime India Private Limited
Unit: Pritish Nandy Communications Limited
C-101, 247 Park
LBS Marg, Vikhroli (West)
Mumbai 400083
Tel: 022 49186000
Fax: 022 49186060
Email: mumbai@in.mpms.mufg.com
Website: www.in.mpms.mufg.com

Company
The Company Secretary
Pritish Nandy Communications Limited
87/88, Mittal Chambers
Nariman Point
Mumbai 400021
Tel: 022 42130000
Email: investorgrievance@pritishnandycom.com
Website: www.pritishnandycom.com
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	 OTHER INFORMATION

	 a.	 Listing fees for the financial year 2025-26 have been paid to both the exchanges.

	 b. 	 Code of Conduct for Board of Directors

		  The Board has adopted a Code of Conduct for its directors and senior management of the Company. This Code of Conduct has been followed by all. The code is available on the website of the Company www.
pritishnandycom.com.

	 c. 	 PNC’s Code for Prevention of Insider Trading

		  The Board has adopted a Code of Conduct in accordance with the model code of conduct prescribed by SEBI. The code, besides other relevant matters, prohibits an insider from dealing in the shares of the 
Company while in possession of unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the Company. The Company Secretary has been appointed as the Compliance Officer for monitoring implementation of the 
Code. The Code of Conduct is applicable to all employees who have access to unpublished price sensitive information relating to the Company as well as the Directors; they have complied with the code and the 
Company has received confirmation to that effect. During the time of declaration of results, dividend and other material events, the trading window is closed as per the code.

DECLARATION BY CEO
I, Pallab Bhattacharya, Wholetime Director and CEO of Pritish Nandy Communications Limited, confirm that the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its Directors including Non-Executive Directors and senior 
management. 

This code is available on our Company’s website www.pritishnandycom.com. I further confirm that the Company has received a declaration of compliance with the Code of Conduct for the year ended March 31, 2025 from 
Members of its Board and senior management personnel.

	 For Pritish Nandy Communications Limited
	 Pallab Bhattacharya
	 Wholetime Director and CEO
Mumbai, August 7, 2025

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

To
The Members of
Pritish Nandy Communications Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Pritish Nandy Communications Limited (the Company) for the year ended March 31, 2025, as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to 
(i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and paragraph C and D of Schedule V of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”).

Managements’ Responsibility

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Company’s management. This responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control and procedures to ensure 
the compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof on test check basis, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an 
audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

Opinion

Based on our examination of the relevant records on test check basis  and according to the information and explanations provided to us and the representations provided by the Management, we certify that the Company has 
complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-Regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and paragraph C and D of Schedule V of SEBI Listing Regulations 
during the year ended March 31, 2025.

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For VN DEODHAR & CO.
COMPANY SECRETARIES

VN DEODHAR
						      Proprietor

FCS NO.1880
C.P. No. 898

PR No.: 6464/2025
							       FRN No: S1986MH002900

UDIN: F001880G000986413 
Mumbai, August 7, 2025                 
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To
The Members of
Pritish Nandy Communications Limited,
87/88, Mittal Chambers,
Nariman Point,
Mumbai- 400 021.

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Pritish Nandy Communications Limited having CIN L22120MH1993PLC074214 and having registered office at 
87/88, Mittal Chambers, Nariman Point, Mumbai- 400 021, (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’) produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(4) read 
with Schedule V Para C- sub clause 10(i) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identifications Number (DIN) status at the portal (www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanation furnished to 
us by the Company and its officers, We hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2025 have been debarred or disqualified from being 
appointed or continuing as Directors of Companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority. 

Sr. No Name of Director DIN Date of Appointment in Company

1 Mrs Rina Pritish Nandy 00055748 September 28, 1993

2 Mr Pallabkumar Bhattacharya 00008277 February 18, 2010

3 Ms Rangita Pritish Nandy 00005690 January 31, 2005

4 Mr Raghu Ravunni Palat 00311994 August 09, 2016

5 Mr Sunil Kumar Alagh 00103320 April 06, 2021

6 Mr Karan Ravi Ahluwalia 01319174 April 06, 2021

7 Ms Neerja Sukumar Shah 02323647 February 23, 2022

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This 
certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For VN DEODHAR & CO.
COMPANY SECRETARIES

V N DEODHAR
Proprietor

FCS NO.1880
C.P. No. 898 PR No.: 6464/2025

FRN No: S1986MH002900
																				                                          UDIN: F001880G000451758	
	
Mumbai, May 27, 2025	
	

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

. Resi TT ti i 
em 
str tf e581 pt 
with Schedule V Para C- sub clause 10(5) ofthe Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 2015. 

SS 
yy me ey ee Re ei 

nw 
is Fs Pt dy uss Sepember 5,159 
[TE—— sone] tray 15, 200 
i Rang Pr Ney onsen Tomy 31,05 
[TT re—— wars Sas, 206 
ied Kamar lh wos Spi 01 

[oan Ror Rie osm herve unt 

ae ee cy cm ct eos Comp Ope tp ge ci 

Gn 
oo 

Et 
BT



1218INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
PRITISH NANDY COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED
THE 32ND ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2025

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
TO 
THE MEMBERS OF 
PRITISH NANDY COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of PRITISH NANDY 
COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2025, 
and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in 
Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including 
a material accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the standalone 
financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in 
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its loss (including other 
comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) 
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the standalone financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company 
in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together 
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the 
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to note 35(a) on the standalone financial statements which describe the facts related to the 
legal proceedings initiated by the Company for the recovery of an advance of ` 1.50 crore. The management 
considers the same as good and fully recoverable. The legal opinion obtained by the Company supports this. 
We have relied on the opinion and consequently the Company has not made provision of any amount there 
against.

We further draw attention to note 35(b) on the standalone financial statements which describes that the 
Company has received an award of ` 3.52 crore plus interest of ` 35 lakh received by the Company in its 
favour in the arbitration case filed against White Feather Films (Proprietor Sanjay Gupta). White Feather 
Films has gone in appeal against the above said award. The court has directed the proprietor not to dispose 
off/ create any third-party rights on his properties which are valued at ` 12 crore. Proceedings are ongoing and 
in view of the same outstanding of ` 3.18 crore is considered as fully recoverable and consequently there is 
no provision made of any amount there against.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit 
of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of 
the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 
opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be 
communicated in our report.

a.	 Valuation of Inventory (as described in note 8 and 2(j) of the standalone financial statements)

	 Description of Key Audit Matter:

	 Inventory includes Cinematic Content and Television Content. Cinematic Content includes completed 
cinematic content (Unamortised and Unexploited content) as at year end. Television Content includes 
unexploited television content as at year end.

	 Considering the distinctiveness of each type of inventory, the industry in which the Company 
is operating, and the peculiarity involved makes valuation a complex exercise. Additionally, the 
allocation of initial cost is done on the basis of genre, nature of the cinematic content involving 
significant judgments and estimates by the management. The cost of the Company’s Inventories as at 
March 31, 2025 amounts to ` 5,456.19 lakh, which is a significant component of the Balance Sheet. 
Therefore, we have considered it to be a key audit matter.

	 Description of Auditor’s response: 

	 We have gained adequate understanding of the nature of Inventories and applied the prescriptions 
given in Ind AS 2 in their context. 

	 We analyzed the valuation approaches adopted by management for each class of Inventories for their 
appropriateness. We also audited the methodology used by the Company and verified reasonableness 
of estimates applied by the Company including useful life of the content, implications of technological 
changes and other factors mentioned in note 37 to the standalone financial statements. Further we have 
reviewed the valuation carried out on the basis of the accounting policy including realizations made 
in the past and expectation of future potential to earn there from.  Finally, the appropriateness and 
adequacy of the presentation and disclosure of Inventory in the financial statements was audited. Based 
on the above work performed, no exceptions were noted.

b.	 Amortisation of Inventory (as described in note 2(j) and note 37 of the standalone financial statements)

	 Description of Key Audit Matter:

	 Inventory of the Company comprises audio-visual entertainment content which are intangible in 
nature. Determination of useful life of intangible inventory involves significant estimates by the 
management which involves the economic useful life of content post digitisation, new avenues of 
content exploitation with the emergence of new technologies, increased reach of Indian content in 
new and existing global markets, and various other factors mentioned in note 37 to the standalone 
financial statements. Cost of inventory is divided into components such as Global theatrical rights, 
Global broadcasting rights, Music rights, Global streaming rights and emerging platforms, Intellectual 
Property Rights (IPR)/ Residual rights. Each of these components of costs are amortised by the 
management over their respective estimated useful lives as described in note 2(j) and note 37 to the 
standalone financial statements.

	 Considering the significant estimates involved by the management and its complexity, we have 
considered it to be a key audit matter.

	 Description of Auditor’s response: 

	 Audit procedure included detailed review of rationale documented by the management for ascertaining 
useful life of intangible inventory, basis of allocation of costs into different categories, basis of its 
amortization as per manner provided in note 2(j) and note 37 to the standalone financial statements. 
In addition, we also verified the industry practice, past trends, examined the transactions to ascertain 
that amortization is in accordance with accounting policy. Based on the above work performed, no 
exceptions were noted.

c.	 Revenue Recognition (as described in note 2(m) and note 22 of the standalone financial statements)

	 Description of Key Audit Matter:

	 Revenue (as disclosed in note 22) from each stream of income is contracted uniquely based on number 
of factors. Costs incurred from conceptualisation onwards are typical to the industry and the Company 
considering the uncertainty and measurability of eventual success of a project. There are often timing 
differences between when revenue/ cost invoiced/ incurred to when revenue/ cost is actually earned/
charged. The resultant bifurcation between accruals and deferrals are brought to account at each 
reporting date. Recognition of revenue is driven by specific terms of related contracts.

	 The accounting policies for revenue recognition are set out in note 2(m) to the standalone financial 
statements. This is considered to be a key audit matter due to significance of revenue in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss and the complexity involved in the revenue cycle for determination of existence, 
accuracy and timing of revenue recognition.

	 Description of Auditor’s response: 

	 Audit procedure relating to existence, accuracy and timing of revenue recognition included reading 
the terms and conditions of contracts relating to different classes of contracts including but not limited 
to variation in the terms of the contracts, examination of transactions, cut off procedures to check 
that revenue is accrued in the correct accounting period, review of controls and analytical procedures 
covering revenue, direct costs and margins for different revenue streams were audited amongst other 
considerations. Based on the above work performed, no exceptions were noted.

d.	 Advance for Content (as described in note 7 and note 36 of advance write off of the standalone 
financial statements)

	 Description of Key Audit Matter:

	 Company carries out number of long- term in-house content development projects for which it incurs 
costs for title registration, amounts paid to writers/ actors and for finalizing cast, preshoot expenses, 
professional fees etc. These amounts have different ageing depending on the progress of each project. 
These costs are classified under a broad head as ‘Advance for Content’ amounting to ` 1,946.30 lakh 
as at March 31, 2025 which is a significant component of the Balance Sheet. Therefore, we have 
considered it to be a key audit matter.

	 Description of Auditor’s response: 

	 Audit procedure included understanding from the technical team about its realizable value, its future 
viability and management contention to continue with the project including considerations for write 
off/ impairment based on future plans of the Company, considerations of trends in the country as 
well Global trends. Several considerations enter into evaluation as to continuance and viability of 
the various projects referred to above. We verify the existence of the agreements, and the approval of 
management with respect to the amount written off based on future plans of the Company. Further, 
the appropriateness and adequacy of the presentation and disclosure of Advance for Content in the 
financial statements was audited. Based on the above work performed, no exceptions were noted.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The Company’s Board of 
Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The Other Information comprises the 
information included in the Chairman’s Statement, Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report 
including Annexures to Board’s Report and Corporate Governance but does not include the standalone 
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The aforesaid Other Information is expected to be made 
available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form 
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, 
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements 
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. When we read the 
aforesaid Other Information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to 
communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act, with 
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified 
under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone 
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
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standalone financial statements.



1319
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

PRITISH NANDY COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED
THE 32ND ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2025

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone financial statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone 
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• 	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting 
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud 
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control. 

• 	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible 
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in 
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• 	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• 	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report 
to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as 
a going concern. 

• 	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or 
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the 
standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative 
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate 
the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that 
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the 
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not 
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected 
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A”,  
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

	 a.	 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

	 b.	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so 
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

	 c.	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), 
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are 
in agreement with the books of account.

	 d.	 In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

	 e.	 On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by 
the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

	 f.	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
“Annexure B”. 

	 g.	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the 
requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 

		  We draw your attention to note 31 to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 
March 31, 2025 according to which the managerial remuneration paid to the Whole-Time 
directors which exceeds the prescribed limits under Section 197 read with Schedule V to the 
Act by ` 36.13 lakh. As per the provisions of the Act, the excess remuneration is subject to 
approval of the shareholders which the Company proposes to obtain in the forthcoming Annual 
General Meeting. 

	 h.	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us: 

		  i. 	 The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in 
its standalone financial statements – Refer note 29 to the standalone financial statements; 

		  ii. 	 The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

		  iii. 	 There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Company.

		  iv.	 a. 	� The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, 
as disclosed in the note 44(g)(i) to the standalone financial statements no funds 
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or 
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or 
in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), 
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

			   b. 	� The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, 
as disclosed in the note 44(g)(ii) to the standalone financial statements no funds 
have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including 
foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend 
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 
behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

			   c.	� Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused 
us to believe that the representations as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain 
any material misstatement.

		  v. 	 The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

		  vi. 	 Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used an 
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of 
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has been operated throughout the 
year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of 
our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. 
Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory 
requirements for record retention.

For BD Jokhakar & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 104345W

Bhavik Jain 
Partner
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of 
Independent Auditors’ Report on standalone financial statements of even date)

i.	 a.	 In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Asset:

		  A.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has maintained proper records 
showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant 
and Equipment.;

		  B.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, there are no Intangible Assets held by the 
Company during the year. 

	 b.	 According to the information and explanations given to us, Property Plant and Equipment have 
been physically verified by the management during the year and in our opinion the frequency of 
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. 
We are informed that no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

	 c.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, there are no immovable properties held by the Company.

	 d. 	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, there is no revaluation of its Property, Plant and Equipment 
during the year by the company. 

	 e. 	 According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no proceedings initiated 
or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami 
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

ii.	 a.	 As explained to us by the management, the production/ making of content requires various 
types, qualities and quantities of content related consumables and inputs in different 
denominations. Due to the multiplicity and complexity of items, it is not practicable to maintain 
quantitative record/ continuous stock register, as the process of making content is not amenable 
to it. All the purchases of content related consumables are treated as consumed. In view of 
this the Company does not maintain stock register, except the record of the finished content, 
unamortised content, unfinished content and also does not carry out physical verification of 
stock. However, management physically verifies the finished content in the hand at the end of 
the year. In our opinion, having regards to the size of the Company and nature of business, the 
frequency of verification is reasonable and the coverage and procedure of such verification is 
appropriate. Based on the records provided to us, no discrepancies of 10% or more were noticed 
in the aggregate for each class of inventory on such physical verification.

	 b.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits 
from banks or financial institutions during the year. Therefore, clause (b) of the paragraph 3 (ii) 
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

iii. 	 a. 	 According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit procedures, 
during the year, the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees or securities, 
given any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, 
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Consequently, sub clause (a), (b), (c), (d), 
(e) and (f) of the paragraph 3 (iii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

iv.	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any loans, 
made investments, provided guarantees and securities during the year as contemplated under Section 
185 and 186 of the Act. 

v.	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 
not accepted deposits from the public or amounts deemed to be deposits within the meaning of the 
provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there under. 
We have been informed by the management of the Company that no order has been passed by the 
Company Law Board, National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any Court or 
any other Tribunal which needs to be complied with. Therefore, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not 
applicable.

vi.	 According to information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not prescribed 
maintenance of cost records under Sub-Section (1) of Section 148 of the Act. Hence, reporting under 
clause (vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

vii.	 a. 	 According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of 
undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state 
insurance, income-tax, and other material statutory dues as applicable to it have been regularly 
deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities. As explained to us, 
there were no undisputed statutory dues as mentioned above in arrears as at March 31, 2025 for 
a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

	 b. 	 According to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that the 
Company does not have any dues as at March 31, 2025 referred to in sub clause (a) above 
which have been deposited on account of any dispute except in case of, the details of which are 
provided below:

	  (In ` lakh)

Name of the 
statute

Nature of 
the dues

Amount Amount 
paid under 
protest

Period to which 
it relates

Forum where dispute 
is pending

GST Act, 2017 Tax, 
Interest, 
Penalty

36.16 1.55  FY 2017-2018 Deputy Commissioner 
of State Tax

viii.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the Company there are no transactions which have been surrendered or disclosed as income 
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). 

ix.	 a. 	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in 
repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest to any lender. 

	 b.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit procedures, 
we are of the opinion that the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or 
financial institution or government or any government authority. 

	 c.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit procedures, 
the term loans were applied for the purposes for which those were obtained

	 d.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit procedures, 
and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we are of the opinion 
that no funds are raised on short term basis that have been utilised for long term purposes by the 
Company.

	 e.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit procedures 
and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we are of the opinion 
that the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet 
the obligations of its subsidiaries and associate. Therefore, paragraph 3(ix) (e) of the Order is 
not applicable to the Company.

	 f.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit procedures, 
we are of the opinion that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of 
securities held in its subsidiaries and associate companies. Consequently, paragraph 3(ix)(f) of 
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

x.	 a. 	 According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit procedures, 
we are of the opinion that the Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer/ 
further public offer (including debt instruments). Consequently, paragraph 3(x)(a) of the Order 
is not applicable to the Company.

	 b 	 According to the information and explanations provided to us and based on our audit 
procedures and records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment 
or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully/ partly/ optionally) during the 
year. Consequently, paragraph 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xi.	 a. 	 During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out 
based upon the generally accepted audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the 
true and fair view of the financial statements, to the best of our knowledge and belief and as 
per the information and explanations given to us by the Management, and the representations 
obtained from the Management, no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported 
during the year.

	 b.	 According to the information and explanations provided to us and based on our audit 
procedures, no report has been filed by any auditor under section 143(12) in Form ADT 4 
as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central 
Government.

	 c.	 According to the information and explanations provided to us and based on our audit procedures 
and based on the records produced to us, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the 
Company during the year.

xii.	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a 
nidhi company. Therefore, sub clause (a), (b) and (c) of paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

xiii.	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and based on our 
examination of the records of the Company, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance 
with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable and the details have been disclosed in note 31 
on the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv. 	 a.	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and based on our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has an internal audit system which 
needs to be strengthened considering the size and nature of its business.

	 b.	 We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company 
during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures

xv.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records 
of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons 
connected with him as specified under Section 192 of the Act. Therefore, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order 
is not applicable.

xvi.	 In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve 
Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b), (c) and (d) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

xvii.	 The Company has incurred cash losses of ` 99.63 lakh in the financial year covered by our audit. The 
Company has not incurred cash losses in the immediately preceding financial year.

xviii.	 There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year. 

xix.	 On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and 
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our 
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans so far as received and based on our 
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which 
causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating 
that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when 
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not 
an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on 
the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all 
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the 
Company as and when they fall due. 

xx.	 The provisions of Section 135 of the Act are not applicable to the Company for the year under report 
and hence reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable. 

For BD. Jokhakar& Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 104345W

	

	 Bhavik Jain 
Partner 
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of ¢. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit procedures, 
Independent Auditors Report on standalone financial statements of even date) he term loans were applied or the purposes for hich those were obained 
i 2 Inrespectof the Company's Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Asset: d According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit procedures, 

and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we are of th opinion 
A According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our hat no uns ar raised om short tem bass that have been utilised fo lon term poses by the 

‘examination ofthe records of the Company, the Company has maintained proper records, Company 
showing ful particulars, including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant iy 
and Equipment; e According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit procedures 

and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we are of the opinion 
B. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our tat the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet 

examination of th records of the Company, there are no Intangible Assets held by the he obligations of is subsidiaries and associate Therefor, paragraph 3(ix) (6) of the Order is 
Company during the year not applicable to the Company. 

b. According to the information and explanations given to us, Property Plant and Equipment have £ According to he information and explanations given to us and based on our audit procedures, 
‘been physically verified by the management during the year and in ou opinion th frequency of we are of the opinion fhat he Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of 
verification i reasonable having regard fo th size ofthe Company and the nature of its assets. securities eld in is subsidiaries and associate companies. Consequently, paragraph 3G of 
We ae informed that no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. he Orde is not applicable to the Company 

c. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination x a According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit procedures, 
‘of the records of the Company, there are no immovable properties held by the Company. we are of the opinion that the Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer’ 

4. According to the information and explanations given to us and on th basis of our examination Sother public offer (nctuding debt instruments). Consequently, paragraph (xa) ofthe Order 
of the records of the Company, ther is no revaluation of is Property, Plant and Equipment PF! pay 
during the year by the company. b According to the information and explanations provided fo us and based on our audit 

«According to the formation nd explanations give f us, there re no proceedings ied procedure and records of the Company, the Company hs not made any preferential allotment 
or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully partly! optionally) during the 

or are pending against the Company for bolding any beau property under the Benami ‘year. Consequently paragraph 3(x)() of the Order is not applicable tothe Company Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. 
i a As explained to us by the management, the production making of content requires various pe ee ee eR Ae on 

pes, quilies and aie oF content ed Consumables bed imps in dffcnt true and fai view of the fmancial statements, fo ts best of our knowledge and betief and as 
lenominations Due to the multiplicity and complexity of ems, tis not practicable to mai per the information and explanations given tus by the Management, and the representations quantitative record continuous stock register, as the process of making content s not amenable jo EE he Key ceetation a potas on Fo eis sera come Toe Sed merges oir ed Comp os sr re 

this the Company does not maintain stock register, excep the record of the finished content, € 
‘mamortised content, unfinished content and also does mot carry out physical verification of b. According to the information and explanations provided to us and based on our audit 
stock: However, management physically verifies the finished conten in the hand at th end of procedures, no report has been fled by any auditor under section 143(12) in Form ADT 4 

the year In our opinion, having regards tothe size of the Company and nature of business, the E= prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditor) Rules, 2014 with he Central 
Srequency of verification is reasonable and the coverage and procedure of such verification is Government. 
appropriate. Based on he records provided to us, no discrepancies of 10% or more were noticed 
nthe aggregate foreach cass of inventory on such physical verification ¢. According othe information and explanations provided t us and based on our audit procedures 

and based on the records produced fo us there are no whistle blower complaints received by the 
b. According tothe information and explanations given to us and on th basis of our examination Company during he year 

of the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital Limits M 
from banks or financial institutions during the year. Therefore, clause (5) of the paragraph 3 (i) xii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is mot a 
ofthe Order is not applicable to the Company. nidhi company. Therefore, sub clause (2), 5) and (©) of paragraph 3(c) of the Order is not applicable. 

La According to the information and explanations given to us and based on ow audit procedures, xii In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and based on our 
during the year, tae Company has mot made investments, provided guarantees or securities, examination ofthe records of the Company, all transactions with the related partes are in compliance 
given any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable and the detail have been disclosed in note 31 
Limited Liability Partnerships or any ofher parties. Consequently, sub clause (2), (b), (2), (@), on the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 
(©) and (§ ofthe paragraph 3 (i) of th Order are not applicable to the Company. 

xiv. a Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and based on our 
iv According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any loans, examination of the records of the Company, the Company has an internal audit system which 

‘made investments, provided guarantees and securities during the year 25 contemplated under Section needs to be strengthens considering the size and nature of is business. 
185 2nd 186 of te Act. 

b. We have considered, th internal audit reports for the year under audit issued to the Company 
©. Tn our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has during the year and ill date, in determining the nature, ming and extent of our audit procedures 

not accepted deposits fom the public or amounts deemed to be deposits within the meaning of the 
provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any relevant provisions of the Act and the rles framed there under, *. According to th information and explanations given to us and based on our examination ofthe records 
We have been informed by the management of the Company that no order has been passed by the ofthe Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with dirctors o persons 
Company Law Board, National Company Lav Tribunal or Reserve Bank: of Inia or any Court or comnected with him as specified under Section 192 of the Act Therefore, paragraph 3x) of the Order 
any other Troma which needs to be complied with Therefore, paragraph 3(s) of the Order is mot is not plicable. 
pple xvi. In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under Section 451A of the Reserve 

vi. According to information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not prescribed Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)), (), (¢) and (@) of the Order i not 
‘maintenance of cos records under Sub-Section (1) of Section 14 of the Act Hence, reporting under applicable 
clause () ofthe Order isnot applicable tothe Company. xvii. The Company has incurred cash losses of 99.63 skh in the financial year covered by our audit The 

Wi a  Accordingto information and explanations given fo us and on the basis of our examination of Company has not incurred cash losses in the immediately preceding financial year 
he records of the Company, amounts deducted! accrued in the books of account in respect of ope ator ag sons and serio ton modest fart smplosest sy Xvi. There has been no resignation ofthe tattory auditors ofthe Company during the year. 
insurance, income-tax, and other material statutory dues as applicable to it have been regularly On the basis of the financial rat and expected dates of realisation of func] assets and xix sis of the financial ratio, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial asets 

deposited during the year bythe Company ith the appropri tories cpanel = payment of financial liabilities, other mformation accompanying the financial statements and our 
were no undisputed statutory dues as mentioned above in arrears as at March 31, 2025 for knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans so far as received and based on our 

period of more than sx months from the date they became payable. examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nofhing has come fo our attention, which 
cording to the on au ous given to us, we are of the opinion cases us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating 
Bt a CE as that Company is not capable of meeting its libiltes existing a the date of balance sheet as and when 

Com mtn ds wa J 08 rhe et foe hoe i a Te or ee poem dep dispute except g an assurance a to the fue viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on 
pe the facts up tothe date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all 

(n? 1k) lialities falling due within a period of one year rom the balance sheet date, will gt discharged by the 
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Nameofthe | Natweof |Amoust | Amowt | Periodto which | Forum where dispite | xx. The provisions of Section 135 of the Act are not applicable to the Company for the year under report 
statute the dues paid under | it relates is pending and hence reporting under clause 3(x) of the Order i not applicable 
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P For BD. Jokdakar: Co. 

GSTAL2017 | Tex, | 3616 | 155 | FY20172018 | Deputy Commissioner Chartered Accountants 
Interest, of State Tex Firm Registration No: 104345W 
Penalty 

vi, According tothe information and explanations given to us and on th basi of our examination of the 
tecords of he Company there are no transactions which kave been surrendered or disclosed 2 income 
during the year inthe tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). Bhavik Jain 

Partner 
i 2 According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in Merbership number 160166 

repayment of loans or fer borrowings o in he payment of interest fo any lender Mumbai, May 27, 2025 ‘UDIN: 25160166BMRIWW17ST 
b. According tothe information and explanations given to us and based on our audit procedures, 

‘we are of the opinion tha the Company has not been declared wilful efaulter by any bank or 
fmancial institution or government o any government authority.



1321
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

PRITISH NANDY COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED
THE 32ND ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2025

ANNEXURE B TO THE AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of 
Independent Auditors’ Report on standalone financial statements of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Pritish Nandy Communications 
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based 
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities 
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, 
issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to 
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if 
such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design 
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend 
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone financial statements 
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal 
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that 

1.	 pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; 

2. 	 provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of 
management and directors of the Company; and 

3. 	 provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, 
use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial 
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error 
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls 
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as 
at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

 

For BD. Jokhakar& Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 104345W

	

	 Bhavik Jain 
Partner 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
‘audit opinion on the Company's intemal nancial controls system over nancial reporting 

Blavik Jin 
Paster 

Membership number 160166 
Mumbai, May 27,2025 UDIN: 25160166BMRIWW 17ST
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STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET

(In ` lakh)

Particulars Note no As at 
 March 31, 2025

As at 
 March 31, 2024

I. ASSETS

Non-current assets

a. 	 Property, plant and equipment 3 111.97 177.66

b. 	 Financial assets

	 i.  	 Investments 4 19.26 19.26

    	 ii. 	 Other financial assets 5 327.36 330.30

c. 	 Income tax assets (net) 6 104.29 125.92

d. 	 Other non-current assets 7 2,177.31 2,006.14

Total non-current assets 2,740.19 2,659.28

Current assets

a. 	 Inventories 8 5,456.19 5,521.98

b. 	 Financial assets

  	 i. 	 Trade receivables 9 2.66 130.38

	 ii. 	 Cash and cash equivalents 10 922.87 374.18

	 iii. 	 Bank balances other than (ii) above 11 12.61 11.91

	 iv. 	 Other financial assets 12 875.24 1,048.72

c. 	 Other current assets 13 118.67 147.11

Total current assets 7,388.24 7,234.28

TOTAL ASSETS 10,128.43 9,893.56

II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

a. 	 Equity share capital 14 1,446.70 1,446.70

b. 	 Other equity 15                    6,006.98                    6,104.96 

Total equity 7,453.68 7,551.66

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities

a. 	 Financial liabilities

	 Borrowings 16 143.96 76.39

b. 	 Deferred tax liabilities (net) 17 972.12 1,012.98

Total  non-current liabilities 1,116.08 1,089.37

Current liabilities

a. 	 Financial liabilities

    	 i.   	 Borrowings 18 82.27 36.42

    	 ii.  	 Trade payables 19

		  Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 33.12 12.89

		  Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 269.74 448.13

    	 iii. 	 Other financial liabilities 20 17.89 12.70

b. 	 Other current liabilities 21 1,155.65 742.39

Total  current liabilities 1,558.67 1,252.53

TOTAL  LIABILITIES 2,674.75 2,341.90

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 10,128.43 9,893.56

Material accounting policies 2

Notes to accounts form an integral part of stanalone financial statements 1 to 49

As per our report of even date attached
For BD Jokhakar & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 104345W

Bhavik Jain Pallab Bhattacharya Raghu Palat
Partner Wholetime Director and CEO Director
Membership number 160166 DIN 00008277 DIN 00311994

Kishor Palkar Priyanka Shah
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

Mumbai, May 27, 2025 Mumbai, May 27, 2025
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(In lakh) 
Particulars Noteno Asat Asa 

March 31,2025 March 31,2024 
IL ASSETS 

Non-curent assets 
2 Property, lant and equipment 3 111.97 17766 
b. Financial assets 

i Investments 4 1926 1026 
i Other financial assets 5 32736 33030 

© Income tax assets (net) 6 10429 12592 
4 Other non-current assets 7 217731 2,006.14 
Total non-current assets 2,740.19) 265928 
Curent assets 
2 Inventories 3 5456.19 5521.98 
b. Financial assets 

i Trade receivables 9 266 13038 
i Cash and cash equivalents 10 87 37418 
i. Bank balances ofter than (i) above i 1261 1191 
iv. Other financial assets 2 87524 104872 

© Other current assets 13 11867 147.11 
Total current assets 738824 723428 
TOTAL ASSETS 10,128.43 9,593.56 

IL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity 
a Equity share capital 1" 1446.70 1446.70 
bh. Otherequiy 15 600698 610496 
Total equity 7453.68 7,551.66 
LIABILITIES 
Non-current liabilities 
a Financial libiliies 

Bortowings 16 143.96 7630 
b. Deferred tax lsbilites (et) Id m1 101298 
Total non-curent isbilites 111608 108937 
Curent lisbilities 
a Financial libiliies 

i Bomowings 18 2.27 3642 
i Trade payables 19 

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and seal enterprises 33.12 180 
“Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 26974 448.13 

i. Other financial abilities ) 1789 1270 
b. Otter current lisbilites 21 1,155.65 74239 
Total current lisbilties 1,558.67 125253 
TOTAL LIABILITIES 267475 234190 
‘TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 10,12843 9,593.56 
Material accounting policies 2 
‘Notes to accounts form an integral part of stanalone financial statements 11049 

As per our report of even date attached 
For BD Jokhakar & Co. For and on bekalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No: 104345W 

Bhavik Jain Pallab Bhattacharya Raghu Palat 
Partner ‘Wholetime Director and CEO. Director 
Membership number 160165 DIN 00008277 DIN 00311994 

Kishor Palkar Priyanka Shah 
(Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 

Mumbai, May 27, 2025 ‘Mumbai, May 27, 2025
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

As per our report of even date attached
For BD Jokhakar & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 104345W

Bhavik Jain Pallab Bhattacharya Raghu Palat
Partner Wholetime Director and CEO Director
Membership number 160166 DIN 00008277 DIN 00311994

Kishor Palkar Priyanka Shah
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

Mumbai, May 27, 2025 Mumbai, May 27, 2025

(In ` lakh)

Particulars Note no. For the year ended  
March 31, 2025

For the year ended  
March 31, 2024

INCOME

I. Revenue from operations 22  3,358.42  5,771.93 

II. Other income 23  66.57  63.57 

III. Total income (I+II)  3,424.99  5,835.50 

IV. EXPENSES

Cost of content 24  2,739.85  4,887.01 

Changes in unamortised/ unexploited/ unfinished content 25  5.89  15.90 

Employee benefits expense 26  397.17  378.56 

Finance costs 27  8.34  9.77 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 3  31.48  32.41 

Advances written off 36  42.73  13.42 

Other expenses 28  337.53  291.57 

Total expenses (IV)  3,562.99  5,628.64 

V. Profit/ (loss) before tax (III-IV) (138.00) 206.86 

VI. Tax expense

 Current tax 0.00 0.00

 Deferred tax 38 (a) (40.86) (11.82)

Total tax expense (VI) (40.86) (11.82)

VII. Profit/ (loss) for the year (V-VI) (97.14) 218.68 

VIII. Other comprehensive income

 Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 30 (b) (0.84) (4.74)

 Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 0.00 0.00 

Other comprehensive income, net of tax (VIII) (0.84) (4.74)

IX. Total comprehensive income for the year (VII+VIII ) (97.98) 213.94 

X. Earnings per equity share (Face value of ` 10)

 Basic and diluted 39 (0.67) 1.51 

Material accounting policies 2

Notes to accounts form an integral part of stanalone financial statements 1 to 49

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS 

PRITISH NANDY COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED . 
THE 32ND ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2025 

(Tak) 

Particulars Noteno. For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

INCOME 

I Reveme from operations 2 335842 577198 

IL Other income 5 6657 651 

IL Total income (041) 342499 5835.50 

IV. EXPENSES 

Cost of content. u 273985 488701 

Changes in unamortised/ mexploited/ unfinished content 5 589 1590 

Employes benefit expense % 397.17 37856 

Finance costs 7 834 07 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 3 3148 41 

Advances written off 36 an Ba 

Other expenses. 8 33753 2157 

Total expenses (IV) 356299 562864 

Vo Profit oss) before tax ILIV) 13800) 20686 

VL Taxexpense 

Curent tax. 000 000 

Defemed tax E10) “36 ais 

Total tax expense (VI) “36 ais) 

VIL Profit oss) for the year (V:VD) ©1149 21868 

VIL Other comprehensive income 

ems that will not be reclassified to profi o loss 300) 089) “1 

Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: 000 000 

Other comprehensive income, net of tax (VID ©88) “1 

IX. Total comprehensive income forthe year (VII-VIIL) ©1989) 21394 

X. Eamings per equity share (Face value of € 10) 

Basic and diluted 30 (7) 151 

Material accountng policies 2 

Notes to accounts form an integral part of stanalone financial statements 1tod9 

As pe our report of even date attached 
For BD Jokhakar & Co. For and on behalf ofthe Board of Directors 
Chartered Accomtants 
Firm Registration Nor 104345W 

Bhavik Jain Pallab Bhattacharya Ragin Palat 
Partner ‘Wholetime Director and CEO Director 
Membership mumber 160166 DIN 00008277 DIN 00311994 

Kishor Palkar Priyanka Skah 
(Chief Financial Officer ‘Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 

Mumbai, May 27, 2025 Mombai, May 27, 2025
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(In ` lakh)
 Particulars For the year ended 

March 31, 2025
For the year ended 

March 31, 2024
 A.  CASH FLOW GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

 Profit/ (loss) before tax (138.00) 206.86 
 Adjustment for
 Advances written off 42.73 13.42 
 Depreciation and amortisation 31.48 32.41 
 Finance costs 8.34 9.77 
 Impairment in value of investments 0.00 33.39 
 Property, plant and equipment written off 3.28 0.33 
 Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 8.14 0.00 
 Expected credit loss 3.19 3.19 
 Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (0.08) 0.00 
 Trade payable balances written back (0.16) (0.11)
 Interest on fixed deposit (58.42) 38.50 (55.23) 37.17 
 Operating profit/ (loss) before adjustments (99.50) 244.03 
 Adjusted for 
 Other non-current financial assets (0.25) (0.01)
 Other non-current assets (213.90) (15.21)
 Cinematic and television content - current 65.79 45.90 
 Current trade receivables 127.72 (84.69)
 Other current financial assets 267.80 (396.15)
 Movement in tax assets 21.63 (27.09)
 Other current assets 27.60 (40.94)
 Current trade payables (158.00) 394.67 
 Other current financial liabilities 5.19 2.63 
 Other current liabilities 413.26 556.84 77.17 (43.72)
 Cash generated from operations 457.34 200.31 
 Direct taxes paid 0.00 0.00 
 Net cash flow from operating activities (A) 457.34 200.31 

 B.  CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
 Payment to acquire property, plant and equipment (4.38) (8.77)
 Proceeds from property, plant and equipment 27.25 0.00 
 Proceeds from fixed deposits 916.68 748.79 
 Fixed deposits made (1,011.70) (550.00)
 Interest on fixed deposit 58.42 55.23 
 Net cash from/ (used in) investing activities (B) (13.73) 245.25 

 C.  CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
 Proceeds from borrowings 149.84 0.00 
 Repayment of borrowings (36.42) (64.83)
 Finance and other charges paid (8.34) (9.77)
 Net cash from/ (used in) financing activities (C) 105.08 (74.60)

 Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 548.69 370.96 
 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year (refer note 10 and also refer note iii below) 374.18 3.22
 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year (refer note 10 and also refer note iii below) 922.87 374.18
 Material accounting policies 2
 Notes to accounts form an integral part of standalone financial statements 1 to 49

Notes 	

 i. 	 The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method’ as set out in the Ind AS 7 on Statement of Cash Flows as notified under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as 
amended.   

 ii. 	 Refer note 16.2 for a reconciliation of changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

 iii. 	 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year includes an amount of ̀  374.18 lakh (PY ̀  3.22 lakh) and Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year includes ̀  899.59 lakh (PY ̀  374.18 lakh) 
which is exclusively for the projects and not for other purposes.

 iv. 	 Figures in brackets represents deductions/ outflows.

 v 	 Previous year’s figures have been regrouped wherever necessary.

As per our report of even date attached
For BD Jokhakar & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 104345W

Bhavik Jain Pallab Bhattacharya Raghu Palat
Partner Wholetime Director and CEO Director
Membership number 160166 DIN 00008277 DIN 00311994

Kishor Palkar Priyanka Shah
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

Mumbai, May 27, 2025 Mumbai, May 27, 2025

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

P, | PririsH NANDY commuNicATIONS LIMITED 
THE 32ND ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2025 

(n¥ lak) 
Particulars For the year ended Forthe year ended 

March 31,2025 March 31,2024 
A CASHFLOW GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 

Profit loss) before tax (13800) 20636 
Adjustment for 
Advances writen off an B42 
Depreciation and amortisation 3148 41 
Finance costs 834 07 
Impairment in value of investments 000 3330 
Property, plant and equipment writen off 328 033 
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 814 000 
Expected credit loss 319 319 
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment 009 000 
Trade payable balances writen back 016 1 
Interest on fixed deposit 842) 3850 523) EY 
Operating profi (fos) before adjustments ©950) 24403 
Adjusted for 
Other non-current financial assets ©) on 
Other non-current assets [OEE] asan 
Cinematic and television content - current 6579 4590 
Curent rade receivables wn 469) 
Other current financial assets 26780 @96.15) 
Movement in tax assets 216 @109) 
Other current assets 27.60 94) 
Curent trade payables (1s8.00) 39467 
Other current financial lsbilites 519 263 
Other current liabilities 41326 55684 j2y @7) 
Cash generated from operations B13 20031 
Direct taxes paid 000 000 
‘Net cash flow from operating activities (3) W734, 20031 

B. CASHFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Payment to acquire property, plant and equipment 39) ®7m 
Proceeds from property, plant and equipment 2125 000 
Proceeds from fixed deposits 916.68 74879 
Fixed deposits made. won 55000) 
Interest on fixed deposit 842 5523 
Net cash from’ (used in) investing activities (B) 73) 2525 

C. CASHFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Proceeds from borrowings 14984 000 
Repayment of borrowings G642) (©489) 
Finance and ofher charges paid ©31 ©m 
Net cash from’ (used in) financing activities (€) 10508 460) 

‘Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 548.69 37096 
(Cash and cash equivalents a the begiming of the financial year refer note 10 and also refer note ii below) 37418 32 
(Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year (refer note 10 and also refer note i below) 02287 37418 
Material accounting policies 2 
‘Notes to accounts form an integral part of standalone financial statements 1todo 

Notes 
i The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method" as set out in the Ind AS 7 on Statement of Cash Flows as notified under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 25 

amended. 
ii. Refer note 162 for a reconciliation of changes in ibiltes arising from financing activities 
ii. Cashand cash equivalents atthe beginning of the financial year includes an amount of 374.18 lak (PY € 3.22 lk) and Cash and cash equivalents atthe end ofthe financial year includes 899.59 lakh (PY 374.18 lak) 

which is exclusively for the projects and not for ofher purposes 
iv. Figures in brackets epresents deductions! outflows. 
© Previous year's figures have been regrouped wherever necessary. 

As per our report of even date atached 
For BD Jokhakar & Co. For and on bekalf ofthe Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No: 104345W. 

Bhavik Jain Pall Bhattacharya Raghu Palat 
Partner ‘Wholetime Director and CEO Director 
Membership number 160166 DIN 00008277 DING0311994 

Kishor Palkar Priyanka Shah 
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 

Mumbai, May 27, 2025 Mumbai, May 27, 2025
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Equity shares of face value of  ` 10 each (In ` lakh)

Year Note no Balance at the 
beginning of the 
reporting period 

Changes in equity share 
capital due to prior 

period errors

Restated balance at the 
beginning of the current/ 
previous reporting period

Changes in equity 
share capital during 

the period

Balance at the end 
of the reporting 

period 

Financial Year 2023-24 14  1,446.70 0.00 0.00 0.00  1,446.70 

Financial Year 2024-25 14  1,446.70 0.00 0.00 0.00  1,446.70 

B. OTHER EQUITY

(In ` lakh)

Particulars Reserves and surplus Total

Capital reserve Securities premium General reserves Retained earnings

As at March 31, 2023* 0.37 6,719.59 220.98 (1,049.92)  5,891.02 

Profit/ (loss) for the year ended March 31, 2024 0.00 0.00 0.00 218.68 218.68 

Other comprehensive income 0.00 0.00 0.00 (4.74) (4.74)

Total comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2024 0.00 0.00 0.00 213.94 213.94 

As at March 31, 2024* 0.37 6,719.59 220.98 (835.98)  6,104.96 

Profit/ (loss) for the year ended March 31, 2025 0.00 0.00 0.00 (97.14) (97.14)

Other comprehensive income 0.00 0.00 0.00 (0.84) (0.84)

Total comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2025 0.00 0.00 0.00 (97.98) (97.98)

As at March 31, 2025* 0.37 6,719.59 220.98 (933.96)  6,006.98 

*There are no changes in other equity due to prior period errors

Material accounting policies 2
Notes to accounts form an integral part of stanalone financial statements 1 to 49

As per our report of even date attached
For BD Jokhakar & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 104345W

Bhavik Jain Pallab Bhattacharya Raghu Palat
Partner Wholetime Director and CEO Director
Membership number 160166 DIN 00008277 DIN 00311994

Kishor Palkar Priyanka Shah
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

Mumbai, May 27, 2025 Mumbai, May 27, 2025
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NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.	 CORPORATE INFORMATION

	 Pritish Nandy Communications Limited (“the Company”) is a public company incorporated and 
domiciled in India. It was one of the first media and entertainment Company to go public in the 
year 2000, when it was listed on India’s two best known stock exchanges, Bombay Stock Exchange 
and National Stock Exchange. The registered office of the Company is situated at 87/88 Mittal 
Chambers, Nariman Point, Mumbai 400021. The Company is engaged in the business of production 
and exploitation of content including cinematographic films, TV serials and Digital Series etc. for 
worldwide exploitation in all formats.

	 These financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 were approved for issue by the Board 
of Directors on May 27, 2025.

2. 	 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

	 a. 	 Basis of accounting and statement of compliance

		  These standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian 
Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Ind AS’) as prescribed under Section 133 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read together with the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time.

	 b. 	 Basis of preparation

		  These standalone financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis adopting 
accrual basis of accounting except for certain financial assets and financial liabilities that are 
measured at fair value and defined benefit plan assets that are measured at fair value at the end 
of each reporting period as explained in the accounting policies below. The accounting policies 
have been applied consistently over all the periods presented in these financial statements.

	 c. 	 Rounding of amounts

		  These financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest 
lakh as per requirement of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, except when otherwise 
indicated.

	 d. 	 Significant estimates, judgements and assumptions

		  The preparation of financial statements is in conformity with Ind AS requires the management 
to make estimates, assumptions and exercise judgement in applying the accounting policies 
that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the end of these financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses for the years presented. The management believes that these estimates are prudent 
and reasonable and are based on management’s best knowledge of current events and actions. 
Actual results could differ from these estimates and difference between actual results and 
estimates are recognized in the period in which results are known or materialised. Information 
about critical judgements in applying accounting policies, as well as estimates and assumptions 
that have the most significant effect to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the 
next financial year, are included in the following notes:

		  i. 	 Measurement of defined benefit obligations

		  ii. 	 Measurement and likelihood of occurrence of contingencies

		  iii. 	 Recognition of deferred tax assets

		  iv. 	 Inventory valuation/ useful life of cinematic content

		  v. 	 Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment and impairment of Trade Receivables/ 
Advance for Content

	 e. 	 Current and non-current classification

		  These standalone financial statements are prepared and presented as per the requirements 
of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. All assets and liabilities have been classified 
and disclosed as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and 
other criteria set out in Schedule III. Based on the nature of products and the time between 
the rendering of services and their realization into cash and cash equivalents, the Company 
has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current - non-current 
classification of assets and liabilities.

	 f. 	 Property, plant and equipment

		  Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment 
losses, if any. Cost comprises of purchase price net of trade discounts and rebates, non-
refundable duties and taxes, any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working 
condition for its intended use. Cost also includes the initial estimate of decommissioning, 
restoration and similar liabilities, if any, borrowing cost directly attributable to acquisition/ 
construction of a qualifying asset up to the date the asset is ready for its intended use. 

		  Subsequent expenditure on property, plant and equipment after its purchase/ completion is 
capitalized only if such expenditure results in an increase in the future benefits from such 
asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance and the cost of the item can be 
measured reliably.

		  Spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment are recognized as property, plant and 
equipment, if they are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, for rental to 
others, or for administrative purposes and are expected to be used during more than one period.

		  Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

		  Depreciable amount for property, plant and equipment is the cost of an asset, or other amount 
substituted for cost, less its estimated residual value. Depreciation on property, plant and 
equipment is provided on the straight-line method over the useful lives of assets as prescribed 
under Part C of Schedule II of the Act.

		  Depreciation is calculated on a pro-rata basis from the date of acquisition/ installation till the 
date, the assets are sold or disposed off. Depreciation on improvement to leave and license 
premises is calculated over the period of leave and license. 

		  The useful life is for the whole of the asset, except where cost of the part of the asset is 
significant to the total cost of the asset and useful life of that part is different from the useful 
life of the remaining asset, useful life of that significant part (“Component”) is determined 
separately and the depreciable amount of the said Component is allocated on systematic basis 
to each accounting period during the useful life of the asset.

Assets Useful life

Office equipment 5 years

Computer equipment 3 years

Furniture and fixtures 10 years

Motor vehicles (Car) 8 years

		  The residual values and useful lives of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each 
financial year end and adjusted if appropriate.

		  The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is de-recognized on disposal 
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss 
arising from the de-recognition of an item of property, plant and equipment on disposal is 
measured as the difference between the net disposal in proceeds and the carrying amount of the 
item and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the item is de-recognized.

	 g. 	 Impairment of property, plant and equipment

		  The carrying amounts of the Company’s property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each 
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If there are indicators 
of impairment, an assessment is made to determine whether the asset’s carrying value exceeds 
its recoverable amount. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an 
individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to 
which the asset belongs. 

		  Impairment is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss whenever the carrying amount of an 
asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the 
higher of net selling price i.e. fair value less costs to sell, and value in use. In assessing value 
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current assessment of the time value of money and risks specific to 
the asset.

		  After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its 
remaining useful life. 

		  If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be 
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized, the reversal 
of the previously recognized impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss section of the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 h. 	 Leases

		  The Company has adopted Ind AS 116-Leases effective April 1, 2019, using the modified 
retrospective method. The Company has applied the standard to its leases with the cumulative 
impact recognized on the date of initial application (April 1, 2019).

		  The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance 
of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease, if 
fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the 
arrangement convey a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified 
in an arrangement.

		  As a Lessee

		  The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for premises. The Company, at 
the inception of a contract, assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, 
or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a 
time in exchange for a consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control 
the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

		  i. 	 the contract involves the use of an identified asset

		  ii. 	 the Company has substantially all the economic benefits from use of the asset through 
the period of the lease and

		  iii. 	 the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset

		  The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement 
date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of 
the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, 
plus any initial direct costs incurred less any lease incentives received.

		  The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the 
commencement date to the end of the lease term.

		  The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not 
paid at the commencement date. The lease payments shall be discounted using the interest 
rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily 
determined, the Company shall use the incremental borrowing rate.

		  The lease liability is subsequently re-measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect 
interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.

		  The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term 
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company 
recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense over the lease term.

	 i. 	 Cash and cash equivalents

		  Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents comprise of 
all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of 
acquisition, that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to 
insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash 
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposit, as defined above.

	 j. 	 Inventory

		  i. 	 Cinematic content

			   The cinematic content has been valued on the following basis
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I Incomplete cinematic 
content (Unfinished)

: �at lower of allocated/ identified cost or net 
realizable value.

II Completed cinematic content 
(Unamortized /Unexploited)

: at lower of unamortized allocated cost as 
estimated by the management depending on 
the genre, nature and contents of the cinematic 
content or net realizable value.

			   The Company allocates cost of production amongst Global Theatrical Rights, Global 
Broadcasting Rights, Music Rights, Global Streaming Rights and Emerging Rights and 
IPR/ Residual Rights on an equitable basis.

			   Basis of amortization of allocated costs

			   i. 	 Global Theatrical Rights

1st  
release

2nd  
release

3rd  
release 

80% 10% 10%

			   ii. 	 Global Broadcasting Rights

1st 
broadcast

2nd 
broadcast

3rd 
broadcast

4th 
broadcast

5th 
broadcast

50% 20% 10% 10% 10%

			   iii. 	 Music Rights: @ 100% on release.

			   iv. 	 Global streaming rights and emerging platforms:

				�    Amortized on the basis of percentage of revenue earned against the total expected 
revenue over the period of useful economic life.

			   v. 	� IPR/ Residual rights: Carried forward till IPR survives and remains with the 
Company and has a remaining useful life as per management evaluation with a 
ceiling capped at 40 years.

			   Notes

			   i. 	� The production/ acquiring costs are amortized on the above basis by the 
Company. The production costs are revenue costs and are treated as such for the 
purposes of taxation.

			   ii. 	� No unamortized costs are retained once the entire rights in respect of the 
cinematic content are sold out on an outright basis.

		  ii. 	 Television content

The television content has been valued on the following basis

I. �Unexploited television content : at lower of average of allocated cost or 
net realizable value.

II. �Unfinished television content  : at lower of average of allocated cost or 
net realizable value.

III. Production property : at lower of allocated cost or net realizable 
value.

IV. �Exploited television content is amortized at lower of unamortized cost as 
estimated by the management on the following basis or net realizable value

Particulars 1st

Telecast 
2nd

Telecast 
3rd

Telecast 
Residual

Value

Entertainment content 50% 30% 15% 5%

Current affairs and news based content 95% - - 5%

Commissioned content 100% - - -

			   No unamortized costs shall be carried forward beyond a period of 10 years.

			   Notes

			   i. 	� The Company amortises production costs in respect of television content once 
telecast and further retelecastable on the basis of the nature and contents of the 
television content and the expected number of telecast as per the chart depicted 
above.

			   ii. 	� The production costs are amortized as per the above referred policy followed by 
the Company.

			   iii. 	 The Company retains one copy of its own television content for record purpose.

	 k. 	 Financial Instruments

		  A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a 
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

		  i. 	 Financial Assets: Classification

			   The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

			   I. 	�� Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other 
comprehensive income, or through profit or loss)

			   II. 	 Those measured at amortized cost.

				�    The classification depends on the business model of the Company for managing 
financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

				�    For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in other 

comprehensive income or profit or loss. For investments in debt instruments, this 
will depend on the business model in which the investment is held.

				�    For investments in equity instruments, method of recognition will depend on 
whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial 
recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other 
comprehensive income.

		  ii. 	 Recognition and measurement

			   I. 	 Initial recognition

				�    Financial assets are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument. In the case of financial assets that are 
not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, financial assets are recognized 
initially at fair value plus, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition 
of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value 
through profit or loss are expensed in the statement of profit and loss.

			   II. 	 Subsequent measurement

				    After initial recognition, financial assets are measured at

				    a. 	 Financial assets carried at amortized cost

				    b. 	 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

				    c. 	 Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss;

		  iii. 	 Debt instrument

			   Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business 
model for managing the assets and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are 
three measurement categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

			   I. 	 Measured at amortized cost

				�    Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flow where those 
cash flows represent solely payment of principal and interest are measured at 
amortized cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included in interest 
income using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. The amortization of EIR 
and loss arising from impairment, if any is recognized in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss.

			   II. 	 Measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

				�    Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is 
achieved by both, selling financial assets and collecting contractual cash flows 
that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at 
fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI).

				�    Fair value movements are recognized in the OCI. Interest income measured using 
the EIR method and impairment losses, if any, are recognized in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. 

				�    On de-recognition, cumulative gain/ (loss) previously recognized in OCI is 
reclassified from the equity to other income in the statement of profit and loss.

			   III. 	 Measured at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL).

				�    A financial asset not classified as either amortized cost or FVTOCI, is classified 
as Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL). Such financial assets are measured 
at fair value with all changes in fair value, including interest income and dividend 
income if any, recognized as other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

		  iv. 	 Equity instruments

			   The Company subsequently measures all investments in equity instruments other 
than those in subsidiary companies, at fair value. The management of the Company 
has elected to present fair value gains and losses on such equity investments in other 
comprehensive income, and there is no subsequent reclassification of these fair value 
gains and losses to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

			   Dividends from such investments continue to be recognized in profit or loss as other 
income when the right to receive payment is established. Changes in the fair value of 
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss.

			   Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured 
at FVTOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.

			   Investment in subsidiaries is carried at cost less impairment loss in accordance with Ind 
AS 27 on “Separate Financial Statements”.

		  v. 	 Impairment of financial assets

			   The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses (ECL) 
associated with its financial assets carried at amortized cost and FVTOCI. Note 42 
details how the Company assesses the impairment losses.

			   For trade and lease receivable only, the Company applies the simplified approach 
permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses 
to be recognized from initial recognition of such receivables.

		  vi. 	 De-recognition of financial assets

			   A financial asset is de-recognized only when the Company

			   I. 	 has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

			   II. 	� retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial, asset, but 
assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

			�   Where the Company has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has 
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such 
cases, the financial asset is de-recognized through statement of profit and loss or other 
comprehensive income as applicable.
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			�   Where the Company has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership 
of the financial asset, the financial asset is not de-recognized. 

			�   Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all 
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is de-recognized 
if the Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company 
retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognized to the extent 
of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

		  vii. 	 Financial liabilities

			   I. 	 Classification as debt or equity:

				�    Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified 
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the 
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

			   II. 	 Initial recognition and measurement:

				�    Financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to 
the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities are initially 
measured at the fair value.

			   III. 	 Subsequent measurement:

				�    Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the 
effective interest rate method. Financial liabilities carried at fair value through 
profit or loss are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value recognized 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

			   IV. 	 De-recognition:

				�    A financial liability is de-recognized when the obligation specified in the 
contracts discharged, cancelled or expires.

		  viii. 	 Off-setting financial instruments

			   Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance 
Sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and 
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events 
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, 
insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

	 l. 	 Borrowings and borrowing costs

 		  Borrowings

		  Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings 
are subsequently measured at amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of 
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognized in profit and loss over the period of 
borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities 
are recognized as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all 
the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. 

		  Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contracts 
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial 
liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and consideration paid, 
including non-cash asset transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognized in Statement of Profit 
and Loss as other income/ (expense).

		  Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right 
to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

		  Borrowing costs

		  General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that 
is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are 
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or 
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowing spending 
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for 
capitalization. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

	 m. 	 Revenue recognition

		  The Company derives revenues primarily from sale of owned content and commissioned 
content/ web series.

		  Effective April 1, 2018, The Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 
2018 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notified Ind AS 115 “Revenue from 
Contracts with Customers” related to revenue recognition which replaces all existing revenue 
recognition standards and provides a single, comprehensive model for all contracts with 
customers. The revised standard contains principles to determine the measurement of revenue 
and timing of when it is to be recognized.

		  Revenue is recognized on satisfaction of performance obligation upon transfer of control 
of promised content to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company 
expects to receive in exchange for those contents.

		  Performance obligation may be satisfied over time or at a point in time. Performance 
obligations satisfied over time if any one of the following criteria is met. In such cases, revenue 
is recognized over time

		  i. 	 The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the 
Company’s performance; or

		  ii. 	 The Company’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as 
the asset is created or enhanced; or 

		  iii. 	 The Company’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the 
Company and the Company has an enforceable right to payment for performance 
completed to date.

		  For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is 
recognized at the point in time at which the performance obligation is satisfied.

		  The following criteria are applied by the Company in respect of various components of revenue 

Content produced/ acquired Criteria for Revenue recognition

a. 	 Commissioned content/ web 
series

On the date of delivery of contracted deliverables/ 
on completion of performance obligation

b. 	 Sponsored content When the relevant content is delivered.

c. 	 Cinematic content

	 i. 	 Under production No income is recognised.

	 ii. 	� Complete but not 
released 

To the extent of so much of the estimated income 
on release as bears to the whole of the estimated 
income in the same proportion as the actual 
recoveries/ realisations/ confirmed contracts bear 
to the total expected realisations.

	 iii. 	 Completed and released 
during the year

On release/ delivery of release prints except 
income, if any, already recognized as c (ii) above

	 iv. 	 Complete but not 
released other than 
theatrical release

On the basis of contracts/ deal memo and 
delivery of deliverables.

d. 	 Music rights On its release or exploitation contract.

Other income Revenue recognition

Interest income On accrual basis, using the effective interest 
method for financial assets measured at 
amortized cost and at FVTOCI.

	 n. 	 Income tax

		  Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax.

		  i. 	 Current tax

			   Current tax is the amount of income tax payable in respect of taxable profit for a period. 
Current tax for current and prior periods is recognized at the amount expected to be paid 
to or recovered from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date. The Company determines the 
tax as per the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961 and other rules specified thereunder.

			   Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect 
to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and 
establishes provisions where appropriate. Current tax is recognized in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss except to the extent that the tax relates to items recognized directly in 
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

		  ii. 	 Deferred tax

			   Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized using the Balance Sheet approach for 
all temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their 
carrying amounts in the financial statements except when the deferred tax arises from 
the initial recognition of an asset or liability that effects neither accounting nor taxable 
profit or loss at the time of transition. 

			   Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that 
it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized. 

			   Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have 
been enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date and are expected to 
apply to taxable income in the year in which those temporary differences are expected to 
be recovered or settled.

			   Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the  carry 
forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax  assets are 
recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against 
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits 
and unused tax losses can be utilized.

			   Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are 
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits  will 
allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

			   Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss, is recognized outside 
profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are 
recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly inequity. 

			   Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right 
exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes 
relate to the same taxable Company and the same taxation authority.

	 o. 	 Earnings per share

		  Earnings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss (excluding other 
comprehensive income) for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted 
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Earnings considered in 
ascertaining the EPS is the net profit for the period and any attributed tax thereto for the period. 

		  For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year 
attributable to equity shareholders is adjusted for after income tax effect of interest and other 
finance costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares and the weighted average number 
of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity 
shares.
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the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities are initially during the year income, if any, already recognized as i) above 
‘measured at he fir value. 

I. Subsequent mezsurement jv Complete but mot| On the basis of contracts’ deal memo and 
Financial ibilfes are subsequently measured at amortized cost wing the released other than | delivery of deliverables. 
effective interest rate method. Financial lsbiltie carried at far value through theatrical release 

Ee Stent of Pam ene mages profit or loss are mesure at ir 4 Musicrights On its ease or exploitation contact. 

IV. Derecognition: Ci 
Interest income On accrual basis, using the effective interest A financial lability is de-recogaized when the obligation specified in the tn or Boe” ae ed at 

contracts discharged, cancelled or expires. amortized cost and at FVTOC. 
vii. OF seting financial instruments I — 

Financial assets nd lsbiltes are offset and the net mount i reported in the Balance Tax expense comprise of reat and deferred ax. 
Sheet where there i a legally enforcesbl right to offset the recoguized amounts and 

there is an intention to sele on net basi or realize the aset and setl the lisblity [Rer—— 
simnltaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events 
and must be enforceable in the nomial course of business nd in the event of default, Gurren tax is the mount of income ta payable i respect of taxable profit for period. 
‘solvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty. Gurren tax fo curent and prior periods is recogaized at the amount expected to be paid 

0 or recovered from the tax authorities, using the tax ates and tax aw that have been 
1 Bomowings and bomowing cost enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet dae. The Company determines the 

B tax as per the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961 and other mls specified thereunder orowings 
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax retums with respect Bortowings ar iil recognized at fir value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings To steaions 1» which applicable tn regulations ato subject fo Herpretation snd 

are subsequently measured at amortized cost. Any diffrence between the proceeds (ue of establishes provisions where appropriate. Current tax is recognized in the Statement of 
{ransaction costs) and the redemption amount i recognized in profit and loss over the period of Profit and Loss except t th extent that the tax relates to ems recognized directly in borowings sing the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilites othe comprehensive come or directly i equity 
are secogaized ss transaction costs of the loan to the extent that t is probable that some or all v 
he facility ill be drawn down. n thi case, the fe is defered unt th draw dows occurs. Gi Defemedtax 
Bortowings are removed fom the balance sheet when the obligation specified inthe contracts Deferred te assets and lables ar recognized using the Balance Sheet approach for 
discharged, cancelled or expired. The diffrence between the caning amount of a financial ll temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and Libiltes ad their 
Liailty that has been extinguished or transfered to another party and consideration paid, carrying amounts in the financial statements except when the defered tax arises from 
including non-cash aset transferred or lsbltes assumed, i recognized in Statement of Profit he intial recognition of an asset or liability that fects neither accounting nor taxable 
‘and Loss as other income! (expense). ‘profit or loss at the time of transition. 

Borrowings are classified as current bilities unless the Company kas an conditional ight ‘Deferred tax asset are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that 
1 defer stlmsent ofthe ibility for at east 12 months afer the reporting dte. itis no longe probable tht the related tax benefit will be realized. 
Borowing costs Deferred tax asset and lisilfie are measured using tax rates and tax aw that have 

een enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date and are expected to 
General and specific borrowing costs that are directly atibutable to the acquisition, apply to taxable income i the ear in which those temporary differences ae expected to construction o production of a qualifying asst are capitalised durin the period of tme that Be 
i required to complete and prepare the aset for is intended us or sale. Qualifying assets are 
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready fr thei intended use or Deferred tax assets ae recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry 
sale. Investment income eamed on the temporary investment of specific borrowing spending forward of umised tax credit and any mised tax losses. Deferred fax assets are 
thei expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs elighble for recognized to the extent tht it is probable that taxable profit will be available against 
capitalization. Other bomowing costs are expensed inthe period in which they are incurred. “which the deductible temporary differences, and th cay forward of unused tax credits 

and unused tax losses can be utlzed. m. Revenue recoguifion 
Unrecognized defemed tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are 

The Company derives revemnes primarily from sale of ovned conten and commissioned recognized to the extent that it has become probable that ute taxable profits will 
content! web series. allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 
Effective April 1, 2018, The Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, Deferred tax relating to tems recogaized outside profit or loss, is recognized outside 
2018 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notified Ind AS 115 “Revenue from rte los (the ths comrebens conor equity) Deferred tax tems are Contracts with Customers” related to revenne recognition which replaces aI existing revenme Det coatio te bo ebeiiog tmmaacton Stes OL or docs meme 
recognition standards and provides single, comprehensive model fo all contacts with 
Customers. The revised standard contains principles to determine the measurement of revenme Deferred tax asets and deferred tax lisbliies are offset if a legally enforceable right 
and timing of whenit i to be recognized. exists to st off current tax assets against cument tax lizbiltes and th deferred taxes 

relat to the same taxable Comapany and the same taxation authority: Revenue is recognized on satisfaction of performance obligation upon transfer of control 
of promised content to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company o Eamings per share 
expects to receive in exchange fo hose contents. 

Eamings per share (EPS) is calulated by dividing the net profit or loss (excluding other 
Performance obligation may be satisfied over time or at a point in time. Performance comprehensive income) for the period afrbutabl to equity shareholders by the weighted 
obligations satisfied over time f any one of the following criteria is met. I such cases, evenme average munber of equity shares outstanding during te period. Eamings considered in 
is tecoguized over time ascertaining the EPS i the net profit fo the period and any airbuted tax thereto for the period. 
i The costomer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year 

Company's performance; or attibuable to equity shareholders is adjusted fo afer income tx effec of interest and other 
The Compan » tthe ct ) finance costs associated with dilutve potential equity shares and the weighted average number 

in apany’s performance creates or enhances an ass ‘customer controls as of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equit 
the asset is created or enhanced: or Shares, ding during the ye 4 P equity 

Gi. The Company's performance does mot create an asset with an alletive use to the 
Company’ and the Company has an enforceable right to payment for performance 
completed to date. 

For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are mot mel, revenue is 
tecogaized atthe point in time a which the performance obligation i satisfied.
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NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

	 p. 	 Foreign currency transactions

		  i. 	 Functional and presentation currency

			   Items included in the Financial Statements of the Company are measured using the 
currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates 
(‘functional currency’). The Financial Statements of the Company are presented in 
Indian currency (INR), which is also the functional and presentation currency of the 
Company.

		  ii. 	 Transactions and balances

			   Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the 
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary items denominated in foreign 
currencies at the year-end are restated at closing rates.

			   Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in foreign 
currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

			   Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated 
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation 
differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair 
value gain/ (loss). 

			   Foreign exchange gain/ (loss) resulting from the settlement of such transactions and 
from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies 
at year end exchange rates are generally recognized in profit or loss.

			   Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are 
presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss, within finance costs. All other foreign 
exchange gain/ (loss) are presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a net basis 
within other income/ (expense).

	 q. 	 Employee benefits: Retirement and other employee benefits

		  i. 	 Short-term employee benefits

			   All employee benefits are payable within 12 months of service such as salaries, wages, 
bonus, medical benefits etc. are recognized in the year in which the employees render 
the related service and are presented as current employee benefit obligations.

			   Termination benefits are recognized as and when expense is incurred. Short term 
employee benefits are provided at undiscounted amount during the accounting period 
based on service rendered by the employees. Compensation payable under voluntary 
retirement scheme is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year of 
settlement.

		  ii. 	 Defined contribution plan

			   The Company’s contributions paid or payable during the year to the provident fund are 
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in accordance with Ind AS 19 ‘Employee 
benefits’ over the period during which benefit is derived from the employees’ services.

		  iii. 	 Defined benefit plans

			   The Company contributes to Employees Group Saving Linked Insurance Scheme with 
Life Insurance Corporation of India to cover its liability towards employee gratuity. 
The expense is recognized at the present value of the amount payable determined using 
actuarial gratuity report.

			   Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is computed on the basis of present 
value of amount payable determined using actuarial valuation techniques as per 
projected unit credit method at the end of each financial year.

			   The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the 
estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting 
period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related 
obligation.

			   It is recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year in which 
the employee has rendered services.

		  iv.	 Other long term employment benefits

			   Re-measurement cost of net defined benefit liability, which comprises of actuarial gain 
and losses, return on plan assets (excluding interest), and the effect of the asset ceiling (if 
any, excluding interest) are recognized in other comprehensive income in the period in 
which they occur. The employees of the Company are not eligible for leave encashment.

	 r.	 Events after reporting date

		  Where events occurring after the Balance Sheet date provide evidence of conditions that 
existed at the end of reporting period, the impact of such events is adjusted within the financial 
statements. Otherwise, events after the Balance Sheet date of material size or nature are only 
disclosed.

	 s. 	 Provisions, and Contingent Liabilities

		  The Company recognizes provisions when a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a 
result of a past event exists and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits will be required to settle such obligation and the amount of such obligation can be 
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses.

		  If the effect of time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax 
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, 
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

		  A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence 
will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events 
beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is 
not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent 
liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized 
because it cannot be measured reliably. The contingent liability is not recognized in books of 
account but its existence is disclosed in financial statements

	 t. 	 Segment Reporting

		  Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the reporting provided to the chief 
operating decision maker. The chief operating decision maker of the Company consists of the 
whole-time director who assesses the financial performance and position of the Company, and 
makes strategic decisions. Refer note 41 for segment information presented.
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3. 	 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

 (In ` lakh) 
Particulars Property, Plant And Equipment

 Furniture 
and 

fixtures 

 Vehicles*  Office 
equipment 

 Computer 
equipment 

 Total 

Gross carrying value, at cost
As at March 31, 2023  2.17  225.97  24.63  14.56  267.33 
Additions during the year 2023-24 0.00 0.00  8.42 0.35  8.77 
Disposal/ transfer during the year 2023-24 0.00 0.00 9.56 0.20 9.76 
As at March 31, 2024  2.17  225.97  23.49  14.71  266.34 
Additions during the year 2024-25 0.00 0.00  2.56 3.12  5.68 
Disposal/ transfer during the year 2024-25 0.00 54.68 11.75 1.56 67.99 
As at March 31, 2025  2.17  171.29  14.30  16.27  204.02 
Accumulated depreciation/ amortisation
As at March 31, 2023  1.77  38.77  15.06  10.10  65.70 
Charges for the year 2023-24  0.10 26.90  3.49  1.92  32.41 
Disposal/ transfer during 2023-24 0.00 0.00 9.23 0.20  9.43 
As at March 31, 2024  1.87  65.67  9.32  11.82  88.68 
Charges for the year 2024-25  0.07 25.36  4.10  1.95  31.48 
Disposal/ transfer during 2024-25 0.00 19.28 8.49 0.33  28.11 
As at March 31, 2025  1.94  71.75  4.93  13.44  92.05 

Net book value
As at March 31, 2024  0.30  160.30  14.17  2.89  177.66 
As at March 31, 2025  0.23  99.54  9.37  2.83  111.97 
*Refer note 16 and 18 of borrowings.

4. 	 NON CURRENT INVESTMENT

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars As at 
 March 31, 2025

As at 
 March 31, 2024

Investments in equity instruments

Unquoted

Investments measured at amortised cost

i. 	 In wholly owned subsidiaries 

 	 PNC Wellness Limited

 	� 660,000 (PY: 660,000) equity shares (Face value ` 10) 291.00 291.00 

 	� Less: Impairment in the value of investment (291.00) (291.00)

 	 Total (a) 0.00 0.00 

ii. 	 In subsidiaries 

 	 PNC Digital Limited

 	 498,900 (PY: 498,900) equity shares (Face value ` 10) 90.20 90.20 

 	 (Extent of holding 99.78%)

 	� Less: Impairment in the value of investment till 
beginning of the year

(70.94) (37.55)

 	� Less: Impairment in the value of investment for 
current year

0.00 (33.39)

 	 Total (b) 19.26 19.26 

Total (a) + (b) 19.26 19.26 

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 19.26 19.26 

Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments (361.94) (361.94)

5.	 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars As at 
 March 31, 2025

As at 
 March 31, 2024

Unsecured, considered good

a. 	 Security deposits 1.31  1.05 

b. 	 Others (Including amount referred in note 35 (b))  338.82  338.82 

 	 Provision for expected credit loss (12.77) (9.57)

Total  327.36  330.30 

6. 	 INCOME TAX ASSETS (NET)

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars As at 
 March 31, 2025

As at 
 March 31, 2024

Income tax 104.29 125.92

Total 104.29 125.92

7. 	 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars As at 
 March 31, 2025

As at 
 March 31, 2024

Capital advances  230.58 0.00

Advances other than capital advances

Other advances

a. 	 Advance for content (refer note 36) 1,946.30  2,006.12 

b.	 Deferred revenue  0.43 0.00

c. 	 Prepaid expenses 0.00  0.02 

Total  2,177.31  2,006.14 

8. 	 INVENTORIES 

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars As at 
 March 31, 2025

As at 
 March 31, 2024

Cinematic and television content 

Unamortised content  3,918.58  3,924.47 

Unexploited content  1,537.61  1,597.51 

Total  5,456.19  5,521.98 

Refer note 37 of financial statement and 2 (j) of accounting policies for method of valuation 

9. 	 TRADE RECEIVABLES

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars As at 
 March 31, 2025

As at 
 March 31, 2024

Considered good, unsecured  2.66  130.38 

Total  2.66  130.38 

9.1 For F Y 2024-25

(In ` lakh)
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of 

payment 
Total

Not 
due

Less 
than 6 

months

6 months 
- 1 year

1-2 
Years

2-3 
Years

More 
than 3 
Years

i. 	 Undisputed trade receivables – 
considered good

2.66 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.66

ii. 	 Undisputed trade receivables – which 
have significant increase in credit risk

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

iii. 	 Undisputed trade receivables – credit 
impaired

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

iv. 	 Disputed trade receivables considered 
good

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

v. 	 Disputed trade receivables – which 
have significant increase in credit risk

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

vi. 	 Disputed trade receivables – credit 
impaired

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total 2.66 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.66
There are no unbilled receivable as at year ended March 31, 2025.

9.2 For F Y 2023-24

(In ` lakh)
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of 

payment 
Total

Not 
due

Less 
than 6 
months

6 months 
- 1 year

1-2 
Years

2-3 
Years

More 
than 3 
Years

i. 	 Undisputed trade receivables – 
considered good

0.00 68.04 62.34 0.00 0.00 0.00 130.38

ii. 	 Undisputed trade receivables – which 
have significant increase in credit risk

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

iii.	 Undisputed trade receivables – credit 
impaired

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

iv.	 Disputed trade receivables considered 
good

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

v.	 Disputed trade receivables – which 
have significant increase in credit risk

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

vi.	 Disputed trade receivables – credit 
impaired

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total 0.00 68.04 62.34 0.00 0.00 0.00 130.38
There are no unbilled receivable as at year ended March 31, 2024.
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10. 	 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

((In ` lakh))

Particulars As at 
 March 31, 2025

As at 
 March 31, 2024

 Balances with banks

 In current accounts* 922.71 374.03

 Fixed deposits with maturity of less than three months 0.16 0.15

Total 922.87 374.18

*This includes ` 899.59 lakh (PY ` 374.18 lakh) which is exclusively for the projects and not for other 
purposes.

11. 	 BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

((In ` lakh))

Particulars As at 
 March 31, 2025

As at 
 March 31, 2024

Bank deposits with original maturity of more than three 
months but less than twelve months

12.61 11.91

Total 12.61 11.91

12. 	 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

((In ` lakh))

Particulars As at 
 March 31, 2025

As at 
 March 31, 2024

Unsecured, considered good

a. 	 Security deposits  33.26  29.01 

b. 	 Bank deposits having remaining matuirity of less than 
12 months

698.00 603.68

c. 	 Advances to related parties (refer note 31)  22.78  20.80 

d. 	 Income accrued  121.12  394.46 

e. 	 Others  0.08  0.77 

Total  875.24  1,048.72 

13. 	 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

((In ` lakh))

Particulars As at 
 March 31, 2025

As at 
 March 31, 2024

Advances other than capital advances

a. 	 Other Advances  13.05  9.42 

b. 	 Advances for ongoing projects  49.76  75.35 

c. 	 Balance with government authority 50.64 54.01

d. 	 Prepaid expense  5.22  8.33 

Total  118.67  147.11 

14. 	 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

((In ` lakh))

Particulars As at 
 March 31, 2025

As at 
 March 31, 2024

Authorised 

20,000,000 (PY: 20,000,000 ) equity shares of `10 Each  2,000.00  2,000.00 

Total  2,000.00  2,000.00 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid 

14,467,000 (PY: 14,467,000) equity shares of `10 each  1,446.70  1,446.70 

14.1 	 Reconciliation of number of shares (equity)

( In ` Lakh, except no. of shares data)

 As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Number of 
shares

 Amount Number of 
shares

 Amount

Number of Shares outstanding as at 
the beginning of the year 

14,467,000  1,446.70 14,467,000  1,446.70 

Number of Shares outstanding as at 
the end of the year 

14,467,000  1,446.70 14,467,000  1,446.70 

14.2	 Rights, preferences, restrictions of equity shares

	 The Company has only one class of equity shares having a face value of ` 10 per share. Each holder of 
equity share is entitled to one vote per share.

	 The equity shares are entitled to dividend proposed by Board of Directors subject to approval of 
the share holders in the Annual General Meeting except in case of interim dividend. In the event of 
liquidation of the Company, holder of equity shares are entitled to receive remaining assets  of the 
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to their share holding.

14.3 	 Shareholders holding more than 5 per cent of total Equity Shares of company

Name of the shareholders As at March 31 , 2025 As at March 31 , 2024

Number of 
shares

% held Number of 
shares

% held 

Ideas.com India Pvt Ltd 2,418,465 16.72 2,337,475 16.15

Late Mr Pritish Nandy* 2,143,638 14.82 2,143,638 14.82

Artinvest India Pvt Ltd 1,608,978 11.12 1,608,978 11.12

Mrs Bharati K Morarka 1,495,659 10.34 1,495,659 10.34

	 *Transmission of shares to legal heirs is under process and pending as on the reporting date

	 During the period of five years immediately preceding the year March 31, 2025, The Company has 
not issued any bonus shares or shares for consideration other than cash and also the company has not 
bought back any shares during this period.

	 The Company has not reserved any shares for issue under options and contracts/ commitments for the 
sale of shares/ disinvestment as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

	 As per the records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other 
declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding 
represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

14.4	 Promoter’s shareholdings

Promoter name Shares held by Promoters 
at the end of the year 

Shares held by Promoters at 
the beginning of the year 

% change 
during the 

yearNumber of 
shares

% of total 
shares 

Number of 
shares

% of total 
shares 

Late Mr Pritish Nandy*  2,143,638 14.82  2,143,638 14.82 0.00
Mrs Rina Pritish Nandy  625,000 4.32  625,000 4.32 0.00
Ms Rangita Pritish Nandy  643,500 4.45  643,500 4.45 0.00
Ms Ishita Pritish Nandy  575,610 3.98  575,610 3.98 0.00
Ideas.com India Pvt Ltd  2,418,465 16.72  2,337,415 16.15 0.57
Artinvest India Pvt Ltd  1,608,978 11.12  1,608,978 11.12 0.00
Total  8,015,191  55.41  7,934,141  54.84 

	 *Transmission of shares to legal heirs is under process and pending as on the reporting date

15. 	 OTHER EQUITY

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars As at 
 March 31, 2025

As at 
 March 31, 2024

Reserves and surplus

Capital reserve

Balance at beginning of the year 0.37 0.37

Balance at the end of the year 0.37 0.37

Securities premium 

Balance at beginning of the year 6,719.59 6,719.59

Add: Addition during the year 0.00 0.00

Balance at the end of the year 6,719.59 6,719.59

General reserves

Balance at beginning of the year 220.98 220.98

Add: Addition during the year 0.00 0.00

Balance at the end of the year 220.98 220.98

Retained earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year (835.98) (1,049.92)

Add: Profit/ (loss) for the year (97.14) 218.68 

Add: Other comprehensive income (0.84) (4.74)

Balance at end of year (933.96) (835.98)

Total 6,006.98 6,104.96

   Nature and purpose:
   a.	 Capital Reserve:
	 This represents profit earned by the Company before receipt of incorporation certificate.
   b.	 Securities premium:
	 Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in 

accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 
   c.	 General reserve
 	 General reserve represents the amount appropriated out of retained earnings pursuant to the earlier 

provisions of Companies Act, 1956. 
  d.	 Retained earnings
	 Retained earnings are the profits/ losses that Company has earned/ incurred till date, as reduced by 

transfer to reserves, dividend or other distribution paid to the share holders and transfer from/ to OCI.
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16. 	 BORROWINGS

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars As at 
 March 31, 2025

As at 
 March 31, 2024

Secured 

Term loans 

From other than banks

a. 	 Loan from Mercedes Benz Financial Services 143.96 0.00

 	 Secured against the hypothecation of vehicles 

b. 	 Loan from Daimler Financial Services 0.00 76.39

	 Secured against the hypothecation of vehicles.

Total 143.96 76.39

16.1 	 Terms of repayment in respect of borrowings as referred in note 16 and 18

Particulars Number of 
instalments

Rate of 
interest

EMI (In ` 
lakh)

Amount 
outstanding 
as on March 
31, 2025 (In 

` lakh)

Payable 
upto

a. 	 Mercedes Benz Financial 
Services 

	 Loan 1 36 9.74% 0.67 62.81 April-2028

	 Loan 2 36 9.72% 1.07 87.04 April-2028

b. 	 Daimler Financial Services

	 Loan 1 36 7.91%  0.57  43.11 April-2025

	 Loan 2 36 7.72%  0.49  33.27 April-2025

16.2 	 Amendment to Ind AS 7

	 Amendment to Ind AS 7 effective from April 1, 2017 require the entities to provide disclosures that 
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, 
including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes, suggesting inclusion of a 
reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the Balance Sheet for liabilities arising 
from financing activities, to meet disclosure requirement. Accordingly, the company has given the said 
disclosure as below:

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars Note 
number

Opening 
balance as 
on April 1, 

2024

Financing 
cash flow 
changes

Non cash flow changes Closing 
balance 
as on 

March 
31, 2025

Effect of 
changes 

in foreign 
exchange 

rates

Effect of 
effective 
interest 
rate and 
Others*

Non-current liabilities 

- Borrowings 16 76.39 67.57 0.00 0.00 143.96 

Current liabilities 

- Borrowings 18 36.42 45.85 0.00 0.00 82.27 

Interest expense and other 
borrowing costs 

27 8.34 0.00 0.00 8.34 

Interest expense and other 
borrowing costs paid 

(8.34) 0.00 0.00 (8.34)

Total 112.81 113.42 0.00 0.00 226.23 

 *Amount of ` 66 is not reflected due to conversion of financial statement in ` lakh. 

17. 	 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET) 

(In ` lakh)

 Particulars As at 
 March 31, 2025

As at 
 March 31, 2024

 a. 	 Deferred tax liabilities 

 	 Depreciation on property, plant, & equipment (10.17) (6.57)

 	 Total (a) (10.17) (6.57)

 b. 	 Reversal of deferred tax (assets)/ liabilities 

  	 Unamortised content   1,076.62  1,113.64 

 	 Provision for expected credit loss (3.22) 0.00 

 	 Ind AS effects of security deposit and processing fees (0.01) 0.00 

  	 Impairment in the value of investments  (91.10) (94.09)

 	 Total (b) 982.29  1,019.55 

 Total (a + b)  972.12  1,012.98 

18. 	 BORROWINGS

(In ` lakh)

Particulars As at 
 March 31, 2025

As at 
 March 31, 2024

Secured

From other than bank  82.27  36.42 

(Secured against the hypothecation of vehicles)

Total  82.27  36.42 

Refer note 16.1 and 16.2 of notes to the standalone financial statements

19. 	 TRADE PAYABLE

(In ` lakh)

Particulars As at 
 March 31, 2025

As at 
 March 31, 2024

Total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small 
enterprises*

 33.12  12.89 

Total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises

 269.74  448.13 

Total  302.86  461.02 

*Refer note 32 of notes to the standalone financial statements for Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
disclosures

19.1 	 For F Y 2024-25

(In ` lakh)

Particulars Unbilled 
dues

Outstanding for following periods from due 
date of payment

Total

Not 
due

Less 
than 1 
Year

1-2 
Years

2-3 
Years

More 
than 3 
Years

Total outstanding dues to micro 
enterprises and small enterprises

18.24 14.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 33.12

Total outstanding dues to 
creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises

39.31 0.00 226.14 3.97 0.32 0.00 269.74

Total 57.55 14.88 226.14 3.97 0.32 0.00 302.86

19.2 	 For F Y 2023-24

(In ` lakh)

Particulars Unbilled 
dues

Outstanding for following periods from due 
date of payment

Total

Not 
due

Less 
than 1 

Year

1-2 
Years

2-3 
Years

More 
than 3 
Years

Total outstanding dues to micro 
enterprises and small enterprises

6.69 0.00 6.20 0.00 0.00 0.00 12.89

Total outstanding dues to 
creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises

9.80 0.00 431.13 7.20 0.00 0.00 448.13

Total 16.49 0.00 437.33 7.20 0.00 0.00 461.02

20. 	 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

(In ` lakh)

Particulars As at 
 March 31, 2025

As at 
 March 31, 2024

Unsecured

Others  17.89  12.70 

Total 17.89 12.70

21. 	 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

(In ` lakh)

Particulars As at 
 March 31, 2025

As at 
 March 31, 2024

a. 	 Revenue received in advance 473.88 69.90

b. 	 Other advances 329.90 329.90

c. 	 Others

 	 i. 	 Statutory dues 148.29 70.03

 	 ii. 	 Amount payable for projects and assignments 203.51 272.56

 	 ii. 	 Interest payable 0.07 0.00

Total 1,155.65 742.39
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22. 	 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

(In ` lakh)

Particulars  For the year ended  
March 31, 2025 

 For the year ended  
March 31, 2024 

Sale of owned content  21.08  49.03 

Income from commissioned content/ web series  3,337.34  5,722.90 

Total  3,358.42  5,771.93 

22.1 	 Revenue from contract with customer disaggregated based on geography.

(In ` lakh)

Particulars  For the year ended  
March 31, 2025 

 For the year ended  
March 31, 2024 

Domestic  3,355.25  5,769.11 

Export  3.17  2.82 

Total  3,358.42  5,771.93 

22.2 	 Revenue recognised from contract liability (advances from customers)

(In ` lakh)

Particulars  For the year ended  
March 31, 2025 

 For the year ended  
March 31, 2024 

Closing contract liability 0.00 0.00

Total 0.00 0.00

23. 	 OTHER INCOME

(In ` lakh)

Particulars  For the year ended  
March 31, 2025 

 For the year ended  
March 31, 2024 

a. 	 Interest income 61.34 57.96

b. 	 Miscellaneous income  5.23  5.61 

Total  66.57  63.57 

24. 	 COST OF CONTENT

(In ` lakh)

Particulars  For the year ended  
March 31, 2025 

 For the year ended  
March 31, 2024 

Cost of the content  2,739.85  4,887.01 

Total  2,739.85  4,887.01 

25. 	 CHANGES IN INVENORIES OF CONTENT

(In ` lakh)

Particulars  For the year ended  
March 31, 2025 

 For the year ended  
March 31, 2024 

Opening balance 

Unamortised content 3,924.47 3,940.37

Unexploited content 1,597.51 1,597.51

Unfinished content 0.00 30.00

Total (A) 5,521.98 5,567.88

Closing balance 

Unamortised content 3,918.58 3,924.47

Unexploited content 1,537.61 1,597.51

Unfinished content 0.00 0.00

Total (B) 5,456.19 5,521.98

 (increase)/ decrease (A-B) 65.79 45.90

Less: Unfinished/ unexploited content used for production 
of web series

59.90 30.00

Net (increase)/ decrease 5.89 15.90

26 .	 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 

(In ` lakh)

Particulars  For the year ended  
March 31, 2025 

 For the year ended  
March 31, 2024 

Salaries  393.29  375.34 

Contribution to provident fund and other funds

Contribution to gratuity fund  3.88  3.22 

Total  397.17  378.56 

27. 	 FINANCE COST 

(In ` lakh)

Particulars  For the year ended  
March 31, 2025 

 For the year ended  
March 31, 2024 

Interest expense  8.34  9.77 

Total  8.34  9.77 

28. 	 OTHER EXPENSES 

(In ` lakh)

Particulars  For the year ended  
March 31, 2025 

 For the year ended  
March 31, 2024 

Auditor's remuneration (Refer note 40)  7.25  7.00 

Business promotion expenses  14.28  11.54 

Communications expenses  1.05  0.98 

Contract service expenses  9.95  24.07 

Conveyance and motor car expenses  62.57  50.04 

Directors sitting fees  37.25  20.40 

Impairment in value of investment 0.00  33.39 

Insurance  3.42  3.90 

Legal and professional expenses  36.24  14.24 

Rent  82.45  74.22 

Travelling expenses  21.00  8.31 

Establishment and administrative expenses  62.07  43.48 

Total  337.53  291.57 

29. 	 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars As at 
 March 31, 2025

As at 
 March 31, 2024

Contingent liabilities

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts in 
respects of GST liability*

36.16 36.16

Total  36.16  36.16 

*The above matter is currently being considered by the tax authorities and the Company expects the outcome         
will be in its favour and has therefore, not recognised the provision in relation to aforesaid liabilities. Future 
cash outflow in respect of above will be determined only on receipt of judgement/ decision pending with tax 
authorities.

30. 	 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

	 Defined Benefit Plan

	 Group gratuity liability is recognised on the basis of gratuity report provided by Actuary.

	 The disclosures as required under the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 19) in respect of gratuity, is 
as follows:

	 Every employee is entitled to a benefit equivalent to 15 days salary drawn for each completed year of 
service in line with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 or Company scheme, whichever is beneficial. 
The same is payable at the time of separation from the company or retirement, whichever is earlier. The 
benefits vest after five years of continuous service

a. Expenses recognised in statement of profit or loss

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

Current service cost 4.52 4.36 

Net interest cost (0.64) (1.14)

Expenses recognised 3.88 3.22 

b. Expenses recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI)

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

Actuarial (gains)/ losses on obligation for the 
period

1.17 5.01 

Return on plan assets excluding interest income (0.33) (0.27)

Net (income)/ expenses for the period recognised 
in OCI

0.84 4.74 
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c. Reconciliation of defined benefit obligation 

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of 
the year 

104.33 91.38

Current service cost 4.51 4.36

Interest cost 7.52 6.61

Benefit paid from the fund (9.74) (3.03)

Actuarial (gain)/ loss due to change in financial 
assumptions

2.66 2.17

Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligation - Due to 
experience adjustments

(1.48) 2.84

Defined Benefit obligation at the end of year 107.80 104.33

d. Reconciliation of plan assets:

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year  113.15  106.51 

Interest income  8.16  7.75 

Employers contribution  4.42  1.65 

Benefit paid from the fund (9.74) (3.03)

Return on plan assets, excluding interest income  0.33  0.27 

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year  116.32  113.15 

e. Net Asset/ (Liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2025

As at  
March 31, 2024

Present value of defined benefit obligation (DBO) (107.80) (104.33)

Fair value of plan assets 116.32 113.15

Net asset/ (liability) recognised in the balance sheet 8.52 8.82

f. The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

 

Actuarial assumption For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

Expected return on plan assets  6.83%  7.21% 

Discount rate  6.83%  7.21% 

Attrition rate 2% 2%

Salary escalation rate 7% 7%

	 Sensitivity Analysis

	 Below is the sensitivity analysis determined for significant actuarial assumption for determination of 
defined benefit obligation and based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions 
occurring at the end of the reporting period.

(In ` lakh)

Sensitivity Analysis For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

Defined benefit obligation on current assumptions  107.80  104.33 

Delta effect of +1% change in rate of discounting (6.72) (6.71)

Delta effect of -1% change in rate of discounting  7.70  7.63 

Delta effect of +1% change in rate of salary increase  2.25  3.09 

Delta effect of -1% change in rate of salary increase (2.43) (2.81)

Delta effect of +1% change in rate of employee turnover  1.63  1.89 

Delta effect of -1% change in rate of employee turnover (1.77) (2.02)

	 Note

	 The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective 
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

	 The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the projected 
benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one 
another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

	  Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the projected benefit 
obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, 
which is the same method as applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation as recognised in the 
balance sheet. 

	 There were no changes in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensivity analysis from 
prior years.

	 Maturity analysis of the benefit payments: from the fund

 (In ` lakh)

Projected benefits payable in future years from the date 
of reporting

For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year 
ended March 31, 

2024

1st following year  3.64  4.88 

2nd following year  3.79  3.70 

3rd following year  22.41  3.81 

4th following year  39.09  21.42 

5th following year  2.02  37.25 

Sum of years 6 To 10  20.93  18.45 

Sum of years 11 and above  102.91  106.42 

	 Notes

	 Gratuity is payable as per entity’s scheme as detailed in the report. 

	 Actuarial gains/ losses are recognized in the period of occurrence under Other Comprehensive Income 
(OCI). All above reported figures of OCI are gross of taxation. 

	 Salary escalation and attrition rate are considered as advised by the entity; they appear to be in line with 
the industry practice considering promotion and demand and supply of the employees.

	 Maturity Analysis of Benefit Payments is undiscounted cashflows considering future salary, attrition 
and death in respective year for members as mentioned above.

	 Average Expected Future Service represents Estimated Term of Post - Employment Benefit Obligation.

	 Weighted Average Duration of the Defined Benefit Obligation is the weighted average of cashflow 
timing, where weights are derived from the present value of each cash flow to the total present value.

	 Any benefit payment and contribution to plan assets is considered to occur end of the year to depict 
liability and fund movement in the disclosures.

	 Value of asset provided by the entity is not audited by us and the same is considered as unaudited fair 
value of plan asset as on the reporting date.

	 In absence of specific communication as regards contribution by the entity, Expected Contribution in 
the Next Year is considered as the sum of net liability/ assets at the end of the current year and current 
service cost for next year, subject to maximum allowable contribution to the Plan Assets over the next 
year as per the Income Tax Rules.

	 QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE

	 Para 139 (a) Characteristics of defined benefit plan

	 The entity has a defined benefit gratuity plan in India (funded). The entity’s defined benefit gratuity 
plan is a final salary plan for employees, which requires contributions to be made to a separately 
administered fund. 

	 The fund is managed by a trust which is governed by the Board of Trustees. The Board of Trustees are 
responsible for the administration of the plan assets and for the definition of the investment strategy.

	 Para 139 (b) Risks associated with defined benefit plan

	 Gratuity is a defined benefit plan and entity is exposed to the Following Risks

	 Interest rate risk: A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the Government Securities Rate 
will increase the present value of the liability requiring higher provision. A fall in the discount rate 
generally increases the mark to market value of the assets depending on the duration of asset.

	 Salary Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the 
future salaries of members. As such, an increase in the salary of the members more than assumed level 
will increase the plan’s liability.

	 Investment Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount 
rate which is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government 
bonds. If the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit. Currently, for the plan 
in India, it has a relatively balanced mix of investments in government securities, and other debt 
instruments.

	 Asset Liability Matching (ALM) Risk: The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow. Since 
the plan is invested in lines of Rule 101 of Income Tax Rules, 1962, this generally reduces ALM risk.

	 Mortality risk: Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement 
age only, plan does not have any longevity risk.

	 Concentration Risk: Plan is having a concentration risk as all the assets are invested with the insurance 
company and a default will wipe out all the assets. Although probability of this is very low as insurance 
companies have to follow stringent regulatory guidelines which mitigate risk. 

	 Para 139 (c) Characteristics of defined benefit plans.

	 During the year, there were no plan amendments, curtailments and settlements. 

	 Para 147 (a) Trust fund and contribution thereto

	 A separate trust fund is created to manage the Gratuity plan and the contributions towards the trust fund 
is done as guided by rule 103 of Income Tax Rules, 1962.
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31. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Details relating to related parties/ persons and description of relationship are as under

Name of the related party Description of relationship

a. 	 Subsidiaries

  	 i.  	 PNC Digital Limited Subsidiary of the Company

  	 ii.  	 PNC Wellness Limited Wholly owned subsidiary of the Company

b.  	Key Management Personnel

  	 i.  	 Mr Pallab Bhattacharya Wholetime Director and CEO

  	 ii.  	 Ms Rangita Pritish Nandy Wholetime Director (President and Creative Director)

  	 iii.  	Mr Kishor Palkar Chief Financial Officer 

  	 iv.  	 Mr Santosh Gharat Company Secretary and Compliance Officer - upto June 6, 2024

  	 v.  	 Mr Hemant Auti Company Secretary and Compliance Officer -from August 6, 
2024 to November 12, 2024

  	 vi.  	Ms Priyanka Shah Company Secretary and Compliance Officer - w.e.f. February 7, 2025

     Non-Executive Directors

  	 vii.  	Mr Pritish Nandy Non Executive Director, Chairman (upto January 8, 2025)

  	 viii. 	Mrs Rina Pritish Nandy Non Executive Director

  	 ix.  	Mr Raghu Palat Non Executive, Independent Director 

  	 x.  	 Ms Neerja Shah Non Executive, Independent Director 

  	 xi.  	Mr Sunil Alagh Non Executive, Independent Director 

  	 xii.  	Mr Karan Ahluwalia Non Executive, Independent Director 

c.  	Close family members of 
Key Management Personnel

  	 i.  	 Ms Ishita Pritish Nandy Sister of Ms Rangita Pritish Nandy

Details of transactions between the Company and other related parties as disclosed below:

 (In ` lakh) 
Nature of 
Relation

Nature of transaction As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
PNC Wellness 

Limited
PNC Digital 

Limited
PNC Wellness 

Limited
PNC Digital 

Limited
Subsidiaries Opening balance receivable/ 

(payable) 
20.80 0.00 18.89 (10.07)

Advance paid back 0.00 0.00 0.00 10.07
Advance received back (2.00) 0.00 0.00 0.00
Advance given 3.98 0.00 1.91 0.00
Balance outstanding as at year 
end receivable/ (payable) 

22.78 0.00 20.80 0.00 

Nature of 
Relation

Nature of transaction As at  
March 31, 2025

As at  
March 31, 2024

Key 
management 
personnel and 
Directors

Remuneration/ reimbursement 170.57 143.93

Balance outstanding as at year 
end receivable/ (payable) (18.44) (14.37)

Non-executive 
Directors and 
their relatives 

Remuneration/ reimbursement/ 
sitting fees 115.25 86.40

Professional fees 24.00 24.00
Balance outstanding at year end 
receivable/ (payable)* (209.90) (276.35)

*Includes ` 203.51 lakh due to legal heirs of late Mr Pritish Nandy
Transactions with related parties have been done at arm’s length and are in the ordinary course of business.
Remuneration/ reimbursement to key management personnel includes an amount of ` 120.13 lakh being 
remuneration/ reimbursement to Whole Time Directors which exceeds the prescribed limits under Section 
197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 (“ the Act”) by ` 36.13 lakh. As per the provisions of 
the Act, the excess remuneration is subject to approval of the shareholders which the Company proposes to 
obtain in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.
32.	 MICRO AND SMALL ENTERPRISES
	 The details given below are based on the information received from Suppliers regarding their status 

under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. This information has been 
relied upon by the auditor.

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2025

As at  
March 31, 2024

a. The principal amount and the interest due thereon 
(to be shown separately) remaining unpaid to any 
supplier at the end of each accounting year; 

14.88  6.20 

b. The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms 
of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the 
amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond 
the appointed day during each accounting year; 

NIL NIL

c. The amount of interest due and payable for the 
period of delay in making payment (which have 
been paid but beyond the appointed day during 
the year) but without adding the interest specified 
under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006; 

NIL NIL

d. The amount of interest accrued and remaining 
unpaid at the end of each accounting year;

NIL NIL

e. The amount of further interest remaining due and 
payable even in the succeeding years, until such 
date when the interest dues above are actually 
paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of 
disallowance of a deductible expenditure under 
Section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

NIL NIL

33.	 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

	 a.	 PNC Wellness Limited

		  The Company has impaired value of entire investment in equity shares of wholly owned 
subsidiary viz PNC Wellness Limited in earlier years. The net worth of this subsidiary is 
` 11.46 lakh as on March 31, 2025. The Subsidiary has earned revenue of ` 2.00 lakh during 
the year under review. The subsidiary however continues, intending to use the brand’s goodwill 
and reputation to build a digital opportunity.

	 b.	 PNC Digital Limited 

		  The Company has an impaired investment of ` 19.26 lakh in equity shares of subsidiary viz PNC 
Digital Limited as at March 31, 2025. During the year this subsidiary has earned a nominal income 
from its non-operational activities. The net worth of this subsidiary is ` 19.82 lakh as on March 31, 
2025.This subsidiary will continue its efforts in future. Since this subsidiary has unfettered access 
to the film content of the holding company and requires no additional capital deployment to earn 
revenue, in view of the Management no further impairment is required.

34.	 OPERATING LEASES (LESSEE) 	

	 a.	 The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term 
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less. All leases of the Company are short-term in 
nature and therefore no additional disclosure is provided as per Ind AS – 116.

	 b.	 The total of future minimum sublease payment expected to be received under non – cancellable 
subleases at the end of reporting period is nil.

	 c.	 Lease payment is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

35.	 LEGAL PROCEEDINGS	

	 a.	 The Company has initiated proceedings for the recovery of an amount of ` 1.50 crore given to 
Saboo Films Pvt Ltd and Bharat film Works against film rights. Proceedings are ongoing before 
the City Civil Court and the management considers the same as fully recoverable and hence no 
provision is made. Legal opinion obtained by the Company supports this. 

	 b.	 The Company had received an award of ̀  3.52 crore plus interest of ̀  35 lakh in its favour in the 
arbitration filed against White Feather Films (Proprietor Sanjay Gupta). White Feather Films 
has gone in appeal against the award and was directed to deposit an amount of ` 3 crore by the 
Bombay High Court, which they failed to do. The Company has filed a petition for execution 
of the arbitration award. The Bombay High Court has restrained   Sanjay Gupta from disposing 
of, encumbering, alienating, transferring, and parting with the possession of or creating any 
third party rights or interest in his 3 properties in Pune and Khandala valued at ` 12 crore. The 
advance of ` 3.18 crore is therefore considered as fully recoverable. 

36.	 Company carries out in-house content development projects, which includes costs for payments to 
writers, actors, pre shoot expenses, professional fees etc. These amounts have different ageing depending 
on the progress of each project. These costs are classified under a broad head as “Advance for Content”. 
The technical team has assessed its realizable value, its future viability and management contention to 
continue with the project including considerations for write off/ impairment based on future plans of 
the Company, considering trends in the country as well global trends. The Company has accordingly 
written off an amount of ` 42.73 lakh (net of corresponding liability of ` 47 lakh) (PY ` 13.42 lakh)  
incurred on developing contents, which are no longer viable to take up in future. 	

37.	 INVENTORIES

	 a. 	 The Company estimate the useful life of its audio-visual entertainment content, which are in 
intangible in nature as 40 years considering the following:

		  i	 The economic useful life of content post digitisation.

		  ii.	 New avenues of content exploitation with the emergence of new technologies.

		  iii.	 Long tail realisations from the library of produced content.

		  iv	 Increased reach of Indian content in new and existing global markets.

		  v.	 Increased scope of content exploitation in many new ways and languages as well as 
through multiple exploitation of content IPRs. 

		  vi	 The continuing exploitation of the PNC library on existing platforms.

		  News-based content as well as content being produced currently for international streaming 
platform on commissioned basis will continue to be 100% written off on exploitation as per the 
current practice.

		  During the year the Company has amortised ` 5.89 lakh against the revenue earned from 
exploitation of streaming rights of its existing library and unexploited content of ` 59.90 lakh 
used for production of web series.

	 b. 	 The details of cinematic and television content is as under

 (In ` lakh) 
Cinematic 

content
Television 

content
Total

Gross carrying amount as at April 1, 2024 20,507.30 11,336.99 31,844.29
Add: Additions during the year 2024-25 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total 20,507.30 11,336.99 31,844.29
Less: Amortised up to March 31, 2024 15,456.12 10,866.19 26,322.31
Less: Amortised during the year 2024-25 5.89 0.00 5.89

Unexploited content used for the production of web 
series

0.00 59.90 59.90

Total amortised 15,462.01 10,926.09 26,388.10
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2025 5,045.29 410.90 5,456.19

		  There is no individual content that is material to the financial statements of the Company as a 
whole.

		  There is no content whose title is restricted. 

		  Based on a review of estimates of future realisations taken as a whole, the management is of the 
view that future recoverable amount from content rights is expected to be more than its carrying 
unamortised cost of content. Hence, no further impairment/ write down is considered necessary 
on this account.
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31 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 55. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 
Details elt to related parte’ persons and description of relationship ae as der © PNC Welles Limited 
Nameoftherelatedpaty Description of relationship The Company has impaired value of entire ivestment in equity shares of wholly owed 
+ Subsiiaries subsidiary viz PNC Wellness Limited in eae years. The net worth of tis subsidiary is 

2 11.46 lakh as on March 31, 2035. The Subsidiary has eamed revenue of € 2.00 skh during 
i PNCDigialLimited Subsidiary ofthe Company ‘he year under review: Th subidiry however continues, tending t us the brand's good 
ii PNC Wellness Limited Wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and reputation o build a digital opportunity. 

b. Key Management Persoumel. b. PNCDigitl Limited 
i MrPallb Bhatiacharya Wholetme Director and CEO The Company has an opined ivestaent of € 196 lk i equity shares of subsidiary viz PNC 
i Ms Rangis Pri Nandy Wheletime Director (President and Crestive Director) Digital Listed a at March 31, 2005. Durig the yea tis subsidiary as eamed nomial conse ftom its nn personal ates The ne wort of this subsidiary 19.82 ak aon March 31, 
iii. Mr Kishor Palkar Chief Financial Officer 2025 This subsidiary will continue ts efors in future. Since this subsidiary has unfettered access 
iu MrSatosh Ghiarst Company Secretary and Compliance Officer - upto use 6, 2024 Yo the fl conten of the holding company and requires 0 ditional captal deployment to am 

revere, in vie of the Managenient no futher pament is required © MrHematAui Company Secretary and Complimce Officer -from August 6, 
2024 to November 12, 2024 34. OPERATING LEASES (LESSEE) 

vi. MsPriyankaSiah Company Secretary and Compliance Ofer we. February , 2005 & The Company has elected notto recognize right-of use assets and leselsiliies for short term 
‘Non Executive Directors {esse that havea less term of 12 months or less. AL leases of the Company ar short tema 1. 

vii. Mr Pritish Nandy ‘Non Executive Director, Chairman (upto January 8, 2025) mature and therefore no additional disclosure is provided as per ld AS — 116. 
i Mis Ria Piich Nandy. Noa Esecaive Dieter b. The total offture miniounn sublease payment expected to be received under on —cancelable 

blesses at the end of reporting period sl ix Mr Raghu Pat Non Executive, Independent Director 
o MoNewsSih Non Exemtin inopendent Di c. Lease payments recoguied as an expense inthe period in whic its curred. 
xi. Mr Sunil Alsgh Non Executive, Independent Director 35. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 
xi. Mr Karen Abluwalis Non Executive, Independent Director & The Company hs nitsed proceedings forthe recovery of a amo of € 150 crore given to 

© Close family members of Sabo Fins Pot Ltd and Bharat lm Works against fi rights. Proceedings are ongoing before 
ee the City Civil Court and the management considers the same as fll recoverable and hence no 

y Manage ‘provision is made. Legal opinion obtained by the Company supports this. 
i Ms tit Pith Nandy Sister of Ms Rangits Prits Nandy b. The Company hd received an ward of 3.52 crore plus interest of 35 lak nts four nthe Details of transactions between the Company and other elted parties as disclosed below: bition ud again White Foster Fis (Propet Say Gupta), White Feather Fie 

a has gone in appeal agains the svard nd was directed to deposit a amount of 3 crore by the 
(0% lakh) ‘Bombay High Court, which they failed to do. The Company has filed a petition for execution 

Natweof Nature of transaction As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 204 of the arbitration award. The Bombay High Court has restrained. Sarjay Gupta from disposing 
Reliion NC Welhss  PNCDigal PRC Wells: PC Digal of, encunbering, alienating, transfering, and parting with te possesion of or cresting any 

Lined Limited Lied Linted hid party rights o interest i bis 3 properties in Pune ud Khandala valued at € 12 crore. The 
Subsidiaries Opening bla resvable MW 000 EH (00) advance of 3.18 crore i therefore considered as fully recoverable. 

tk om 0 om og 36 Company caries out inhouse content development projects, which includes costs for payments to 
ad p uw wu re mtr, actors, pr shot expenses, professional fees et. These amounts have diffrent ageing depending ace ee am onthe progress of ech project These costs are classified under broad head ss “Advance for Content” 
Adve gen NET SS UO) Th temhmeral tos ha cose s reat vl, ts Satire ably and managessent contention 0 
Balance outstanding as at year nT 000 B50 000 continue with the project including considerations fo wie off impsime based on ture plans of 
end receivable (payable) hah ih La 

” TE ne i at oF 535 ihr of compo ig bi of € 5 Wa PL 13 0) writen off a mount of comesp ty Natweof News ofan sat sat B ren Mach 31, ons incurred on developing contents, which are no longer vible t ake up in tre 
yo 57. INVENTORIES p— 
peromel xd Remuseston reimbursement Le 14395 & The Company estimate the useful ie of its sudio-vvual entertainment conte, which are in 
Directors iutangble in nsture as 40 years considering th following 

Balance ustanding ss at year end rece parle) 849) sn i The economic useful life of content post digitisation. 

‘Non-executive reimbursement’ ii New avemues of content exploitation with the emergence of new technologies. Dicer Semen rena! 11525 5540 ol = @ 
thirties ii. Long tl realisations fom the brary of produced conte. 

fo 2400 HP Increased reach of Indian content d existing global markets. profions al iv Toctessed reach of dian conten in ev and existing 
Blancs ontatnding st year end 20990) 635) 
rece ‘(payable)’ INN ZZ v. Increased scope of content exploitation in many new ways and languages as well as 

acludes 203.51 lk due to legal heis of ate Mr Pris Nandy, through multiple exploitation of conte IPRs. 
Transactions with rlsted parties have been done at ara’ length and ar i the ordinary course of busines. “i The continuing exploitation ofthe PNC bray on existing platforms. 
Remuneration’ reimbursement to key managermet personel includes an amount of € 120.13 kh beng 
remuneration reimbursement to Whole Time Directors which exceeds the prescribed limits under Section ‘News-based content as well as content being produced currently for intemational streaming 
197 ead with Schedule V tothe Companies Act 2013 * te Act) by € 36.13 lakh. As per the provisions of platforms on comnisioned basi il continue to be 100% writen off on exploitation as per the 
the Act, the excess remuneration is subject to approval of the shareholders which the Company proposes to current practice. 
obtain in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. ‘During the year the Company has amortised ¥ 5.89 lakh against the revenue eamed from 
32. MICRO AND SMALL ENTERPRISES exploaton of streaming its of is existing Library and unenploited content of € 39.90 skh 

The detsil given below are based on the information recived fom Suppliers regarding thei status used for production of web series. 
ner the Miro, Sul] and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. This information has bee hwo te mor b. The details of cinematic and television content as under 

Particulars Asat Asat Gk) March312055 Marc 31,30 Come] Tain] Toul 
a The principal amount aud the terest due thereon os 520 oe] eon 

(to be shown separately) remaining unpaid to ay (io be shown spars) emaing pa | [Gros crying sot A 208 Tov] 113365] 500) 
bi amount of tre pad by he ver i tems No No [Raids mag eye 22475 I 
Be Bement a 20m a ete [fom] soo] use| sisud Enterprise Development Act, 006, along with the d 
amount ofthe payment made fo the suppl beyond [Ces | Aumorted apo Mare 31,2024 Tas600] 1086619] 2631231 
eon fy Gta xh eenntng cr - - [Comore dg eye 102435 ED 

c. The thnoun of fterest parable for : The moun of res du ad pale Lf te == tent wed or prods wwe Sos) 
been paid but beyond the appointed day during series 
tie yea but isos adding the tee specified loam | seen] nwss| mn 
under te Micro, Smal and Medium Enerpriss et cain st tv 3,335 os] ssa) Development Act 2006; 

4 The amount of interest accrued and remaining NL pa There iso individual content that s material to the financial statements of the Company a5 2 
unpaid at the end ofeach accounting year: whole. 

The sumoun of further oteres remaining due aud NL pa 
payable even in the succeeding years, wal such There is no content whose tile is restricted. 
date when the interest dues above are scaly ‘Based ou a eviewofestmates of futur reaistons taken as a whole, the management i of the 
pad to the small enterprise, for the purpose of view that future recoverable amount fom content rights expected be aor nis caying 
disallowance of 2 deductible expenditure under mamortied cost of conten. Hence, uo further impainment write down is considered necessary Section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium pry 
Enterprises Development At 2006,
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38. a. 	 Reconciliation of tax expense

 (In ` lakh) 

	 Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

	 i. 	 Income tax expenses :

 		  Current tax- in respect of the current year 0.00 0.00

 		  Adjustments for current tax of prior periods 0.00 0.00

 		  Deferred tax- in respect of the current year  (40.86)  (11.82)

 		  Total  (40.86)  (11.82)

 	 ii. 	� Income tax recognised in other 
comprehensive income

 		�  Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans 0.00 0.00

 		  Total  (40.86)  (11.82)

b. 	 A reconciliation between statutory income tax rate applicable to the Company and the 
effective income tax rate is as follows

 (In ` lakh) 

	 Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

	 Current tax as per regular working

	 Net profit/ (loss) before tax  (138.00)  206.86 

	 Effective tax rate applicable to the Company  25.17%  25.17% 

	 Tax amount as per the enacted income tax rate (34.73) 52.07

	� Add: income tax on expenses not deductible in 
determining taxable profits

14.06 22.24

	 Less: income tax of allowances/ deductibles (11.66) (9.97)

	 Add: income tax on loss carried forward 32.33 0.00

	� Less: income tax of setoff of brought forward 
losses

0.00 (64.34)

	 Net current tax 0.00 0.00

	� Current tax as per Minimum Alternative Tax 
is not applicable since section 115BAA will be 
opted in current year

	� Deferred tax on account of temporary 
differences 

 (8.80)  (11.82)

	� Reversible of deferred tax liabilities on account 
of reduction in tax rate (from 26% to 25.17%)

(32.06) 0.00

	 Total tax expense  (40.86)  (11.82)

c. 	 Deferred tax assets/ (liabilities)

 (In ` lakh) 

	 Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

As at  
March 31, 2024

 	 Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 10.17 6.57 

 	 Unamortised content   (1,076.62)  (1,113.64)

	 Expected revenue loss  3.22 0.00

	� IndAS effects of security deposits and 
processing fees

 0.01 0.00

 	 Diminution in the value of investments  91.10 94.09 

 	 Total  (972.12)  (1,012.98)

d. 	 Reconciliation of deferred tax assets / (liabilities) net

 (In ` lakh) 

	 Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

As at  
March 31, 2024

	 Opening balance  (1,012.98)  (1,024.80)

	 Deferred tax (charge)/ credit recognised in:

	 Statement of profit and loss  40.86  11.82 

 	 Total  (972.12)  (1,012.98)

39. EARNING PER SHARE

(In ` lakh, except otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

Profit after tax attributable to equity shareholders of 
the company 

 (97.14)  218.68 

Weighted average number of equity shares (numbers 
in lakh)

 144.67  144.67 

Basic and Diluted earning per share (amount in `)  (0.67)  1.51 

Face value per equity share (amount in `)  10.00  10.00 

40. AUDITORS REMUNERATION

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

As auditor

Statutory audit  5.00  5.00 

Tax audit  0.60  0.60 

For limited review report  0.90  0.90 

Taxation services  0.75  0.50 

Total  7.25  7.00 

41 SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company has presented data relating to it’s segments in it’s Consolidated Financial Statements. 
Accordingly, in term of paragraph 4 of the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 108) “Operating 
Segments”, no disclosure related to it’s segments are presented in the standalone financial statements. 
The Company operates in only one segment i.e. content.

42.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT

	 a.	 Methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair values

		  The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the 
instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a 
forced or liquidation sale.

		  The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

		  i.	 The carrying amounts of receivables and payables which are short term in nature such 
as trade receivables, other bank balances, deposits, loans to employees, trade payables, 
demand loans from banks and cash and cash equivalents are considered to be the same 
as their fair values.

		  ii.	 The fair values for long term security deposits given were calculated based on cash flows 
discounted using a current bank rate applicable to Company’s deposits with the bankers. 
They are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion 
of unobservable inputs.

			   Categories of financial instruments

			   The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value 
of financial instruments by valuation technique:

			   Level 1  unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

			   Level 2  directly or indirectly observable market inputs, other than Level 1 inputs; and

			   Level 3  inputs which are not based on observable market data

 (In ` lakh) 
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Carrying 
Values

Fair Value Carrying 
Values

Fair Value

Financial assets
Measured at amortised cost 
Investment 19.26 19.26 19.26 19.26
Trade receivables  2.66  2.66  130.38  130.38 
Cash and bank balances  935.48  935.48  386.09  386.09 
Other financial assets  1,202.60  1,202.60  1,379.02  1,379.02 
Measured at FVTPL 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Measured at FVTOCI 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total financial assets  2,160.00  2,160.00 1,914.75 1,914.75
Financial liabilities
Measured at amortised cost 
Borrowings  226.23  226.23  112.81  112.81 
Trade payable  302.86  302.86  461.02  461.02 
Other financial liabilities  17.89  17.89  12.70  12.70 
Total financial liabilities  546.98  546.98  586.53  586.53 

	 b.	 Financial risk management objective and policies

		  The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. 
The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations including 
acquiring of property, plant and equipment (PPE). The Company’s principal financial assets 
include investments, trade and other receivables, and cash and bank balances that derive 
directly from its operations.

		  The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board provides 
guidance for overall risk management. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for 
managing each of these risks, which are summarised below

		  i.	 Market Risk

			   Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument 
will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of 
risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and 
commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include borrowings and 
other financial instruments.

			   Interest rate risk

			   The interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial 
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
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38. a Reconciliation of ex expense 40. AUDITORS REMUNERATION 
(In¥ lakh) (In ¥ lakh) 

Particlars Forte year ended For the year ended Particulars For the yearendsd For the year ended 
March 31,2005 March 31,2024 March31,2025 March 31,2024 

i come tax expenses as auditor FF 
Curent tax nrespect of the curent year 000 000 Stutony uct S00 S00 
mets fr canto of rie periods 000 000 oe, vo vo 
Defed tax. inspect ofthe cure year se) aisy Fo ted reve 05 05 
Total QUES) ais) ‘Taxation services 0.75 0.50 

i come tx recopuised in other — mr Total 3 “00 comprehensive income 5 JES 
Remnessrement oft defined bene pls 000 000 
ro 5) Gig f SEMENTINRORMATION 

_— The Company hes presented dat relating to is segments in i's Conslidted Financial Statements 
Accordingly, in fem of parsgraph 4 of the Indian Accounting Standard (lad AS 105) “Operating 

b. A reconciliation between statutory income tax rate applicable to the Company and the Segments" mo disclosure elated o's segments are presented nthe standalone financial statements 
fective income tax ate is 2 follows The Company opertes in oly one segment fe. content 

(In¥ lakh) 42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT 

Particlars Forthe year ended Forthe year ended & Methods and assumptions used to stnate the fir values 
March 31,2025 March 31,2024 - 

Cartent toa per regular working The fir value ofthe financial assets nd lsbilties re inchuded at the mount at which the 
instrument could be exchanged in a rent transaction between willing partes, other hanna Net profit oso) before tx ss00) 20656 forced or lquidtion sale. 

Effective tax rate applicable to the Company ES 217% The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fai values: 
Tax amount as perth enacted income tax ate Gay) 5207 i The canying amounts of receivables and payables which are short frm in nature such 
Add: income tx on expenses not deductible in 1406 02 a trade receivables, other bank balances, deposits, loans to employee, rade payables, 
deteriing taxable profits demand loans from banks and cash and cash equivalents are considered to be th same 
Less: income tax of allowances’ deductibles (11.66) 997) as their fair values. 

Add: income tox on loss cared forward 23 000 i. The furvlues fo long tem security deposit given were clculted based on cash lows 
discounted sing a curent bak ete plicable to Corupany’s deposits wit the bankers 

Less: income tax of sto of brought forward om ©39 They re casio as evel 3 fu vias noe Ft vale Birney de to tre mln 
losses of unobservable inputs. 
Net curenttax 000 000 Categories of franca instruments Curent tax as per Minimum Altrative Tex 
is not applicable since section 115BAA will be: The Company uses the followin hirarchy for determining and disclosing the fir value 
opted in curent year of fanciel instruments by valuation fectmique: 
Defend tax cn count of tempor 30) ws Level 1 unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical asets or lsbilies 
Reversible of deemed es ables on accout 55) 000 Level directly or indirectly observable market inputs, oer than Level 1 inputs and 
of eduction intaxrate (fom 26% 02517%) Level3 inputs which are not based on observable market data 
‘Total tax expense (40.86) (11.82) 

(In ¥ lakh) 
© Deferred tax assets (ibilites) Particulars AsarMarh31,2005  AsatMarch31,204 

" Camyig FairVae | Canying Fair Value en Cary Coming 
Particlars For the year ended sat Financial sets FF a 

Marchi31,2005 March 31,2024 dent 
Depreciation on property plat and equipment 017 57 fered amore oa 193 os 193 
Unamortised content (1,076.62) (1.13.64) ‘Trade receivables 266 266 130.38 130.38 

Expected revenne loss EE 000 Cash and bank balances side @msd 3609 38609 
IndAS effscts of security deposit and 001 000 Otter financial ssets 120260 10260 1390 13902 
procesing ees Messed at FUTEL 00 om 00 om 
Diinution in the value of vestments sto 5409 Measured t FUTOCT 00 ow 00 ow 
Total 972.12) (1,012.98) ‘Total financial assets. 2,160.00 2,160.00 1914.75 191475 

E— Financial lilies — 
d Reconciliation of deferred tax assets / (liabilities) net Measured at amortised cost 

PR. Bomonings ns 2B mm ms 
pu FE ot Trade payable Je 38 46102 dele 

lars Reel est Otter financial ables ns us nw 20 
_— Total francial ilies 54698 54698 58653 58653 Opening balance [E) woas0) = Detonator cogs b. Financial risk management objective nd policies 

Statement of profi and los mm ne The Company's principal financial isles comprise borrowings, trade and other payables 
| — “The main purpose of thes nancial Lsiles sto nance the Company's operations including 

Total ©n.1) (1,012.99) acquiring of property, plant and equipment (PPE). The Company's principal financial assets 
-_— include investments, trade and other receivable, and cash and bank balances tht derive 

directly fom is operations. 59. EARNING PER SHARE 
The Company is exposed to market rik, credit risk and liquidity risk: The Board provides 

(@n% lakh, except otherwise stated) guidance for overall risk management. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for 
Particulars Forthe year ended For the year ended managing esch of thee risks, which ae summarised below 

March31,2025 March 31,2024 et hl i MarketRik Profit ater tax atriatable to equity shareholders of 71h ses 
the company Market risk is the rik that the fi value of ture cash flows of financial instrument 

ightod average mumber of equity hares (aumbers will fuctuate because of changes in market price. Market risk comprises tree types of 
ighied average number of equity hares (numb 14467 14487 ik: ineret rte rick, cumency isk and other rice ik, such as equity price rik nd 

commodity risk. Financial isiraments affected by market risk include borrowings and 
‘Basic and Diluted eaming per share (amount in T) 0.67) 151 other financial instruments. 

Face value per equity share amount in ©) 1000 1000 Interstate ik 
The interest rate ik is the ik tit the fair value or future cash flows of a nancial 
instrument vil chute because of changes in market interest ates



1337PRITISH NANDY COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED
THE 32ND ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2025

NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

			   The Company borrows at variable as well as fixed interest rates and the same is managed 
by the Company by constantly monitoring the trends and expectations. In order to 
reduce the overall interest cost, the Company has borrowed in a mix of short term and 
long term loans.

			   As variations in interest rate are not expected to have a significant impact on the results 
of operations, a sensitivity analysis is not presented.

			   Currency risk

			   Currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of financial instruments 
will fluctuate because of the change in foreign currency exchange rates.

			   The Majority of the Company’s revenue and expenses are in Indian Rupees. Company 
also operates internationally with miniscule business transacted in foreign currency 
namely US Dollar and Singapore Dollar. Management considers currency risk to be 
low and hence does not hedge its currency risk. As variations in foreign currency 
exchange rates are not expected to have a significant impact on the results of operations, 
a sensitivity analysis is not presented.

		  ii.	 Credit Risk

			   Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a 
financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from 
the Company’s receivables from customers, deposits given, investments and balances at 
bank. 

			   The Company has used expected credit loss (ECL) model for assessing the impairment 
loss. For the purpose, the Company uses a provision matrix to compute the expected 
credit loss amount. The provision matrix takes into account external and internal risk 
factors and historical data of credit losses from various customers.

			   Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. The Company considers 
the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are 
well established companies besides in few cases Company receives advances from 
customers. 

		   	 The risk of default is assessed as low.

		  iii.	 Liquidity risk

			   Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its 
obligations on time or at a reasonable price.

			   The Company actively monitors its cash flows to ensure there is sufficient cash available 
to meet its working capital requirements. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying 
businesses, the Company maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability 
under committed credit lines. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s 
cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flow.

			   The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities as 
at March 31, 2025 based on contractual undiscounted payments:

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2025

As at  
March 31, 2024

Carrying amount  546.98  586.53 

Less than 12 months  403.02  510.14 

More than 12 months  143.96  76.39 

	 c.	 Capital risk management 

		  The Board policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain shareholder, creditor 
and market confidence and to sustain the future development need of the business. The capital 
structure of the Company is based on Management’s judgement of the appropriate balance of 
key elements in order to meet its strategic and day to day needs. The Company considers the 
amount of capital in proportion to risk and manage the capital structure in light of changes 
in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. There were no 
changes to the Company’s approach to capital management during the year. 

		  Total Equity includes Capital Reserve, Securities Premium, General Reserve, Retained 
Earnings and Share Capital. Total Debt includes current debt plus non-current debt.

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2025

As at  
March 31, 2024

Total debt  226.23  112.81 

Total equity  7,453.68  7,551.66 

Debt equity ratio  0.03  0.01 

43. 	 RATIOS

Ratio Numerator Denominator As at  
March 31, 2025

As at  
March 31, 2024

% Variance Reasons for Variance if more than 25%

a.	 Current ratio, Current assets Current liabilities 4.74 5.78  (17.93) Below 25%

b.	 Debt-equity ratio, Debt Shareholders equity 0.03 0.01  103.18 Increase in debt

c.	 Debt service coverage ratio, Earnings available for debt service Debt service  0.00 14.47  (100.00) Decrease in earning

d.	 Return on equity ratio, Net profit after tax Average shareholders equity (0.01) 2.94%  (144.08) Decrease in net profit after tax

e.	 Inventory turnover ratio, Revenue from operation Average inventories 0.61 1.04  (41.22) Decrease in turnover

f.	 Trade Receivables turnover ratio, Revenue from operations Average trade receivable 50.49 65.56  (23.00) Below 25%

g.	 Trade payables turnover ratio, Cost of content and other expenses Average trade payables 8.06 19.64  (58.97) Increase in average trade payable and decrease in COP and other expenses

h.	 Net capital turnover ratio, Revenue from operations Working capital 0.58 0.96  (40.30) Decrease in revenue from operation and working capital

i.	 Net profit ratio, Net profit Revenue from operation (0.03) 3.79%  (176.34) Decrease in revenue from operation and net profit

j.	 Return on capital employed, Earning before interest and tax Capital employed (0.01) 2.50%  (160.03) Decrease in capital employed and earning before interest & tax

k.	 Return on investment. Return on investment Investment 0.00 0.00% 0.00

	 Definations	

	 a.	 Earning for available for debt service = Net Profit after taxes + Non-cash operating expenses 
like depreciation and other amortisations + Interest + other adjustments like loss on sale of 
Fixed assets etc. 

	 b.	 Debt service = Interest & Lease Payments + Principal Repayments 

	 c.	 Average inventory = (Opening inventory balance + Closing inventory balance) / 2      

	 d.	 Net credit sales = Net credit sales consist of gross credit sales minus sales return

	 e.	 Average trade receivables = (Opening trade receivables balance + Closing trade receivables balance) 
/ 2

	 f.	 Net credit purchases = Net credit purchases consist of gross credit purchases minus purchase 
return 

	 g.	 Average trade payables = (Opening trade payables balance + Closing trade payables balance) / 
2

	 h.	 Working capital = Current assets - Current liabilities.

	 i.	 Earning before interest and taxes = Profit before exeptional items and tax + Finance costs 

	 j.	 Capital Employed = Tangible Net Worth + Total Debt + Deferred Tax Liability

k.	 Return on Investment 

	 (MV(T1) – MV(T0) – Sum [C(t)]) 

	 (MV(T0) + Sum [W(t) * C(t)]) 

	 where, 

	  T1 = End of time period 

	 T0 = Beginning of time period 

	  t = Specific date falling between T1 and T0 

	 MV(T1) = Market Value at T1 

	 MV(T0) = Market Value at T0 

	 C(t) = Cash inflow, cash tflow on specific date 

	 W(t) = Weight of the net cash flow (i.e. either net inflow or net outflow) on day ‘t’, calculated as [T1 – t] / T1

NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PRITISH NANDY COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED 
THE 32ND ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2025 

‘The Company borrows a variable as wel as fixed interest rates and the same s managed The Company actively monitors is cash lows to ensure there i sufficient cash available 
by the Company by constantly monitoring the trends and expectations. In order to to meet is working capital requirements. De 10 the dynamic nature of the underlying 
reduce the overall teres cost, the Company has borrowed in & mi. of short term and businesses, the Company malntans fexibilty in finding by maintaining avalbiiy 
Tong term loans. ‘under committed credit Hines. Management monitors olin forecasts ofthe Company's 
As variations in interest at ae not expected to have a significant impact on the results cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash fon: 
of operations, a sensitivity analysis is not presented. The table below summarises the maturity profile ofthe Company's financial isiltes as 
Caren ie at March 31, 2025 based on contractual undiscounted payments: 

Currency risk is th is that the fir value of future cash lows of financial instruments (nti) 
will fctuate because of the change in foreign curry exchange rte. 

Particulars sat sat 
The Majority of the Company's revenue nd expenses are in Indian Rupees. Company Mach3L,2005 March 31, 2004 
also operses intemationaly with miniscule business transacted in foreign cumency _— 
namely US Dollar and Singapore Dollar. Management considers currency risk to be Conying amount 54698 58653 
low and hence does not hedge its cumency risk. As variations in foreign cumency 
exchange rate are not expected to have significant impact onthe results of operations, Less than 12 months i sto 
2 sensitivity analysis is not presented. More than 12 months 14396 7639 

i CreditRisk c Copia rick management 
Credit risk is th risk of financial Ios to the Company if 2 customer or counterparty to 2 The Board policy is to maintain strong capital base 5 a to maintain shareholder, crditor 
nancial instrument fl to mee its contractual obligations, and arises principally from and market confidence and to sustain he future development need of the business. The capital 
the Company's receivables from customers, deposits given, Investments nd balances at ructure of the Company is based on Management's Judgement of the appropriate balance of 
bank. ey elements in onde to nee its strategic and day to day needs. The Company considers the 

To Cony edocs cto GC) ot cn mt gt Ee a md mee ee sg tee Joss. For the purpose, the Company uses a provision matrix to compute the expected orem ons end the rk characteris mg a 
credit loss ammount. The provision matrix takes ino account exteral and intel risk changes to the Company's approach to capital management ding the 
Factors and historical dat of credit losses from various customers. Total Equity includes Capital Reserve, Securiies Premim, General Reserve, Retained 
Outstanding customer receivables are regulary monitored. The Company considers Famings and Share Capital Total Debt includes crent debt plus non. core debt. 
he concentration of risk with respect to rade receivables a low, as ts customers are 
wel established companies besides in few cases Company receives advances fom We 
customers. Particulars sat sat 
The risk of default is assessed as lov. March31,2025 March 31,2024 

Gi Liquidity isk Total debt 623 11281 

Liquidity isk is defined as the ris tha the Company will not be able to setle or meet ts Total equity 745368 7.55166 
bliations on tm or at a reasonable price. Debt equity ratio po oot 
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or TT RN ET 
Defnations k Retum on Investment 
2 Eaming for available for deb sevice = Net Profit after taxes + Norwcash operating expenses MVCT1)~ MCT) - Suma [COD 

ike depreciation an other amortisatons + Interest + other adjustments lke loss on sale of g 
Fixed assets etc. OVCT0) + Sum [WE) * COD 

b. Debt service = Interest & Lease Payments + Principal Repayments where, 
©. Average inventory = (Opening inventory balance + Closing inventory balance) 2 T1 = End of time period. 
4 Net credit sales = Net credit sales consist of ross credit sales minus sales retum 0 = Begiming of time period 
© Average tradereceivables =(Opening trade receivables balance + Closing trade receivables balance) t= Specific date falling between T1 and TO 

2 MVCT) = Market Value at TL 
© Nt ced pach et cet pcs consi of os rd purchases mis pce AVI) = Market Glue TO 

© Average rade payables = (Opening rade payables balance + Closing rade payables balance) / (9) = Cash inflow; cash tow on specific date 
2 W(t) = Weight ofthe net cash low (i. either net inflow or net outflow) on day °, calculated as [T1 1] / T1 

bh Working capital = Curent assets - Current lsbltes. 
i. Eaming before interest and taxes = Profit before exeptionl tems and tax + Finance costs 
J. Capital Employed = Tangible Net Worth + Total Deb + Deferred Tax Liability
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44.	 OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION

	 a.	 The Company have not given any loans or advances to its promoters, directors or KMPs in the 
nature of loans. 

	 b.	 The Company does not have any benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or 
pending against the Company for holding any benami property.

	 c.	 The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution  or 
other lender during the year.

	 d.	 The Company does not have any transactions or balances with companies struck off under 
Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or under section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956 
during the year. 

	 e.	 The Company does not have any charges which are yet to be registered or satisfied  with ROC, 
Mumbai except in respect of  certain Vehicle loans  which are fully repaid and no amount is 
outstanding , the documentation  for satisfaction of the aforesaid charges is in process.

	 f.	 The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of Section 
2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

	 g.	 UTILISATION  OF BORROWED FUNDS AND SHARE PREMIUM

		  i.	 The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or 
entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the 
Intermediary shall:

			   a.	� directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (ultimate beneficiaries) or

			   b.	� provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate 
beneficiaries

		  ii.	 The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including 
foreign entities (funding party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise) that the Company shall:

			   a.	� directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (ultimate beneficiaries) 
or

			   b.	 provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

	 h.	 The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the 
financial year.	

	 i.	 The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts 
that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under 
the Income Tax Act, 1961 such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the 
Income Tax Act, 1961.

	 j	 The company does not have any borrowings from banks or financial institutions and on the 
basis of security of current assets during the financial year

45.	 There are no subsequent events upto the date of issue of this financial statements.

46.	 Previous year figures have been regrouped/ recast/ rearranged wherever necessary in order to conform 
with the current year’s  presentation.

47.	 Disclosures which are not given are either nil or not applicable

48.	 The Company uses an accounting software for maintaining books of account which complies 
with audit trail requirements as specified under Rule 3(1) of Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014 and 
Rule 11 of Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules, 2014.

49.	 New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments 

	 The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendment to the existing 
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For 
the year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has notified Ind AS – 117 Insurance contracts and amendments 
to Ind AS 116 – Leases, relating to sale and leaseback transactions, applicable to the Company w.e.f. 
April 1, 2024 and the MCA has amended Ind AS 21, “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange 
Rates,” effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2025. The Company has 
reviewed the new pronouncements based on its evaluation and has determined that it does not have any 
significant impact in its financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached
For BD Jokhakar & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 104345W

Bhavik Jain Pallab Bhattacharya Raghu Palat
Partner Wholetime Director and CEO Director
Membership number 160166 DIN 00008277 DIN 00311994

Kishor Palkar Priyanka Shah
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

Mumbai, May 27, 2025 Mumbai, May 27, 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TO 
THE MEMBERS OF 
PRITISH NANDY COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of PRITISH NANDY 
COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries 
(Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the consolidated 
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss(including Other 
Comprehensive Income), the consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of 
Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary 
of material accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated 
financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in 
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2025, of consolidated loss 
(including other comprehensive income), consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for 
the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) 
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements Section of our report. We are independent of the 
Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements in India in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by ICAI and the relevant provisions of the Act, and 
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the 
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to note 34(a) on the consolidated financial statements which describe the facts related to 
the legal proceedings initiated by the Holding Company for the recovery of an advance of `.1.5 crores. The 
management considers the same as good and fully recoverable. The legal opinion obtained by the Holding 
Company supports this. We have relied on the opinion and consequently the Holding Company has not made 
provision of any amount there against.

We further draw attention to note 34(b) on the consolidated financial statements which describes that the 
Holding Company has received an award of ` 3.52 crore plus interest of ` 35 lakh received by the Holding 
Company in its favour in the arbitration case filed against White Feather Films (Proprietor Sanjay Gupta). 
White Feather Films has gone in appeal against the above said award. The court has directed the proprietor 
not to dispose off/ create any third-party rights on his properties which are valued at ` 12 crore. Proceedings 
are ongoing and in view of the same outstanding of `. 3.18 crore is considered as fully recoverable and 
consequently there is no provision made of any amount there against.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit 
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of 
our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do 
not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the 
key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

a.	 Valuation of Inventory – the Holding Company (as described in note 7 and 2(k) of the consolidated 
financial statements)

	 Description of Key Audit Matter:

	 Inventory includes Cinematic Content and Television Content. Cinematic Content includes completed 
cinematic content (Unamortised and Unexploited content) as at year end. Television Content includes 
unexploited television content as at year end.

	 Considering the distinctiveness of each type of inventory, the industry in which the Holding Company 
is operating, and the peculiarity involved makes valuation a complex exercise. Additionally, the 
allocation of initial cost is done on the basis of genre, nature of the cinematic content involving 
significant judgments and estimates by the management. The value of the Holding Company’s 
Inventories as at March 31, 2025 amounts to ` 5,432.41 lakh, which is a significant component of the 
Balance Sheet. Therefore, we have considered it to be a key audit matter.

	 Description of Auditor’s response: 

	 We have gained adequate understanding of the nature of Inventories and applied the prescriptions 
given in Ind AS 2 in their context. 

	 We analyzed the valuation approaches adopted by management for each class of Inventories for 
their appropriateness. We also audited the methodology used by the Holding Company and verified 
reasonableness of estimates applied by the Holding Company including useful life of the content, 
implications of technological changes and other factors mention in note 38 to the consolidated financial 
statements. Further we have reviewed the valuation carried out on the basis of the accounting policy 
including realizations made in the past and expectation of future potential to earn there from. Finally, 
the appropriateness and adequacy of the presentation and disclosure of Inventory in the financial 
statements was audited. Based on the above work performed, no exceptions were noted.

b.	 Amortisation of Inventory – the Holding Company (as described in note 2(k) and note 38 of the 
consolidated financial statements)

	 Description of Key Audit Matter:

	 Inventory of the Holding Company comprises audio-visual entertainment content are intangible in 
nature. Determination of useful life of intangible inventory involves significant estimates by the 
management which involves the economic useful life of content post digitisation, new avenues of 
content exploitation with the emergence of new technologies, increased reach of Indian content in 
new and existing global markets, and various other factors mentioned in note 38 to the consolidated 
financial statements. Cost of inventory is divided into components such as Global theatrical rights, 
Global broadcasting rights, Music right, Global streaming rights and emerging platforms, Intellectual 
Property Rights (IPR)/Residual rights. Each of these components of costs are amortised by the 

management over their respective estimated useful lives as described in note 2(k) and note 38 to the 
consolidated financial statements.

	 Considering the significant estimates involved by the management and its complexity, we have 
considered it to be a Key audit matter.

	 Description of Auditor’s response: 

	 Audit procedure included detailed review of rationale documented by the management for ascertaining 
useful life of intangible inventory, basis of allocation of costs into different categories, basis of its 
amortization as per manner provided in note 2(k) and note 38 to the consolidated financial statements. 
In addition, we also verified the industry practice, past trends, examined the transactions to ascertain 
that amortization is in accordance with the accounting policy. Based on the above work performed, no 
exceptions were noted.

c.	 Revenue Recognition - the Holding Company (as described in note 2(n) and note 22 of the consolidated 
financial statements)

	 Description of Key Audit Matter:

	 Revenue (as disclosed in note 22) from each stream of income is contracted uniquely based on 
number of factors. Costs incurred from conceptualisation onwards are typical to the industry and the 
Holding Company considering the uncertainty and measurability of eventual success of a project. 
There are often timing differences between when revenue/ cost invoiced/incurred to when revenue/
cost is actually earned/ charged. The resultant bifurcation between accruals and deferrals are brought to 
account at each reporting date. Recognition of revenue is driven by specific terms of related contracts.

	 The accounting policies for revenue recognition are set out in note 2(n) to the consolidated financial 
statements. This is considered to be a key audit matter due to significance of revenue in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss and the complexity involved in the revenue cycle for determination of existence, 
accuracy and timing of revenue recognition.

	 Description of Auditor’s response: 

	 Audit procedure relating to existence, accuracy and timing of revenue recognition included reading the 
terms and conditions of contracts relating to different classes of contracts, including but not limited 
to variation in the terms of the contracts, examination of transactions, cut off procedures to check 
that revenue is accrued in the correct accounting period, review of controls and analytical procedures 
covering revenue, direct costs and margins for different revenue streams were audited amongst other 
considerations. Based on the above work performed, no exceptions were noted.

d.	 Advance for Content – the Holding Company (as described in note 6 and note 36 of advance written 
off of the consolidated financial statements)

	 Description of Key Audit Matter:

	 Holding Company carries out number of long-term in-house content development projects for which 
it incurs costs for title registration, amounts paid to writers/ actors and for finalizing cast, preshoot 
expenses, professional fees etc. These amounts have different ageing depending on the progress of 
each project. These costs are classified under a broad head as ‘Advance for Content’ amounting to 
`. 1,946.30 lakh as at March 31, 2025 which is a significant component of the Balance Sheet. 
Therefore, we have considered it to be a key audit matter.

	 Description of Auditor’s response: 

	 Audit procedure included understanding from the technical team about its realizable value, its future 
viability and management contention to continue with the project including considerations for write 
off/ impairment based on future plans of the Holding Company, considerations of trends in the 
country as well Global trends. Several considerations enter into evaluation as to continuance and 
viability of the various projects referred to above. We verify the existence of the agreements, and the 
approval of management with respect to the amount written off based on future plans of the Holding 
Company. Finally, the appropriateness and adequacy of the presentation and disclosure of Advance for 
Content in the financial statements was audited. Based on the above work performed, no exceptions 
were noted.

	 Other Information

	 The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The Other 
information comprises the information included in the Chairman’s Statement, Management Discussion 
and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report and Corporate Governance but 
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The aforesaid 
Other Information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

	 Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

	 In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears 
to be materially misstated. When we read the aforesaid Other Information, if we conclude that there 
is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with 
governance.

	 Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the consolidated financial 
statements

	 The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) 
of the Act, with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true 
and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance, consolidated 
changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 
of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible 
for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give 
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have 
been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of 
the Holding Company, as aforesaid.
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We further draw attention to note 34(b) on the consolidated financial statements which describes that the d Advance for Content — the Holding Company (as described in note 6 and note 36 of advance written 
Holding Company has received an award of 3.52 crore plus interest of 33 Lakh received by the Holding off of the consolidated financial statements) 
Company in ts favour in the arbitration case fled against White Feather Filta (Proprietor Sanjay Gupta), 
White Feather Films has gone in appeal against the above said award. The court has directed the proprietor Description of Key Audit Matter 

to dispose of cate any thd party gts on i properties which are valued € 12 cove Proceedings Holding Company caries ut maser of og em hose cote development projects fox which 
xe ongoing and in view of the same outdanding of 318 crore is considered as Ally recoverable an it nc costs fo le egtrtion, amass paid fo writers actors and fo Holi cat, pret 
consequently there is no provision made of any amount there agains expenses, professional fees etc. These amounts have different ageing depending on the progress of 
Our opinion not modified i respect of the above mates. each project. These costs are classified under a broad head 2s “Advance for Content” amounting to 

€ 1346.30 lakh 25 at March 31, 2025 which is a significant component of the Balance Sheet 
Key Audit Matters Therefor, we have considered itt be a key audit matter 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our profesional judgment, were of most significance in our audit Description of Auditor's response: 
of the consolidated financial statements ofthe cuent period. These matters were addressed in the context of 
our aut ofthe consolidated fnancal statements a8 whale, and in forming our opinion hereon, and we do Audit procedure included understanding fom te techical team about is realizable value, ts ture 
ot provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the viability and management contention to continue with the project including considerations for write 
Foy oi mates 0 be commaniated i ou report off impairment based on future plans of the Holding Company, considerations of trends in the 

country 2s well Global tends. Several considerations enter ito evaluation 2s to conimance and 
2 Valuation of Inventory — the Holding Company (as described in note 7 and 2) of the consolidated viability of the various projects referred to above. We verify the existence of the agreements, nd the 

financial statements) approval of management with respect tothe amount writen off based on future plans of the Holding 
Company. Finally, the appropriateness and adequacy of the presentation ad disclosure of Advance for 

Description of Key Audit Mater: Content i the financial statements was audited. Based on the above work performed, no exceptions 
‘Inventory includes Cinematic Content and Television Content Cinematic Content includes completed wereaoted 
cinematic content (Unamortised and Unexploited content) as at year end. Television Content includes Other Information 
‘mexploited television content 23 at year end. 

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The Other 
‘Considering the distinctiveness of each type of inventory, the industry in which the Holding Company information comprises the information included nthe Chairman's Statement, Management Discussion 
it operating, and the peculiarity involved makes valuation a complex exercise. Additionally, the and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexure to Board's Report and Corporate Govemace but 
allocation of initial cost is done on the basis of genre, mature of the cinematic content involving does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The aforesaid 
significant judgments and estimates by the management The value of the Holding Company's Other Information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report 
Inventories as at March 31, 2005 amounts 0 5,432.41 lakh, which is significant component of the 
Balance Sheet. Therefor, ie have considered to be key audit mate. Our opinion on the consolidated financil statements does not cover the other information and we do 

not express any form of assurance conclusion hereon 
Description of Auditor's response: 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated nancial statements, our responsibilty i to read the 
We have gained adequate understanding of the nature of Inventories and applied the prescriptions other information and, in doing so, consider whether th ofter information is materially inconsistent 
givenin 1nd AS 2 in hei context ‘withthe consolidated nancial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears 
Wo alse the vet re stoped © for each clas of Evento & to be materially misstated. When we read th aforesaid Other Information, i we conclude that there 

‘e analyzed the valuation approaches adopted by management for each class of Inventories for is 2 material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate. ter to those charged wit thelr appropriateness. We alo audited the methodology sed by the Holding Company and verified is 2 mera misstatement therein, we are required 0 te the matter to those charged with 
reasonableness of estimates applied by the Holding Company including useful fz of the content & 
‘plications oftechlogical changes and other factors mention in note 38 tothe consolidated nancial Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the consolidated financial 
statements. Futher we have reviewed the valuation caried out on the basi of the accountng policy statements 
including realizations made in the past and expectation of future potential to cam there from. Finally, 
he appropriateness and adequacy of the presentation and disclosure of Inventory in the financial The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) 
statements was audited. Based on the sbove work performed, no exceptions were noted ofthe Act, wih respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements tht give a rue 

and fair view ofthe consolidated financial posifio, consolidated nancial performance, consolidated 
b. Amortisation of Inventory — the Holding Company (as described in note 2(k) and note 38 of the changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting 

consolidated financial statements) principles generally accepted in Indi, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 
ofthe Act. Th respective Board of Directors of the companies included i the Group ae responsible 

‘Description of Key Audit Matter for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
Inventory of te Holiing Compan comprises ni inal enersinment cotta angle in safeguarding he asses of te Group and for prevesing and detecting ods and ater negli TC selection and application of appropiate accounting policies making Judgments and estimates that are 
‘management which involves the economic useful life of content post digitisation, new avenues of reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial 
 eeloiaton with toe once of me echelon chose onc oF nti. conte controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
oe a ths En eon ne 3 of conn records, relevant to the preparation ad presentation ofthe consolidted financial statements tia give 

: atrue and fair view and are fee rom material misstatement, whether due o fraud or eror, which have financial statements. Cost of inventory i divided into components such 2s Global theatrical rights tre and fi view and are fee fom material mistatemet, whether duo fraud of ror, which hve 
Global broadcasting rights, Music right, Global streaming rights and emerging platforms, Intellectual eo Dupe prepe 
Property Rights (PR) Residual rights. Each of these components of costs are amortised by the E Company, as aforesai
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies 
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group is responsible for overseeing the 
financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated 
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• 	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting 
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud 
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control. 

• 	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible 
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in 
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• 	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• 	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report 
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a 
going concern.

• 	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

• 	 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or 
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. 
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the consolidated 
financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are 
the independent auditors.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually 
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the 
consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative 
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate 
the effect of any identified misstatements in the consolidated financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and other entities included 
in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore 
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes 
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter 
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.	 As required by clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 of Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the 
Order’) issued by the Central Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act based on 
the consideration of the Order reports issued till date by us, of companies included in the consolidated 
financial statements and covered under the Act we report that there are no qualifications or adverse 
remarks reported in the respective Order reports of such companies.

2.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report to the extent applicable that:

	 a.	 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of 
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements.

	 b.	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation 
of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears 
from our examination of those books.

	 c.	 The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes 
in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report 
are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of 
preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

	 d.	 In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

	 e.	 On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company 
and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the 
statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies, none of the directors of Group companies is 
disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 
(2) of the Act. 

	 f.	 With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Group 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure A.

	 g.	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the 
requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 

		  We draw your attention to note 31 to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 
March 31, 2025 according to which the managerial remuneration paid to the Whole-Time 
directors of the Holding Company exceeds the prescribed limits under Section 197 read with 
Schedule V to the Act by ̀  36.13 lakh. As per the provisions of the Act, the excess remuneration 
is subject to approval of the shareholders which the Holding Company proposes to obtain in the 
forthcoming Annual General Meeting. 

	 h.	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us: 

		  i. 	 The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the 
consolidated financial position of the Group – Refer note 29 to the consolidated financial 
statements.

		  ii. 	 The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including 
derivative contracts.

		  iii. 	 There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Company

		  iv. 	 a. 	� To the best of our knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the note 43(g)(i) to the 
consolidated financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or 
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or 
kind of funds) by the Company or any of its subsidiaries which are companies 
incorporated in India to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign 
entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing 
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in 
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the Company or any of such subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

			   b. 	� To the best of our knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the note 43(g)(ii) to the 
consolidated financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company 
or any of its subsidiaries which are companies incorporated in India from any 
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company or 
any of such subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures shall, directly or indirectly, 
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 
by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

			   c. 	� Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused 
us to believe that the representations as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain 
any material misstatement.

		  v. 	 The group has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

 		  vi. 	 Based on our examination which included test checks, the ‘Holding Company and its 
subsidiaries’ incorporated in India has used an accounting software for maintaining its 
books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the 
same has been operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the 
software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of 
audit trail feature being tampered with. Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved 
by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries as per the statutory requirements for record 
retention.

 For BD. Jokhakar & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 104345W

Bhavik Jain
Partner

	 Membership number 160166
Mumbai, May 27, 2025		   UDIN: 25160166BMRJWX6807
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Report on Ot Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
1. As required by clause (x) of parsgraph 3 of Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (the Brag lan 

Onder issued by the Central Goverment of Indi in frus of Section 143(11) ofthe Act based on Neabersip mabe Les 
the consideration ofthe Order reports issued ll dat by us, of companies inciuded i the conslidited ¢ 
financial statements and covered under the Act we report that there are no qualifications or adverse 0A May 27,2023 UDIN: 25160166BMRIWX6807 
retuaks reported nth respective Order report of such companies. 

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) ofthe Act, we rport oth extent applicable that: 
2 Wehave soughtand obtained all the information and explanations which tothe best of 

our knowledge and belef were necessary forthe purposes of our audit of the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements. 

bn our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation 
ofthe aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so fr as it appears 
from our examination of those books. 

© The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes 
in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report 
are im agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of 
preparation of the consolidated financial statements.
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ANNEXURE A TO THE AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ Section of 
Independent Auditors’ Report on consolidated financial statements of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Pritish Nandy Communications 
Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and 
its subsidiaries together referred as “the Group”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of Holding Company and its subsidiary companies responsible for 
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the respective companies considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company’s policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Holding Company and its subsidiary companies which are companies incorporated in India, based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed 
to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design 
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Holding Company and 
its subsidiary company’s which are companies incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's 
internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that 

1.	 pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; 

2.	 provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and 
that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations 
of management and directors of the Company; and 

3.	 provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, 
use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated 
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error 
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls 
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, incorporated in India has, in all material respects, 
an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls 
over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

 For BD. Jokhakar & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 104345W

Bhavik Jain
Partner

	 Membership number 160166
Mumbai, May 27, 2025		   UDIN: 25160166BMRJWX6807

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PRITISH NANDY COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED Jl) 
THE 32ND ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2025 

ANNEXURE A TO THE AUDITOR’S REPORT 

(Reformed to in paragraph 2(9) under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” Section of Meaning of ternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
Independent Auditors” Report on consolidated financial statements of even de) A Company's intemal financial control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (3) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated financial 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's 

intemal nancial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that 
We have audited the intemal Snancial controls over Sancal reporting of Pitsh Nandy Communications 
Limited (hereinafter refered to 2s “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (ie Holding Company znd 1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
fs subsidiaries together refered as “the Group”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjuction with our audit of the fransactions and dispositions of the asets of the Company 
consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company forte year ended on that date. 2. provide reasonable assurance tha transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls consolidated financial statements in accordance with generaly accepted accounting principles, and 

that receipts and expenditures of the Company ae being made only in accordance wih authorisations The respective Board cof Directors of Holding Company and its subsidiary companies responsible for of aanagement and directors of the Company. and 
establishing and maintaining intemal financial controls based on the intemal control over financial reporting = 
criteria established by the respective companies considering the essential components of intemal control 3. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, 
stated in the Guidance note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reperting issued by the use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated 
‘istitute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the desien, implementation financial statements. 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating efectively for ensuring the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company’s policies, the Inherent Limitations of Intemal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
safeguarding of ts assets, the prevention and detection of ands and emo the accuracy md completeness of po ecause of ent limitations of intemal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of elable financial information, as required under the Act yey of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to eror 
Auditor's Responsibility or rand may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the intemal financial controls 

over financial reporting to futur periods are subject tothe risk that the internal nancial control over financial 
Our responsibility i to xpress an opinion on the intemal nancial controls ver financial reporting of the reporting may become inadequate because of changes in condifions, or that the degre of compliance with the 
Holding Company and its subsidiary companies which are companies incorporated in Indi, based on our polices or procedures may deteriorate 
‘audit. We conducted our audit in ccordance with the Guidance note on Audit of Itemal Financial Controls 
‘Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAT and deemed Opinion 
to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to 2n audit of internal financial Cone, th. Ee 1 i of ec Fant Cong an, both ed vy th ns of 11 option, be Holing Comp nd ts sige, opr nnd fa, all atrial pect 
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance note require that we comply with ethical 2% 2dequate in nancial controls system over financial reporting and such intern cial control over financial reporting were operating effectively 2s at March 31, 2025, based on the interzal control over requirments and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate intemal 
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated 12ncial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of intemal 
tea one, PornE contol stated inthe Guidance ot on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issed 

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
‘Our audit involves performing procedures to abtai audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and thelr operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of intemal fancal controls over For BD. Jokhakar & Co. 
financial reporting assessing the ic tha a material weakness exist, and testing and evaluating the design po 
and operating effectiveness of intemal control based on the assessed ick. The procedures selected depend on Fim Ree es 
the auditor's judgement, including the assesement of the isk of material misstatement of the consolidated = 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or ero. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our Bhavik Jain 
‘audit opinion on the intemal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Holding Company and Partner 
ts subsidiary company’s which ae companies incorporated in Indi. Membership umber 160166 Mumbai, May 27,2025 UDIN: 25160166BMRIWXG807
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(In ` lakh)

 Particulars  Note no As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

I. ASSETS

Non-current assets

a. 	 Property, plant and equipment 3  111.97  177.66 

b. 	 Financial assets

	 Other financial assets 4  327.36  347.30 

c. 	 Income tax assets (net) 5  104.49  125.96 

d. 	 Other non-current assets 6  2,177.31  2,006.14 

Total non-current assets  2,721.13  2,657.06 

Current assets

a. 	 Inventories 7  5,432.41  5,498.10 

b. 	 Financial assets

 	 i. 	 Trade receivables 8  2.66  130.38 

 	 ii. 	 Cash and cash equivalents 9  924.22  375.15 

 	 iii. 	 Bank balances other than (ii) above 10  30.92  11.91 

 	 iv. 	 Other financial assets 11  882.61  1,058.35 

c. 	 Other current assets 12  124.31  152.42 

Total current assets  7,397.13  7,226.31 

TOTAL ASSETS  10,118.26  9,883.37 

II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY

a. 	 Equity share capital 13  1,446.70  1,446.70 

b. 	 Other equity 14  5,909.99  6,006.10 

Equity attributable to owners of holding company  7,356.69  7,452.80 

Non controlling interest  0.11  0.11 

Total equity  7,356.80  7,452.91 

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities

a. 	 Financial Liabilities

 	 Borrowings 15  143.96  76.39 

b. 	 Deferred tax liabilities (net) 16  1,057.24  1,100.88 

Total non current liabilities  1,201.20  1,177.27 

Current liabilities

a. 	 Financial liabilities

 	 i. 	 Borrowings 17  82.27  36.42 

 	 ii. 	 Trade payables 18

		  Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 33.62 13.39 

		  Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises  270.45  448.13 

 	 iii. 	 Other financial liabilities 19  17.89  12.70 

b. 	 Other current liabilities 20  1,156.00  742.55 

c. 	 Current tax liabilities (net) 21  0.03 0.00

Total current liabilities  1,560.26  1,253.19 

Total liabilities  2,761.46  2,430.46 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  10,118.26  9,883.37 

Material accounting policies 2

notes to accounts form an integral part of consolidated financial statements 1 to 49

As per our report of even date attached
For BD Jokhakar & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 104345W

Bhavik Jain Pallab Bhattacharya Raghu Palat
Partner Wholetime Director and CEO Director
Membership number 160166 DIN 00008277 DIN 00311994

Kishor Palkar Priyanka Shah
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

Mumbai, May 27, 2025 Mumbai, May 27, 2025

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 
i» PRITISH NANDY COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED 

THE 52ND ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2025 

(n¥ lakh) 

Patiala: Noteno asa sa 
March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

L ASSETS — 

Non-cument assets 
= Property plant ond equipment 3 1197 1766 
b Financial ase 

Oterfvacia assets 4 27136 34130 
ec Income tax assets (net) 5 104.49 125.96 

d Other non-current assets 6 217731 2,006.14 

Tota non-cument assets ET 
Cum assets 
2 Inventories 7 sana sas810 
b Financial ase 

© Toderceibie 5 266 1038 
6 Cashand cath equivalents 5 un 51515 
iii. Bank balances other than (ii) above 10 30.92 1191 

fi Other nancial assets un 61 105835 
© Other cument ass n 2431 124 
Total cument assets Tem men 
TOTAL ASSETS 1011826 555337 

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

EquiTy 
+ Equity share capital 1 14670 144670 
b Oereqity 1 590999 6006.10 
Eauty atiutabl to mers of holdin company 73566 745280 
Non controlling interest on on 
Total equity TO mem mal 
LIABILITIES 
Non-cument lsilies 
+ Financial Listes 

Bonovings 15 14396 7639 
b. Deferred tax liabilities (net) 16 1,057.24 1,100.88 

Total on cunt lsilies too Lm 
Cument lsilies 
+ Financial lable 

i Bomovisg: ” 22 3602 
Gi Tode payables 1s 

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and sll enterprises 56 139 
Total outstanding dues of exditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 21045 ass 

Gi Other nancial ish 1 fry 270 
b Other curent ible 2 115600 74255 

ec Current tax liabilities (net) 2 0.03 0.00 

Total cumen lsiliies TT tes umn 
Total liabilities 2,761.46 2.43046 

"TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 10,118.26 9.88337 

Material accounting policies 2 El 

notes to accounts form a integral part of consolidted fc statements 1d 

is per our sept of even date atached 
For BD Jokhakar & Co. For and on bea ofthe Board of Directors 
Chirtered Accountats 
Fim Registration No: 104345 

Black Jin Pallsb Bhatacharya Raghu Peat 
Partuer Wholetime Director and CEO Director 
Membership masher 160165 DIN 00008277 DIN 00311904 

Kishor Pallar Priyanka Shab 
Chief Financial Offcer Company Secxtary ad Compliance Oficer 

Minabai, May 27,2025 Mumba, May 27,2025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

(In ` lakh)

Particulars Note no For the year ended  
March 31, 2025

For the year ended  
March 31, 2024

INCOME

I. Revenue from operations 22 3,360.42 5,771.93

II. Other income 23 67.92 64.06

III. Total income (I+II) 3,428.34 5,835.99

IV. EXPENSES

Cost of content 24 2,739.85 4,887.01

Changes in unamortised/ unexploited/ unfinished content 25 5.79 15.67

Employee benefits expense 26 397.17 378.56

Finance costs 27 8.34 9.77

Depreciation and amortization expense 3 31.48 32.41

Advances written off 36 42.73 13.42

Other expenses 28 341.72 260.49

Total expenses (IV) 3,567.08 5,597.33

V. Profit/ (loss) before tax (III-IV)  (138.74)  238.66 

VI. Tax expense

 Current tax 37 (b) (A) 0.17 0.01

 Deferred tax 37 (b) (B) (43.64) (3.07)

Total tax expense (VI)  (43.47)  (3.06)

VII. Profit/ (Loss) for the year (V-VI)  (95.27)  241.72 

VIII. Profit/ (loss) is attributable to:

Owners of the company  (95.27)  241.72 

Non-controlling interest 0.00 0.00

 (95.27)  241.72 

IX. Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 30 (b)  (0.84)  (4.74)

Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 0.00 0.00

Other comprehensive income, net of tax (IX)  (0.84)  (4.74)

X. Other comprehensive income attributable to

Owners of the company  (0.84)  (4.74)

Non-controlling interest 0.00 0.00

 (0.84)  (4.74)

XI.  Total comprehensive income for the period (VIII+IX)  (96.11)  236.98 

XII.  Total comprehensive income is attributable to: 

Owners of the company (96.11) 236.98

Non-controlling interest 0.00 0.00

(96.11) 236.98

XIII. Earnings per equity share (Face value of ` 10)

Basic and diluted 40  (0.66)  1.67 

Material accounting policies 2

notes to accounts form an integral part of consolidated financial statements 1 to 49

As per our report of even date attached
For BD Jokhakar & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 104345W

Bhavik Jain Pallab Bhattacharya Raghu Palat
Partner Wholetime Director and CEO Director
Membership number 160166 DIN 00008277 DIN 00311994

Kishor Palkar Priyanka Shah
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

Mumbai, May 27, 2025 Mumbai, May 27, 2025

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS 

PRITISH NANDY COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED - 
THE 32ND ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2025 

(Tak) 
Particulars Noteno For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31,2025 March 31,2024 
INCOME 

I Reveme from operations 2 3360.42 577183 
IL Oerimcome 3 619 6406 
IL Tot income (I) 342834 583599 
IV EXPENSES 

Cost of content u 2739085 458701 
Changes in unamortised! unexploited unfinished content 2 579 1567 
Employee benefits expense 2% son17 37836 
Finance costs 7 834 om 
Depreciation and amortization expense 3 3148 241 
Advances writen of 36 an 13.42 
Other expenses 25 17 26049 
Total expenses (IV) 3,567.08 559733 

V. Profit loss) before tax (LIV) 13874) 23865 
VL Taxexpemse 

Curent tax BIOTEN 017 001 
Deferred tax TBE) 364) Gon 
Total tax expense (VD) 341) [i 

VIL Profit’ (Loss) forthe year (V-VI) ©s21) 212 
VIL Profit (oss is atrbutable to: 

Ovimers ofthe company ©sm un 
Non-controlling interest 000 000 

©5.27) un 
IX Other comprehensive income 

ems that will nt be reclassified to profit o loss 00) ©s84) 1 
Income tax relating o items that will no be reclassified to profit o loss 000 000 

Other comprehensive income, net of tax (0X) 038 E) 
X Other comprehensive income attributable to 

Oveners ofthe company 038) 0) 
Non-controlling interest 000 000 

034) 19) 

XL Total comprehensive income for the period (VII-TX) ©611) 25698 

XIL Total comprehensive income is atrbutable to: 
Ovimers ofthe company ©611) 23698 
Non-controlling interest 000 000 

611) 2698 

XIII Earnings per equity share (Face value of 10) 
Basic and diluted 0 ©56) 167 
Material accounting policies 2 
notes to accounts form an integral part of consolidated financial statements 1tods 

As per our report of even date attached 
For BD Jokbaar & Co. For and on bekalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants 
Fim Registration No: 104345W. 

Bhavik Jain Palla Bhattacharya Raghu Palat 
Partner Wholetime Director and CEO Director 
Membership number 160166 DIN 00008277 DIN 00311594. 

Kishor Palkar Priyanka Shah 
Chief Financial Officer ‘Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 

Mumbai, May 27, 2025 Mombai, May 27, 2025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(In ` lakh)
 Particulars   For the year ended 

March 31, 2025
  For the year ended 

March 31, 2024
 A.  CASH FLOW GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 

 Profit/ (loss) before taxes  (138.74)  238.66 
 Adjustment for 
 Advances written off 42.73 13.42
 Depreciation 31.48 32.41
 Finance cost 8.34 9.77
 Property, plant and equipment written off 3.28 0.33
 Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 8.14 0.00
 Expected credit loss property, plant and equipment 3.19 3.19
 Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (0.08) 0.00
 Trade payable balances written back  (0.16)  (0.11)
 Interest on fixed deposit  (59.77) 37.15  (55.71) 3.30
 Operating profit/ (loss) before adjustments  (101.59)  241.96 
 Adjusted for 
 Other financial assets non-current  0.75  (0.01)
 Other non current assets  (213.90)  (15.21)
 Cinematic and television content 65.69 45.67
 Trade receivables current  127.72  (84.69)
 Other financial assets current  286.06  (394.67)
 Movement in tax assets  21.47  (26.82)
 Other current assets  27.27  (41.33)
 Trade payables current  (157.29)  394.67 
 Other financial liabilities current 5.19 12.70
 Other current liabilities current  413.45  576.41  77.23  (32.46)
 Cash generated from operations  474.82  209.50 
 Direct taxes paid (0.14) (0.01)
 Net cash from operating activities (A)  474.68  209.49 

 B.  CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
 Payment to acquire property, plant and equipment  (4.38)  (8.77)
 Proceeds from property, plant and equipment  27.25 0.00
 Proceeds from fixed deposits 916.68 748.79
 Fixed deposits made (1,030.01) (567.00)
 Interest on fixed deposit 59.77 55.71
 Net cash from/ (used in) investing activities (B)  (30.69)  228.73 

 C.  CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
 Proceeds from non-current borrowings 149.84 0.00
 Repayment of current borrowing  (36.42)  (64.83)
 Finance and other charges paid  (8.34)  (9.77)
 Net cash from/ (used in) financing activities ( C )  105.08  (74.60)

 Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  549.07  363.62 
 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year (refer note 9 and also refer note iii below) 375.15 11.53
 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year (refer note 9 and also refer note iii below) 924.22 375.15

 Material accounting policies	 2 
 Notes to accounts form an integral part of consolidated financial statements	 1 to 49

Notes: 

 i. 	 The above Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method’ as set out in the Ind AS 7 on Statement of Cash Flows as notified under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015 as amended. 

 ii. 	 Refer note 15.2  for a reconciliation of changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

 iii. 	 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year includes an amount of ̀  374.18 lakh (PY ̀  3.22 lakh) and Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year includes ̀  899.59 lakh (PY ̀  374.18 lakh) 
which is exclusively for the projects and not for other purposes. 

 iv. 	 Figures in brackets represents deductions/ outflows. 

 v. 	 Previous year’s figures have been regrouped wherever necessary.

As per our report of even date attached
For BD Jokhakar & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 104345W

Bhavik Jain Pallab Bhattacharya Raghu Palat
Partner Wholetime Director and CEO Director
Membership number 160166 DIN 00008277 DIN 00311994

Kishor Palkar Priyanka Shah
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

Mumbai, May 27, 2025 Mumbai, May 27, 2025

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
P; WP | PRITISH NANDY COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED 

THE 32ND ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2025 

(n¥ lak) 
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31,2025 March 31,2024 
A CASHFLOW GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 

Profit (oss) before taxes 13874) 2866 
Adjustment for 
Advances writen off an B42 
Depreciation 3148 41 
Finance cost 834 07 
Property, plant and equipment writen off 328 033 
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 814 000 
Expected credit oss property, plant and equipment 319 319 
Profit on sae of property, plant and equipment 009 000 
Trade payable balances writen back 016 1 
Interest on fixed deposit E50) 3115 G57) 330 
Operating profit lose) before adjustments (10159) 2196 
Adjusted for 
Other financial assets non-cunent 075 on 
Other non current assets is san 
Cinematic and television content 6560 4561 
Trade receivables current wn 469) 
Other financial assets curent 2606 G67) 
Movement in tax assets 14 882) 
Other current assets 22 33) 
Trade payables current as129) 39467 
Other financial lsbliies curent 519 1270 
Other current liabilities current 41345 ST641 723 248) 
Cash generated from operations [Ze 20950 
Direct taxes paid ©14) on 
Net cash from operating activities (4) 47468 209.49 

B. CASHFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Payment to acquire property, plant and equipment 39) @®m 
Proceeds from property, plant and equipment 2125 000 
Proceeds from fixed deposits 916.68 74879 
Fixed deposits made (1.03001) (567.00) 
Interest on fixed deposit so 5571 
Net cash from (used in) investing activities (8) G69) 2873 

C. CASHFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Proceeds from non. current borrowings 14984 000 
Repayment of current borrowing G642) (6483) 
Finance and other charges paid ©39 © 
Net cash from (used in) financing activities (C) 10508 7460) 

Net increase! (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 54907 363.62 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year (refer mote 9 and also refer note ii below) 37515 1153 
(Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year (refer note and also refer mote i below) 92422 37515 

Material accountng policies 2 
Notes to accounts form an integral part of consolidated financial statements Ttods 

Notes: 
i Thesbore Consltted Sateen of Cas Flos hs bn propre der te Tdirct Method a ut ted AS 7 on Siemntof Cash Flows s notified der Companies (ian Accounting Standard) Riles, 

ii Refernote 152 for a reconcilition of changes in liabilities arising from financing activites 
i. Cashand cash equivalents at th beginning of the financial year includes an amount of 374.18 Lakh (PY €3 22 lakh) and Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year includes 599.59 lakh (PY ¥ 374.18 ak) 

whichis exclusively for the projects and not for ofher purposes 
iv. Figures in brackets represents deductions! outflows. 
©. Previous year's figures have been regrouped wherever necessary. 

As per our report of even date atached 
For BD Jokhakar & Co. For and on bekalf ofthe Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No: 104345W. 

Bhavik Jain Pall Bhattacharya Raghu Palat 
Partner ‘Wholetime Director and CEO Director 
Membership number 160166 DIN 00008277 DING0311994 

Kishor Palkar Priyanka Shah 
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 

Mumbai, May 27, 2025 Mumbai, May 27, 2025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Equity shares of face value of ` 10 each

(In ` Lakh)

Year note no Balance at the beginning of 
the reporting period 

Changes in equity share 
capital due to prior period 

errors

Restated balance at the 
beginning of the current/ 

previous reporting 
period

Changes in equity share 
capital during the period

Balance at the end of the 
reporting period 

Financial Year 2023-24 13  1,446.70 0.00 0.00  1,446.70 

Financial Year 2024-25 13  1,446.70 0.00 0.00  1,446.70 

B. OTHER EQUITY

(In ` Lakh)

Particulars Reserves and surplus Attributable to 
owners of the 

parent

Non-controlling 
interest

Total other equity

Capital reserve Securities premium General reserves Retained earnings

As at March 31, 2023*  0.37  6,719.59  220.98  (1,171.82)  5,769.12 0.11  5,769.23 

Profit/ (loss) for the year ended March 31, 2024 0.00 0.00 0.00  241.72  241.72 0.00  241.72 

Other comprehensive income 0.00 0.00 0.00  (4.74)  (4.74) 0.00  (4.74)

Non-controlling interest 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Total comprehensive income for the year 0.00 0.00 0.00  236.98  236.98 0.00  236.98 

As at March 31, 2024*  0.37  6,719.59  220.98  (934.84)  6,006.10 0.11  6,006.21

Profit/ (loss) for the year ended March 31, 2025 0.00 0.00 0.00  (95.27)  (95.27) 0.00  (95.27)

Other comprehensive income 0.00 0.00 0.00  (0.84)  (0.84) 0.00  (0.84)

Non-controlling interest 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Total comprehensive income for the year 0.00 0.00 0.00  (96.11)  (96.11) 0.00  (96.11)

As at March 31, 2025*  0.37  6,719.59  220.98  (1,030.95)  5,909.99 0.11  5,910.10

*There are no changes in other equity due to prior period errors

Material accounting policies 2

Notes to accounts form an integral part of consolidated financial statements 1 to 49

As per our report of even date attached
For BD Jokhakar & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 104345W

Bhavik Jain Pallab Bhattacharya Raghu Palat
Partner Wholetime Director and CEO Director
Membership number 160166 DIN 00008277 DIN 00311994

Kishor Palkar Priyanka Shah
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

Mumbai, May 27, 2025 Mumbai, May 27, 2025

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

A EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PRITISH NANDY COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED
THE 32ND ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2025

1.	 Corporate information

	 Pritish Nandy Communications Limited (“the Company”) is a public company incorporated and 
domiciled in India. It was one of the first media and entertainment Company to go public in the 
year 2000, when it was listed on India’s two best known stock exchanges, Bombay Stock Exchange 
and National Stock Exchange. The registered office of the Company is situated at 87/88 Mittal 
Chambers, Nariman Point, Mumbai 400021. The Company is engaged in the business of production 
and exploitation of content including cinematographic films, TV serials and Digital Series etc. for 
worldwide exploitation in all formats.

	 These financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 were approved for issue by the Board of 
Directors on May 27, 2025.

2. 	 Material Accounting Policies

	 a. 	 Basis of accounting and statement of compliance

		  These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian 
Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Ind AS’) as prescribed under Section 133 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read together with the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time.

	 b. 	 Basis of preparation

		  These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis adopting 
accrual basis of accounting except for certain financial assets and financial liabilities that are 
measured at fair value and defined benefit plan assets that are measured at fair value at the end 
of each reporting period as explained in the accounting policies below. The accounting policies 
have been applied consistently over all the periods presented in these financial statements.

	 c. 	 Rounding of amounts

		  These financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest lakh as 
per requirement of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, except when otherwise indicated.

	 d. 	 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting: 

		  i.	 Subsidiary companies 

			   Subsidiary companies are all entities over which the Group has control. The Group 
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its 
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power 
to direct the relevant activities of the entity. Subsidiary companies are fully consolidated 
from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from 
the date that control ceases. The Group combines the Financial Statements of the parent 
and its subsidiary companies’ line by line adding together like items of assets, liabilities, 
equity, income and expenses. Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains 
on transactions between Group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also 
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred 
asset. Accounting Policies of subsidiary companies have been changed where necessary 
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group. Non-controlling 
interests in the results and equity of subsidiary companies are shown separately in the 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, Consolidated Statement of changes in equity 
and Consolidated Balance Sheet respectively. 

		  ii. 	 Changes in ownership interest 

			   The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss 
of control as transactions with equity owners of the Group. A change in ownership 
interest results in an adjustment between the carrying amounts of the controlling and 
non-controlling interests to reflect their relative interest in the subsidiary companies. 
Any difference between the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests and 
any consideration paid or received is recognised within equity. When the Group ceases 
to consolidate or equity account for an investment because of a loss of control, joint 
control or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its 
fair value with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value 
becomes the initial carrying amount for the purpose of subsequently accounting for the 
retained interest as an or financial asset. In addition, any amount previously recognised 
in other comprehensive Income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group 
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts 
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to the statement 
of consolidated profit and loss. 

	 e. 	 Significant estimates, judgements and assumptions

		  The preparation of financial statements is in conformity with Ind AS requires the management 
to make estimates, assumptions and exercise judgement in applying the accounting policies that 
affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities 
at the end of these financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the 
years presented.

		  The management believes that these estimates are prudent and reasonable and are based on 
management’s best knowledge of current events and actions. Actual results could differ from 
these estimates and difference between actual results and estimates are recognized in the period 
in which results are known or materialised. Information about critical judgements in applying 
accounting policies, as well as estimates and assumptions that have the most significant effect 
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are included in 
the following notes:

		  i. 	 Measurement of defined benefit obligations

		  ii. 	 Measurement and likelihood of occurrence of contingencies

		  iii. 	 Recognition of deferred tax assets

		  iv. 	 Inventory valuation/ useful life of cinematic content

		  v. 	 Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment and impairment of Trade Receivables/ 
Advance for Content

	 f. 	 Current and non-current classification

		  These consolidated financial statements are prepared and presented as per the requirements 
of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. All assets and liabilities have been classified 
and disclosed as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and 
other criteria set out in Schedule III. Based on the nature of products and the time between 

the rendering of services and their realization into cash and cash equivalents, the Company 
has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current - non-current 
classification of assets and liabilities.

	 g. 	 Property, plant and equipment

		  Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment 
losses, if any. Cost comprises of purchase price net of trade discounts and rebates, non-
refundable duties and taxes, any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working 
condition for its intended use. Cost also includes the initial estimate of decommissioning, 
restoration and similar liabilities, if any, borrowing cost directly attributable to acquisition/ 
construction of a qualifying asset up to the date the asset is ready for its intended use. 

		  Subsequent expenditure on property, plant and equipment after its purchase/ completion is 
capitalized only if such expenditure results in an increase in the future benefits from such 
asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance and the cost of the item can be 
measured reliably.

		  Spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment are recognized as property, plant and 
equipment, if they are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, for rental to 
others, or for administrative purposes and are expected to be used during more than one period.

		  Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

		  Depreciable amount for property, plant and equipment is the cost of an asset, or other amount 
substituted for cost, less its estimated residual value. Depreciation on property, plant and 
equipment is provided on the straight-line method over the useful lives of assets as prescribed 
under Part C of Schedule II of the Act.

		  Depreciation is calculated on a pro-rata basis from the date of acquisition/ installation till the 
date, the assets are sold or disposed off. Depreciation on improvement to leave and license 
premises is calculated over the period of leave and license. 

		  The useful life is for the whole of the asset, except where cost of the part of the asset is 
significant to the total cost of the asset and useful life of that part is different from the useful 
life of the remaining asset, useful life of that significant part (“Component”) is determined 
separately and the depreciable amount of the said Component is allocated on systematic basis 
to each accounting period during the useful life of the asset.

Assets Useful life

Office equipment 5 years

Computer equipment 3 years

Furniture and fixtures 10 years

Motor vehicles (Car) 8 years

		  The residual values and useful lives of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each 
financial year end and adjusted if appropriate.

		  The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is de-recognized on disposal 
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss 
arising from the de-recognition of an item of property, plant and equipment on disposal is 
measured as the difference between the net disposal in proceeds and the carrying amount of the 
item and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the item is de-recognized.

	 h. 	 Impairment of property, plant and equipment

		  The carrying amounts of the Company’s property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each 
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If there are indicators 
of impairment, an assessment is made to determine whether the asset’s carrying value exceeds 
its recoverable amount. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an 
individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to 
which the asset belongs. 

		  Impairment is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss whenever the carrying amount of an 
asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the 
higher of net selling price i.e. fair value less costs to sell, and value in use. In assessing value 
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current assessment of the time value of money and risks specific to 
the asset.

		  After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its 
remaining useful life. 

		  If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be 
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized, the reversal 
of the previously recognized impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss Section of the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 i. 	 Leases

		  The Company has adopted Ind AS 116-Leases effective April 1, 2019, using the modified 
retrospective method. The Company has applied the standard to its leases with the cumulative 
impact recognized on the date of initial application (April 1, 2019).

		  The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance 
of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease, if 
fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the 
arrangement convey a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified 
in an arrangement.

		  As a Lessee

		  The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for premises. The Company, at 
the inception of a contract, assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, 
or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a 
time in exchange for a consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control 
the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

		  i. 	 the contract involves the use of an identified asset

		  ii. 	 the Company has substantially all the economic benefits from use of the asset through 
the period of the lease and
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		  iii. 	 the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset

		  The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement 
date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of 
the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, 
plus any initial direct costs incurred less any lease incentives received.

		  The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the 
commencement date to the end of the lease term.

		  The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not 
paid at the commencement date. The lease payments shall be discounted using the interest 
rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily 
determined, the Company shall use the incremental borrowing rate.

		  The lease liability is subsequently re-measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect 
interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.

		  The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term 
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company 
recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense over the lease term.

	 j. 	 Cash and cash equivalents

		  Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents comprise of 
all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of 
acquisition, that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to 
insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash 
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposit, as defined above.

	 k. 	 Inventory

		  i. 	 Cinematic content

			   The cinematic content has been valued on the following basis

I Incomplete cinematic 
content (Unfinished)

: �at lower of allocated/ identified cost or  net 
realizable value.

II Completed cinematic 
content (Unamortized /
Unexploited)

: �at lower of unamortized allocated cost as 
estimated by the management depending on 
the genre, nature and contents of the cinematic 
content or net realizable value.

			   The Company allocates cost of production amongst Global Theatrical Rights, Global 
Broadcasting Rights, Music Rights, Global Streaming Rights and Emerging Rights and 
IPR/ Residual Rights on an equitable basis.

			   Basis of amortization of allocated costs

			   i. 	 Global Theatrical Rights

1st  
release

2nd  
release

3rd  
release 

80% 10% 10%

			   ii. 	 Global Broadcasting Rights

1st  
broadcast

2nd 
broadcast

3rd  
broadcast

4th  
broadcast

5th  
broadcast

50% 20% 10% 10% 10%

			   iii. 	 Music Rights: @ 100% on release.

			   iv. 	 Global streaming rights and emerging platforms:

				�    Amortized on the basis of percentage of revenue earned against the total expected 
revenue over the period of useful economic life.

			   v. 	� IPR/ Residual rights: Carried forward till IPR survives and remains with the 
Company and has a remaining useful life as per management evaluation with a 
ceiling capped at 40 years.

			   Notes

			   i. 	� The production/ acquiring costs are amortized on the above basis by the 
Company. The production costs are revenue costs and are treated as such for the 
purposes of taxation.

			   ii. 	� No unamortized costs are retained once the entire rights in respect of the 
cinematic content are sold out on an outright basis.

		  ii. 	 Television content

			   The television content has been valued on the following basis

I. �Unexploited television content : at lower of average of allocated cost or 
net realizable value.

II. Unfinished television content  : at lower of average of allocated cost or 
net realizable value.

III. Production property : at lower of allocated cost or net 
realizable value.

IV. Exploited television content is amortized at lower of unamortized cost as 
estimated by the management on the following basis or net realizable value

Particulars 1st 2nd 3rd Residual
Telecast Telecast Telecast Value

Entertainment content 50% 30% 15% 5%

Current affairs and news 
based content

95% - - 5%

Commissioned content 100% - - -

				    No unamortized costs shall be carried forward beyond a period of 10 years.

				    Notes

				    i. 	� The Company amortises production costs in respect of television content 
once telecast and further retelecastable on the basis of the nature and 
contents of the television content and the expected number of telecast as 
per the chart depicted above.

				    ii. 	� The production costs are amortized as per the above referred policy 
followed by the Company.

				    iii. 	� The Company retains one copy of its own television content for record 
purpose.

	 l. 	 Financial Instruments

		  A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a 
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

		  i. 	 Financial Assets: Classification

			   The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

			   I. 	 Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other 
comprehensive income, or through profit or loss)

			   II. 	 Those measured at amortized cost.

				    The classification depends on the business model of the Company for managing 
financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

				    For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in other 
comprehensive income or profit or loss. For investments in debt instruments, this 
will depend on the business model in which the investment is held. 

				�    For investments in equity instruments, method of recognition will depend on 
whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial 
recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other 
comprehensive income.

		  ii. 	 Recognition and measurement

			   I. 	 Initial recognition

				    Financial assets are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument. In the case of financial assets that are 
not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, financial assets are recognized 
initially at fair value plus, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition 
of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value 
through profit or loss are expensed in the statement of profit and loss.

			   II. 	 Subsequent measurement

				    After initial recognition, financial assets are measured at

				    a. 	 Financial assets carried at amortized cost

				    b. 	 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

				    c. 	 Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss;

		  iii. 	 Debt instrument

			   Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business 
model for managing the assets and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are 
three measurement categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

			   I. 	 Measured at amortized cost

				    Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flow where those 
cash flows represent solely payment of principal and interest are measured at 
amortized cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included in interest 
income using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. The amortization of EIR 
and loss arising from impairment, if any is recognized in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss.

			   II. 	 Measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

				    Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is 
achieved by both, selling financial assets and collecting contractual cash flows 
that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at 
fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI).

				    Fair value movements are recognized in the OCI. Interest income measured using 
the EIR method and impairment losses, if any, are recognized in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. 

				�    On de-recognition, cumulative gain/ (loss) previously recognized in OCI is 
reclassified from the equity to other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

			   III. 	 Measured at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL).

				    A financial asset not classified as either amortized cost or FVTOCI, is classified 
as Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL). Such financial assets are measured 
at fair value with all changes in fair value, including interest income and dividend 
income if any, recognized as other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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		  iv. 	 Equity instruments

			   The Company subsequently measures all investments in equity instruments other 
than those in subsidiary companies, at fair value. The management of the Company 
has elected to present fair value gains and losses on such equity investments in other 
comprehensive income, and there is no subsequent reclassification of these fair value 
gains and losses to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

			   Dividends from such investments continue to be recognized in profit or loss as other 
income when the right to receive payment is established. Changes in the fair value of 
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss.

			   Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured 
at FVTOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.

			   Investment in subsidiaries is carried at cost less impairment loss in accordance with Ind 
AS 27 on “Separate Financial Statements”.

		  v. 	 Impairment of financial assets

			   The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses (ECL) 
associated with its financial assets carried at amortized cost and FVTOCI. note 42 details 
how the Company assesses the impairment losses.

			   For trade and lease receivable only, the Company applies the simplified approach 
permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses 
to be recognized from initial recognition of such receivables.

		  vi. 	 De-recognition of financial assets

			   A financial asset is de-recognized only when the Company

			   I. 	 has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

			   II. 	 retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial, asset, but 
assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or  more recipients.

			   Where the Company has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has 
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such 
cases, the financial asset is de-recognized through Statement of Profit and Loss or other 
comprehensive income as applicable.

			   Where the Company has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership 
of the financial asset, the financial asset is not de-recognized. 

			   Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all 
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is de-recognized 
if the Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company 
retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognized to the extent 
of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

		  vii. 	 Financial liabilities

			   I. 	 Classification as debt or equity:

				    Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified 
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the 
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

			   II. 	 Initial recognition and measurement:

				    Financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to 
the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities are initially 
measured at the fair value.

			   III. 	 Subsequent measurement:

				    Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the 
effective interest rate method. Financial liabilities carried at fair value through 
profit or loss are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value recognized 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

			   IV. 	 De-recognition:

				    A financial liability is de-recognized when the obligation specified in the 
contracts discharged, cancelled or expires.

		  viii. 	 Off-setting financial instruments

			   Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance 
Sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and 
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events 
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, 
insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

	 m. 	 Borrowings and borrowing costs

		  Borrowings

		  Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings 
are subsequently measured at amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of 
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognized in profit and loss over the period of 
borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities 
are recognized as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all 
the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. 

		  Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contracts 
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial 
liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and consideration paid, 
including non-cash asset transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognized in Statement of Profit 
and Loss as other income/ (expense).

		  Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right 
to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

		  Borrowing costs

		  General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that 
is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are 
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or 
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowing spending 
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for 
capitalization. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

	 n. 	 Revenue recognition

		  The Company derives revenues primarily from sale of owned content and commissioned 
content/ web series.

		  Effective April 1, 2018, The Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 
2018 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notified Ind AS 115 “Revenue from 
Contracts with Customers” related to revenue recognition which replaces all existing revenue 
recognition standards and provides a single, comprehensive model for all contracts with 
customers. The revised standard contains principles to determine the measurement of revenue 
and timing of when it is to be recognized.

		  Revenue is recognized on satisfaction of performance obligation upon transfer of control 
of promised content to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company 
expects to receive in exchange for those contents.

		  Performance obligation may be satisfied over time or at a point in time. Performance 
obligations satisfied over time if any one of the following criteria is met. In such cases, revenue 
is recognized over time

		  i. 	 The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the 
Company’s performance; or

		  ii. 	 The Company’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as 
the asset is created or enhanced; or 

		  iii. 	 The Company’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the 
Company and the Company has an enforceable right to payment for performance 
completed to date.

		  For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is 
recognized at the point in time at which the performance obligation is satisfied.

		  The following criteria are applied by the Company in respect of various components of revenue 

Content produced/ acquired Criteria for Revenue recognition

a. 	� Commissioned content/ web series On the date of delivery of contracted deliverables/ 
on completion of performance obligation

b. 	 Sponsored content When the relevant content is delivered.

c. 	 Cinematic content

	 i. 	 Under production No income is recognised.

	 ii. 	� Complete but not released To the extent of so much of the estimated income 
on release as bears to the whole of the estimated 
income in the same proportion as the actual 
recoveries/ realisations/confirmed contracts bear 
to the total expected realisations.

	 iii. 	�Completed and released  during 
the year

On release/ delivery of release prints except 
income, if any, already recognized as c (ii) above

	 iv. 	�Complete but not released  
other than theatrical release

On the basis of contracts/ deal memo and 
delivery of deliverables.

d. 	 Music rights On its release or exploitation contract.

Other income Revenue recognition

Interest income On accrual basis, using the effective interest 
method for financial assets measured at 
amortized cost and at FVTOCI.

	 o. 	 Income tax

		  Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax.

		  i. 	 Current tax

			   Current tax is the amount of income tax payable in respect of taxable profit for a period. 
Current tax for current and prior periods is recognized at the amount expected to be paid 
to or recovered from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date. The Company determines the 
tax as per the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961 and other rules specified thereunder.

			   Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect 
to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and 
establishes provisions where appropriate. Current tax is recognized in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss except to the extent that the tax relates to items recognized directly in 
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

		  ii. 	 Deferred tax

			   Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized using the Balance Sheet approach for 
all temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their 
carrying amounts in the financial statements except when the deferred tax arises from 
the initial recognition of an asset or liability that effects neither accounting nor taxable 
profit or loss at the time of transition. 

			   Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that 
it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized. 
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			   Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have 
been enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date and  are expected to 
apply to taxable income in the year in which those temporary  differences are expected 
to be recovered or settled.

			   Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry 
forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax  assets are 
recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against 
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits 
and unused tax losses can be utilized.

			   Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are 
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits  will 
allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

			   Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside 
profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are 
recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly inequity. 

			   Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right 
exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes 
relate to the same taxable Company and the same taxation authority.

	 p. 	 Earnings per share

		  Earnings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss (excluding other 
comprehensive income) for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted 
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Earnings considered in 
ascertaining the EPS is the net profit for the period and any attributed tax thereto for the period. 

		  For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year 
attributable to equity shareholders is adjusted for after income tax effect of interest and other 
finance costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares and the weighted average number 
of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity 
shares.

	 q. 	 Foreign currency transactions

		  i. 	 Functional and presentation currency

			   Items included in the Financial Statements of the Company are measured using the 
currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates 
(‘functional currency’). The Financial Statements of the Company are presented in 
Indian currency (INR), which is also the functional and presentation currency of the 
Company.

		  ii. 	 Transactions and balances

			   Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the 
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary items denominated in foreign 
currencies at the year-end are restated at closing rates.

			   Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in foreign 
currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

			   Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated 
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation 
differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair 
value gain/ (loss). 

			   Foreign exchange gain/ (loss) resulting from the settlement of such transactions and 
from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies 
at year end exchange rates are generally recognized in profit or loss.

			   Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented 
in the statement of profit and loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gain/ 
(loss) are presented in the statement of profit and loss on a net basis within other income/ 
(expense).

	 r. 	 Employee benefits: Retirement and other employee benefits

		  i. 	 Short-term employee benefits

			   All employee benefits are payable within 12 months of service such as salaries, wages, 
bonus, medical benefits etc. are recognized in the year in which the employees render 
the related service and are presented as current employee benefit obligations.

			   Termination benefits are recognized as and when expense is incurred. Short term 
employee benefits are provided at undiscounted amount during the accounting period 
based on service rendered by the employees. Compensation payable under voluntary 
retirement scheme is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year of 
settlement.

		  ii. 	 Defined contribution plan

			   The Company’s contributions paid or payable during the year to the provident fund are 
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in accordance with Ind AS 19 ‘Employee 
benefits’ over the period during which benefit is derived from the employees’ services.

		  iii. 	 Defined benefit plans

			   The Company contributes to Employees Group Saving Linked Insurance Scheme with 
Life Insurance Corporation of India to cover its liability towards employee gratuity. 
The expense is recognized at the present value of the amount payable determined using 
actuarial gratuity report.

			   Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is computed on the basis of present 
value of amount payable determined using actuarial valuation techniques as per 
projected unit credit method at the end of each financial year.

			   The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the 
estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting 
period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related 
obligation.

			   It is recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year in which 
the employee has rendered services.

		  iv.	 Other long term employment benefits

			   Re-measurement cost of net defined benefit liability, which comprises of actuarial gain 
and losses, return on plan assets (excluding interest), and the effect of the asset ceiling (if 
any, excluding interest) are recognized in other comprehensive income in the period in 
which they occur. The employees of the Company are not eligible for leave encashment.

	 s.	 Events after reporting date

		  Where events occurring after the Balance Sheet date provide evidence of conditions that 
existed at the end of reporting period, the impact of such events is adjusted within the financial 
statements. Otherwise, events after the Balance Sheet date of material size or nature are only 
disclosed.

	 t. 	 Provisions, and Contingent Liabilities

		  The Company recognizes provisions when a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a 
result of a past event exists and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits will be required to settle such obligation and the amount of such obligation can be 
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses.

		  If the effect of time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax 
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, 
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

		  A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence 
will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events 
beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is 
not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent 
liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized 
because it cannot be measured reliably. The contingent liability is not recognized in books of 
account but its existence is disclosed in financial statements

	 u. 	 Segment Reporting

		  Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the reporting provided to the chief 
operating decision maker. The chief operating decision maker of the Company consists of the 
whole-time director who assesses the financial performance and position of the Company, and 
makes strategic decisions. Refer note 39 for segment information presented.
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3. 	 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars  Furniture 
and 

fixtures 

Vehicles*  Office 
equipment 

 Computer 
equipment 

 Total 

As at March 31, 2023  2.17  225.97  24.63  14.56  267.33 

Additions during the year 2023-24 0.00 0.00  8.42 0.35  8.77 

Disposal/ transfer during the year 2023-24 0.00 0.00 9.56 0.20 9.76 

As at March 31, 2024  2.17  225.97  23.49  14.71  266.34 

Additions during the year 2024-25 0.00 0.00  2.56 3.12  5.68 

Disposal/ transfer during the year 2024-25 0.00 54.67 11.75 1.56 67.98 

As at March 31, 2025  2.17  171.30  14.30  16.27  204.04 

Accumulated depreciation/ amortisation

As at March 31, 2023  1.77  38.77  15.06  10.10  65.70 

Charges for the year 2023-24  0.10 26.90  3.49  1.92  32.41 

Disposal/ transfer during 2023-24 0.00 0.00 9.23 0.20  9.43 

As at March 31, 2024  1.87  65.67  9.32  11.82  88.68 

Charges for the year 2024-25  0.07 25.36  4.10  1.95  31.48 

Disposal/ transfer during 2024-25 0.00 19.28 8.48 0.33  28.09 

As at March 31, 2025  1.94  71.75  4.94  13.44  92.07 

Net book value

As at March 31, 2024  0.30  160.30  14.17  2.89  177.66 

As at March 31, 2025  0.23  99.55  9.36  2.83  111.97 

*Refer note 15 and 17 of borrowings.

4. 	 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

Unsecured, considered good

a. 	 Security deposits 1.31 1.05

b. 	 Bank deposits with more than twelve months maturity 0.00 17.00

c. 	 Others (Refer note 34 (b)) 338.82 338.82

Provision for expected credit loss  (12.77) (9.57)

Total  327.36  347.30 

5.	 INCOME TAX ASSETS (NET)

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

Income tax 104.49 125.96

Total 104.49 125.96

6.	 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

Capital advances  230.58 0.00

Advances other than capital advances

Other advances

a. 	 Advance for content (refer note 36) 1,946.30 2,006.12

b. 	 Deferred revenue 0.43 0.00

c. 	 Prepaid expenses 0.00 0.02

Total 2,177.31 2,006.14

7. 	 INVENTORIES 

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

Cinematic and television content 

Unamortised content 3,894.80 3,900.59

Unexploited content 1,537.61 1,597.51

Total 5,432.41 5,498.10

Refer note 38 of consolidated financial statement and 2(k) of accounting policies for method of valuation 

8. 	 TRADE RECEIVABLES

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

Unsecured, considered good 2.66 130.38

Total  2.66  130.38 

8.1 For F Y 2024-25

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars Not 
due

Outstanding for following periods from due 
date of payment 

Total

Less 
than 6 

months

6 
months 
-1 year

1-2 
Years

2-3 
Years

More 
than 3 
Years

i. 	 Undisputed trade receivables – considered good 2.66 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.66

ii.	� Undisputed trade receivables – which have 
significant increase in credit risk

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

iii.	Undisputed trade receivables – credit impaired 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

iv.	Disputed trade receivables considered good 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

v.	� Disputed trade receivables – which have 
significant increase in credit risk

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

vi.	�Disputed trade receivables 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total 2.66 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.66

There are no unbilled receivable as at year ended March 31, 2025.

8.2 For F Y 2023-24

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars Not 
Due

Outstanding for following periods from due 
date of payment 

Total

Less 
than 6 

months

6 
months 
-1 year

1-2 
Years

2-3 
Years

More 
than 3 
Years

i. 	 Undisputed trade receivables – considered good 0.00  68.04 62.34 0.00 0.00  -  130.38 

ii. 	�Undisputed trade receivables – which have 
significant increase in credit risk

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

iii.	�Undisputed trade receivables – credit impaired 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

iv.	Disputed trade receivables considered good 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

v.	� Disputed trade receivables – which have 
significant increase in credit risk

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

vi.	Disputed trade receivables 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total 0.00 68.04 62.34 0.00 0.00 0.00 130.38

There are no unbilled receivable as at year ended March 31, 2024.

9. 	 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

Balances with banks

In current accounts*  924.06  375.00 

Fixed deposits with maturity less than three months  0.16  0.15 

Total  924.22  375.15 

*This includes ` 899.59 lakh (PY ` 374.18 lakh) which is exclusively for the projects and not for other 
purposes.

10. 	 BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

Bank deposits with original maturity of more than three 
months but less than twelve months

30.92 11.91

Total  30.92  11.91 

11. 	 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

a. 	 Security deposits  33.26 29.01

b. 	� Bank deposits having remaining matuirity of less than 
twelve months

 698.00 603.68

c. 	 Income accrued  121.27  394.89 

d. 	 Others advances  30.08 30.77

Total  882.61  1,058.35 
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12. 	 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

Advances other than capital advances

a. 	 Other advances  13.05  9.42 

b. 	 Advances for ongoing projects  49.76  75.35 

c. 	 Balances with Government authorities  56.28  59.32 

d. 	 Prepaid expense  5.22  8.33 

Total  124.31  152.42 

13. 	 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

Authorised shares 

20,000,000 (PY 20,000,000 ) equity shares of ` 10 each  2,000.00  2,000.00 

Total  2,000.00  2,000.00 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid 

14,467,000 (PY 14,467,000) equity shares of ` 10 each  1,446.70  1,446.70 

Total  1,446.70  1,446.70 

13.1  Reconciliation of number of shares (Equity) 

(In ` lakh, except number of shares data)

 As at March 31, 2025  As at March 31, 2024 

Number of 
shares

 Amount Number of 
shares

 Amount

Number of shares outstanding as at 
the beginning of the year 

14,467,000  1,446.70 14,467,000  1,446.70 

Number of shares outstanding as at 
the end of the year 

14,467,000  1,446.70 14,467,000  1,446.70 

13.2	 Rights, preferences, restrictions of equity shares

	 The Company has only one class of equity shares having a face value of ` 10 per share. Each holder 
of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. The equity shares are entitled to dividend proposed 
by Board of Directors subject to approval of the share holders in the Annual General Meeting except 
in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation of the Company, holder of equity shares are 
entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts in 
proportion to their share holding.

13.3	 Shareholders holding more than 5 per cent of total equity shares of Company

Name of the shareholders As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Number of 
shares

% held Number of 
shares

% held 

Ideas.com India Pvt Ltd 2,418,465 16.71 2,337,475 16.15

Late Mr Pritish Nandy* 2,143,638 14.82 2,143,638 14.82

Artinvest India Pvt Ltd 1,608,978 11.12 1,608,978 11.12

Mrs Bharati K Morarka 1,495,659 10.34 1,495,659 10.34

	 *Transmission of shares to legal heirs is under process and pending as on the reporting date

	 During the period of five years immediately preceding the year March 31, 2025, the company has 
not issued any bonus shares or shares for consideration other than cash and also the company has not 
bought back any shares during this period.

	 The Company has not reserved any shares for issue under options and contracts/commitments for the 
sale of shares/ disinvestment as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

13.4	 As per the records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members & other declarations 
received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal 
and beneficial ownership of shares.

	 Promoter’s shareholdings

Promoter name Shares held by Promoters 
at the end of the year 

Shares held by Promoters 
at the beginning of the 

year 

% change 
during the 

year

Number of 
shares

% of total 
shares 

Number of 
shares

% of total 
shares 

Late Mr Pritish Nandy*  2,143,638 14.82  2,143,638 14.82 0.00

Mrs Rina Pritish Nandy  625,000 4.32  625,000 4.32 0.00

Ms Rangita Pritish Nandy  643,500 4.45  643,500 4.45 0.00

Ms Ishita Pritish Nandy  575,610 3.98  575,610 3.98 0.00

Ideas.com India Pvt Ltd  2,418,465 16.72  2,337,415 16.15 0.57

Artinvest India Pvt Ltd  1,608,978 11.12  1,608,978 11.12 0.00

Total  8,015,191  55.41  7,934,141  54.84 

	 *Transmission of shares to legal heirs is under process and pending as on the reporting date

14. 	 OTHER EQUITY

 (In ` lakh)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

Reserve and surplus

Capital reserve

Balance at beginning of the year 0.37 0.37

Balance at the end of the year 0.37 0.37

Securities premium 

Balance at beginning of the year 6,719.59 6,719.59

Balance at the end of the year 6,719.59 6,719.59

General reserves

Balance at beginning of the year 220.98 220.98

Balance at the end of the year 220.98 220.98

Retained earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year  (934.84)  (1,171.82)

Add: profit/ (loss) for the year  (95.27)  241.72 

Add: other comprehensive income  (0.84)  (4.74)

Balance at the end of year  (1,030.95)  (934.84)

Total  5,909.99  6,006.10 

Nature and purpose

a.	 Capital reserve

	 This represents profit earned by the Company before receipt of incorporation certificate.

b.	 Securities premium

	 Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

c.	 General reserve

	 General reserve represents the amount appropriated out of retained earnings pursuant to the earlier 
provisions of Companies Act, 1956. 

d.	 Retained earnings

	 Retained earnings are the profits/ losses that Company has earned/ incurred till date, as reduced by 
transfer to reserves, dividend or other distribution paid to the share holders and transfer from/ to OCI.

15. 	 BORROWINGS 

 (In ` lakh) 

 Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

Term loans 

From other than banks 

a. 	 Loan from Mercedes Benz Financial Services 143.96 0.00

	� Secured against the hypothecation of vehicle. 

b. 	 Loan from Daimler Financial Services 0.00 76.39

	� Secured against the hypothecation of vehiclse. 

Total 143.96 76.39

15.1 Terms of repayment in respect of borrowings as referred in note 15 and 17

Particulars Number of 
instalments

Rate of 
interest

EMI (in ` 
lakh)

Amount 
outstanding 

as on March 
31, 2024 (in ` 

lakh)

Payable 
upto

a.	� Mercedes Benz Financial 
Services

	 Loan 1 36 9.74%  0.67  62.81 April-2028

	 Loan 2 36 9.72%  1.07  87.04 April-2028

b. 	 Daimler Financial Services

 	 Loan 1 36 7.91%  0.57  43.11 April-2025

 	 Loan 2 36 7.72%  0.49  33.27 April-2025

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
PRITISH NANDY COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED 

THE 32ND ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2025 

1 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS \& omEREQUITY 
neta) lak) 

Parcs Aout reat Puricuas Asst Asa 
FECBET Macht, om March31,2025 March 31,204 

Advances other tha capital advances [— 
© Oeradianes 1305 on Capt reserve b Advances for ongoing projects 76 7535 Balance at begining of the ox ox 
c ‘Balances with Government authorities 5628 5932 ear —_— Balance atthe end ofthe yer ox on @ Pepudepese sn 55 C7 ETN 
Total 12431 15242 Securities premium 

—— Sic utesminsotteyen ) ET) 
13. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL ‘Balance at the end of the year 671959 6719.59 

(nT lakh) General reserves 
Parcs ot po ste 

March3,2005  Machdl 0p omcedtbegiming ofthe year EET 0 0% 
umceuteendofteyenr Eo) 058 Authorised shares EE on Retained camings 

20,000,000 (BY 20,000,000) equity shares of 10 each 200000 200000 - ume tegming fee ous ame 
met i sa Add profit (ow) for the year ©527) 211m 

bed and fly paid Ad: other comprehensive income 089 am 14467000 (PY 14,467.00) uty sare of € 10 each Lu670 Lasso — C0 NECN 
‘Balance at the end of year (1,030.95) (934.84) 

Toul LHe HET py 590999 6006.10 

151 Reconclsion of numberof hares (quis) Notre nd pus 
(nl, except ruber of hares ats) a. Capital reserve 

Beals | AsaMah3L ame Thi represents profit ead b the Compan befor receipt of corporation cette. 

Securities prem is used to record the premitm on ise of shares. The reser is uid i Numer of hres cusanding 2s a | 14467000 | 184670 | 18467000 | 144670 Secties prem is ved to focord be premium 5 
{he begining of eye 
Number of shares outstanding a= at | 14467000 | 144670 | 14467000 | laser | ©  Cememlresenve 
the end ofthe year General reserve represents the amount appropriated out of retained earnings pursuant to the earlier 

proison of Comme Act 16% 15 Rights preferences, rsriction of squty shares 
‘The Company has only one class of equity shares having 2 face value of € 10 per share, Each holder ~~ Retained camings 
of aq dhe 5 end one ote per she. Th aqui aes me entitled to dividend propose Retained {be pris Loe tht Company ha ead: mune tl dete, as reuced ined camings are the profs Loss that Company has eamed ncued ll dat, a ec by oy Board of Decors sujet 15 aprol of he shar lds the Atal General Meeting except ped caming arc the prof lo  camed near 3 
in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation of the Company, holder of equity shares are transfer o reserves, di other distribution paid to the share holders and transfer fou to OC 
nile fo rceve remain ses of te Company, fer dition fol rerentl smormts 
portion ht sre hing. 1s. BORROWINGS 

133 Sharsholdes holding more than 5 pe cent of tal equity shes of Company nla) 
Puricuas Aout oat [rrTw——— Rea, 200 | Asati 312028 I... 

Namberof | %omed | Nawberof | 60d | emioms aa 
fa ares 

Ideas com India Pvt Ltd 2418465 16.71 2337475 16.15 From other than 

Lei re” SE dram wm| tLe Bee Frm vies 3 o 
Artinvest India Pvt Ltd 1,608,978 11.12 1,608,978 11.12) sec against the ly tecation of vehicle. 

Mrs Bharati K Morarka 1,495,659 1034 1,495,659 10.34 ® Loan from er Financial i ud 7639 
Secured against th bpotiecatonof vehicle 

*Transmission of shares to legal heirs is under process and pending as on the reporting date o EEE 
During the period of five years immediately preceding the year March 31, 2025, the company has 1° 1 
ao aed a bos shar o ars Fr Coneraton oles Cah and a Bi copay snk 
Rough bck ay srs ding hs period. ght back any 151 Terms of repayment in respect of borrowings as refered in note 15 and 17 The Company bas not reserved ny shares for se unde options ad contacts commitments or the 
ale of ore) rms a Mah 31. 2035 snd ch 31. 2034 

15.4 Asperthe record ofthe Company, including is ester shareholders members & ther declarations [wom FE) ag RE EE EN 
ecb fom shareholders again benehial ees, he shoe sarchlding represents beh leah Jobard] Tae | EMUme| oom) Pdle 
bene] avn of ses Sutndng 
Promote’ hareholiings Smit 

ity 
Promoter ame Shares held oy Promotes | Share el by Promoters | % hangs EEve——— 

ie endef tieyen | atte begining ofthe | cing he Si 
Tea = 

Nar of | “oot | Nemberat | Zoot Aprilams 
Aprils 

Laedipish Not | 21668] um[ aise]  um[ ol rr rT 
Mis Rin Prith Nandy aso an] owl ph Dumetmciseien | | [| [| 
Ms Rangia Prih Nandy | 643,500 soso as] oo] ai] plans 
Melia Pri Nandy | 573610 sssio| sss ooo] 521 | Agelams 
Te ET ET ET 
Semwanrai | town] un] von] nn ow] 

ETE ET EE ET) 
“Transmission of share 0 egal his under proces nd pending aon the reporting dete



1252
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PRITISH NANDY COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED
THE 32ND ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2025

15.2	 Amendment to Ind AS 7

	 Amendment to Ind AS 7 effective from April 1, 2017 require the entities to provide disclosures that 
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, 
including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes, suggesting inclusion of a 
reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the Balance Sheet for liabilities arising 
from financing activities, to meet disclosure requirement. Accordingly, the company has given the said 
disclosure as below:

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars note Opening 
balance as 
on April 1, 

2024

Financing 
cash flow 
changes

Non cash flow changes Closing 
balance as 
on March 
31, 2025

Effect of 
changes 

in foreign 
exchange 

rates

Effect of 
effective 

interest rate 
and Others*

Non-current liabilities 
- Borrowings 15 76.39 67.57 0.00 0.00 143.96 
Current liabilities 
- Borrowings 17 36.42 45.85 0.00 0.00 82.27 
Interest expense and other 
borrowing costs 

26 0.00 8.34 0.00 0.00 8.34 

Interest expense and other 
borrowing costs paid 

(8.34) 0.00 0.00 (8.34)

 Total 112.81 113.42 0.00 0.00 226.23 

 *Amount of ` 66 is not reflected due to conversion of financial statement in ` lakh. 

16. 	 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET) 

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

Deferred tax liabilities 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment  (10.17)  (6.57)

Total (a)  (10.17)  (6.57)

Reversal of deferred tax (assets)/ liabilities 

Unamortised content   1,070.63  1,107.45 

Ind AS effects of security deposit and processing fees  (0.01) 0.00

Expected credit loss  (3.22) 0.00

Total (b)  1,067.41  1,107.45 

Total (a+b)  1,057.24  1,100.88 

17. 	 BORROWINGS

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

Secured

Loans repayable on demand

From other than banks*  82.27  36.42 

(Secured against the hypothication of vehicles)

Total  82.27  36.42 

*Refer note 15.1 and 15.2 of notes to the consolidated financial statements

18. 	 TRADE PAYABLES

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

Total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small 
enterprises*

33.62 13.39

Total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises

 270.45  448.13 

Total  304.07  461.52 

*Refer note 32 of notes to the consolidated financial statements for micro and small enterprises disclosures

18.1 For F Y 2024-25

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars Unbilled 
dues

Outstanding for following periods from due 
date of payment

Total

Not due Less than 
1 Year

1-2 
Years

2-3 
Years

More than 
3 Years

Total outstanding dues to micro 
enterprises and small enterprises

18.74 14.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 33.62

Total outstanding dues to 
creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises

 39.32 0.00 226.84 3.97 0.32 0.00 270.45

Total  58.06 14.88 226.84 3.97 0.32 0.00 304.07

18.2 For F Y 2023-24

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars Unbilled 
dues

Outstanding for following periods from due 
date of payment

Total

Not due Less than 
1 Year

1-2 
Years

2-3 
Years

More than 
3 Years

Total outstanding dues to micro 
and small enterprises

7.19 0.00 6.20 0.00 0.00 0.00 13.39

Total outstanding dues to 
creditors other than micro and 
small enterprises

 9.80 0.00 431.13 7.20 0.00 0.00 448.13

Total 16.99 0.00 437.33 7.20 0.00 0.00 461.52

19. 	 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

Others  17.89  12.70 

Total  17.89  12.70 

20. 	 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

a. 	 Revenue received in advance 473.87 69.90

b. 	 Other advances 329.90 329.90

c. 	 Others

 	 i. 	 Statutory dues  148.65  70.19 

 	 ii.	 Amount payable for projects and assignments  203.51  272.56 

 	 iii. 	 Interest payable  0.07 0.00

Total  1,156.00  742.55 

21. 	 CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

Income tax  0.03 0.00

Total  0.03 0.00

22. 	 REVENUE FROM OPERATION

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

Sale of owned content  21.08  49.03 

Professional service 2.00 0.00

Income from commissioned content/ web series  3,337.34  5,722.90 

Total  3,360.42  5,771.93 

22.1 	 Revenue from contract with customer disaggregated based on geography.

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

Domestic  3,357.25  5,769.11 

Export  3.17  2.82 

Total 3,360.42 5,771.93

22.2 	 Revenue recognised from contract liability (advances from customers)

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

Closing Contract liability 0.00 0.00

Total 0.00 0.00
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23. 	 OTHER INCOME

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

a. 	 Interest income  62.69  58.45 

b. 	 Miscellaneous income  5.23  5.61 

Total  67.92  64.06 

24. 	 COST OF CONTENT

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

Cost of the content  2,739.85  4,887.01 

Total  2,739.85  4,887.01 

25. 	 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF CONTENT

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

Opening balance 

Unamortised content 3,900.59 3,916.26

Unexploited content 1,597.51 1,597.51

Unfinished content 0.00 30.00

Total opening balance (A) 5,498.10 5,543.77

Closing balance 

Unamortised content 3,894.80 3,900.59

Unexploited content 1,537.61 1,597.51

Unfinished content 0.00 0.00

Total closing balance (B) 5,432.41 5,498.10

Net (increase)/ decrease (A-B) 65.69 45.67

Less: Unfinished content used in production of web series 59.90 30.00

Net (increase)/ decrease 5.79 15.67

26. 	 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

Salaries 393.29 375.34

Contribution to provident fund and other funds

Contribution to gratuity fund 3.88 3.22

Total 397.17 378.56

27. 	 FINANCE COSTS

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

Interest expense  8.34  9.77 

Total  8.34  9.77 

28. 	 OTHER EXPENSES

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

Auditor's remuneration (Refer note 41)  7.75  7.50 

Business promotion expenses  14.28  11.54 

Communications expenses  1.05  0.98 

Contract service expenses  9.95  24.07 

Conveyance and motor car expenses  62.57  50.04 

Directors sitting fees  37.25  20.40 

Insurance  3.42  3.90 

Legal and professional expenses  39.75  15.95 

Rent  82.45  74.22 

Traveling expenses  21.00  8.31 

Establishment and administrative expenses  62.25  43.58 

Total  341.72  260.49 

29. 	 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

Contingent liabilities

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts in 
respects of GST liability*

 36.16  36.16 

Total  36.16  36.16 

*The above matter is currently being considered by the tax authorities and the Company expects the 
outcome will be in its favour and has therefore, not recognised the provision in relation to these claims. 
Future cash outflow in respect of above will be determined only on receipt of judgement/ decision pending 
with tax authorities.

30. 	 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

	 Defined Benefit Plan

	 Group gratuity liability is recognised on the basis of gratuity report provided by Actuary.

	 The disclosures as required under the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 19) in respect of gratuity, is 
as follows:

	 Every employee is entitled to a benefit equivalent to 15 days salary drawn for each completed year of 
service in line with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 or Company scheme, whichever is beneficial. 
The same is payable at the time of separation from the company or retirement, whichever is earlier. The 
benefits vest after five years of continuous service

a. Expenses recognised in statement of profit or loss 

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

Current service cost 4.52 4.36 

Net interest cost (0.64) (1.14)

Expenses recognised 3.88 3.22 

b. Expenses recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI)

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

Actuarial (gains)/ losses on obligation for the 
period

1.17 5.01 

Return on plan assets excluding interest income (0.33) (0.27)

Net (income)/ expenses for the period recognised 
in OCI

0.84 4.74 

c. Reconciliation of defined benefit obligation 

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of 
the year 

104.33 91.38

Current service cost 4.51 4.36

Interest cost 7.52 6.61

Benefit paid from the fund (9.74) (3.03)

Actuarial (gain)/ loss due to change in financial 
assumptions

2.66 2.17

Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligation - Due to 
experience adjustments

(1.48) 2.84

Defined Benefit obligation at the end of year 107.80 104.33

d. Reconciliation of plan assets:

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year  113.15  106.51 

Interest income  8.16  7.75 

Employers contribution  4.42  1.65 

Benefit paid from the fund (9.74) (3.03)

Return on plan assets, excluding interest income  0.33  0.27 

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year  116.32  113.15 
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e. Net Asset / (Liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2025

As at  
March 31, 2024

Present value of defined benefit obligation 
(DBO) 

(107.80) (104.33)

Fair value of plan assets 116.32 113.15

Net asset/ (liability) recognised in the balance 
sheet 

8.52 8.82

f. The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

 

Actuarial assumption For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

Expected return on plan assets  6.83%  7.21% 

Discount rate  6.83%  7.21% 

Attrition rate 2% 2%

Salary escalation rate 7% 7%

	 Sensitivity Analysis

	 Below is the sensitivity analysis determined for significant actuarial assumption for determination of 
defined benefit obligation and based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions 
occurring at the end of the reporting period.

 (In ` lakh)

Sensitivity Analysis For the year ended  
March 31, 2025

For the year ended  
March 31, 2024

Defined benefit obligation on current assumptions  107.80  104.33 

Delta effect of +1% change in rate of discounting (6.72) (6.71)

Delta effect of -1% change in rate of discounting  7.70  7.63 

Delta effect of +1% change in rate of salary increase  2.25  3.09 

Delta effect of -1% change in rate of salary increase (2.43) (2.81)

Delta effect of +1% change in rate of employee turnover  1.63  1.89 

Delta effect of -1% change in rate of employee turnover (1.77) (2.02)

	 Note

	 The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective 
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

	 The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the projected 
benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one 
another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

	  Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the projected benefit 
obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, 
which is the same method as applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation as recognised in the 
balance sheet. 

	 There were no changes in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensivity analysis from 
prior years.

	 Maturity analysis of the benefit payments: from the fund	

Projected benefits payable in future years from the date 
of reporting

For the year ended  
March 31, 2025

For the year ended  
March 31, 2024

1st following year  3.64  4.88 

2nd following year  3.79  3.70 

3rd following year  22.41  3.81 

4th following year  39.09  21.42 

5th following year  2.02  37.25 

Sum of years 6 To 10  20.93  18.45 

Sum of years 11 and above  102.91  106.42 

	 Notes

	 Gratuity is payable as per entity’s scheme as detailed in the report. 

	 Actuarial gains/ losses are recognized in the period of occurrence under Other Comprehensive Income 
(OCI). All above reported figures of OCI are gross of taxation. 

	 Salary escalation and attrition rate are considered as advised by the entity; they appear to be in line with 
the industry practice considering promotion and demand and supply of the employees.

	 Maturity Analysis of Benefit Payments is undiscounted cashflows considering future salary, attrition 
and death in respective year for members as mentioned above.

	 Average Expected Future Service represents Estimated Term of Post - Employment Benefit Obligation.

	 Weighted Average Duration of the Defined Benefit Obligation is the weighted average of cashflow 
timing, where weights are derived from the present value of each cash flow to the total present value.

	 Any benefit payment and contribution to plan assets is considered to occur end of the year to depict 
liability and fund movement in the disclosures.

	 Value of asset provided by the entity is not audited by us and the same is considered as unaudited fair 
value of plan asset as on the reporting date.

	 In absence of specific communication as regards contribution by the entity, Expected Contribution in 
the Next Year is considered as the sum of net liability/ assets at the end of the current year and current 
service cost for next year, subject to maximum allowable contribution to the Plan Assets over the next 
year as per the Income Tax Rules.

	 QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE

	 Para 139 (a) Characteristics of defined benefit plan

	 The entity has a defined benefit gratuity plan in India (funded). The entity’s defined benefit gratuity 
plan is a final salary plan for employees, which requires contributions to be made to a separately 
administered fund. 

	 The fund is managed by a trust which is governed by the Board of Trustees. The Board of Trustees are 
responsible for the administration of the plan assets and for the definition of the investment strategy.

	 Para 139 (b) Risks associated with defined benefit plan

	 Gratuity is a defined benefit plan and entity is exposed to the Following Risks

	 Interest rate risk: A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the Government Securities Rate 
will increase the present value of the liability requiring higher provision. A fall in the discount rate 
generally increases the mark to market value of the assets depending on the duration of asset.

	 Salary Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the 
future salaries of members. As such, an increase in the salary of the members more than assumed level 
will increase the plan’s liability.

	 Investment Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount 
rate which is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government 
bonds. If the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit. Currently, for the plan 
in India, it has a relatively balanced mix of investments in government securities, and other debt 
instruments.

	 Asset Liability Matching (ALM) Risk: The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow. Since 
the plan is invested in lines of Rule 101 of Income Tax Rules, 1962, this generally reduces ALM risk.

	 Mortality risk: Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement 
age only, plan does not have any longevity risk.

	 Concentration Risk: Plan is having a concentration risk as all the assets are invested with the insurance 
company 

	 Para 139 (c) Characteristics of defined benefit plans.

	 During the year, there were no plan amendments, curtailments and settlements. 

	 Para 147 (a) Trust fund and contribution thereto

	 A separate trust fund is created to manage the Gratuity plan and the contributions towards the trust fund 
is done as guided by rule 103 of Income Tax Rules, 1962.

31. 	 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

	 Details relating to related parties/ persons and description of relationship  are as under

	 Name of the related party Description of relationship

	 a. 	 Key Management Personnel

  		  i.  	 Mr Pallab Bhattacharya  Wholetime Director and CEO

		  ii. 	 Ms Rangita Pritish Nandy  Wholetime Dirctor (President and Creative Director)

  		  iii. 	 Mr Kishor Palkar Chief Financial Officer 

	  	  iv. 	 Mr Santosh Gharat Company Secretary and Compliance Officer - upto June 
6, 2024

	    	 v. 	 Mr Hemant Auti Company Secretary and Compliance Officer -from August 
6, 2024 to November 12, 2024

	    	 vi. 	 Ms Priyanka Shah Company Secretary and Compliance Officer - w.e.f. 
February 7, 2025

                       Non-Executive Directors

 		  vii.  	 Mr Pritish Nandy Non Executive Director, Chairman (upto January 8, 2025)

  		  viii.  	 Mrs Rina Pritish Nandy Non Executive Director

  		  ix.  	 Mr Raghu Palat Non Executive, Independent Director 

   		  x. 	 Ms Neerja Shah   Non Executive, Independent Director

   		  xi. 	 Mr Sunil Alagh Non Executive, Independent Director 

 		  xii. 	 Mr Karan Ahluwalia Non Executive, Independent Director 

	 b. 	 Close family members of Key Management Personnel

   		  i. 	 Ms Ishita Pritish Nandy Sister of Ms Rangita Pritish Nandy
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	 Details of transactions between the company and other related parties as disclosed below

 (In ` lakh) 

Nature of 
Relation

Nature of transaction As at                                          
March 31, 2025

As at                                          
March 31, 2024

Key 
management 
personnel and 
Directors

Remuneration/ reimbursement 170.57 143.93

Balance outstanding as at year end 
receivable/ (payable) 

(18.44) (14.37)

Non-executive 
Directors and 
their relatives 

Remuneration/ reimbursement/ 
sitting fees 

115.25 86.40

Professional fees 24.00 24.00

Balance outstanding at year end 
receivable/ (payable)*

(209.90) (276.35)

	 *Includes ` 203.51 lakh due to legal heirs of late Mr Pritish Nandy

	 Transactions with related parties have been done at arm’s length and are in the ordinary course of 
business.

	 Remuneration/ reimbursement to key management personnel includes an amount of ` 120.13 lakh 
being remuneration/ reimbursement to Whole Time directors which exceeds the prescribed limits 
under Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 ( Act ) by ` 36.13 lakh. As per 
the provisions of the Act, the excess remuneration is subject to approval of the shareholders which the 
Company proposes to obtain in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. 

32.	 MICRO AND SMALL ENTERPRISES

	 The details given below are based on the information received from Suppliers regarding their status 
under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. This information has been 
relied upon by the auditor.

 (In ` lakh) 
Particulars As at  

March 31, 2025
As at  

March 31, 2024
a. The principal amount and the interest due 

thereon (to be shown separately) remaining 
unpaid to any supplier at the end of each 
accounting year; 

 14.88  6.20 

b. The amount of interest paid by the buyer in 
terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and 
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, 
along with the amount of the payment made to 
the supplier beyond the appointed day during 
each accounting year; 

NIL NIL

c. The amount of interest due and payable for 
the period of delay in making payment (which 
have been paid but beyond the appointed day 
during the year) but without adding the interest 
specified under the Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act, 2006; 

NIL NIL

d. The amount of interest accrued and remaining 
unpaid at the end of each accounting year;

NIL NIL

e. The amount of further interest remaining due and 
payable even in the succeeding years, until such 
date when the interest dues above are actually 
paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of 
disallowance of a deductible expenditure under 
Section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

NIL NIL

33.	 OPERATING LEASES (LESSEE)	

	 a.	 The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term 
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less. All leases of the Company are short-term in 
nature and therefore no additional disclosure is provided as per Ind AS – 116.		

	 b.	 The total of future minimum sublease payment expected to be received under non – cancellable 
subleases at the end of reporting period is nil.		

	 c.	 Lease payments recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.		

34.	 LEGAL PROCEEDINGS	

	 a.	 The Company has initiated proceedings for the recovery of an amount of ` 1.50 crore given to 
Saboo Films Pvt Ltd and Bharat film Works against film rights. Proceedings are ongoing before 
the City Civil Court and the management considers the same as fully recoverable and hence no 
provision is made. Legal opinion obtained by the Company supports this. 		

	 b.	 The Company had received an award of ̀  3.52 crore plus interest of ̀  35 lakh in its favour in the 
arbitration filed against White Feather Films (Proprietor Sanjay Gupta). White Feather Films 
has gone in appeal against the award and was directed to deposit an amount of ` 3 crore by the 
Bombay High Court, which they failed to do. The Company has filed a petition for execution 
of the arbitration award. The Bombay High Court has restrained   Sanjay Gupta from disposing 
of, encumbering, alienating, transferring, and parting with the possession of or creating any 
third party rights or interest in his 3 properties in Pune and Khandala valued at ` 12 crore. The 
advance of ` 3.18 crore is therefore considered as fully recoverable. 		

35.	 All known liabilities have been provided in the books of account. Legal proceeding related to dispute 
in respect of compliance and performance of the conditions of the license for the use of the premises 
from where Moksh zip was operating are ongoing  between the company (PNC Wellness Limited) and 
the licensor of the premises. The licensor is claiming ` 90.25 lakh being compensation from April 1, 
2012 till November 10, 2013 in a suit filed with the small causes court, Mumbai. The company has 
filed a suit in the Bombay High Court for compensation for an amount of ` 170.53 lakh on the grounds 
that the leave and license agreement stands vitiated by  fraud by the licensor and be declared void ab 
initio and that the same is not enforceable against or binding upon the company. Pending the outcome 
of the aforesaid legal proceedings the impact on the financial statements of the company cannot be 
ascertained.			 

36.	 Company carries out in-house content development projects which includes costs for payments to 
writers, actors, pre shoot expenses, professional fees etc. These amounts have different ageing depending 
on the progress of each project. These costs are classified under a broad head as “Advance for Content”. 
The technical team has assessed its realizable value, its future viability and management contention to 
continue with the project including considerations for write off/ impairment based on future plans of 
the Company, considering trends in the country as well global trends. The Company has accordingly 
written off an amount of ` 42.73 lakh (net of corresponding liability of ` 47 lakh) (PY ` 13.42 lakh) 
incurred on developing contents, which are no longer viable to take up in future

37. a. 	 Reconciliation of tax expense
(In ` lakh)

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

 i. 	 Income tax expenses 
 	 Current tax- In respect of the current year 0.17 0.01 
 	 Adjustments for current tax of prior periods 0.00 0.00 
 	 Deferred tax- In respect of the current year  (43.64)  (3.07)
	 Total  (43.47)  (3.06)
ii. 	 Income tax recognised in other 

comprehensive income
 	� Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans 0.00 0.00 
	� Total income tax expense recognised in the 

year (i + ii)
 (43.47)  (3.06)

b. A reconciliation between statutory income tax rate applicable to the Company and the 
effective income tax rate is as follows

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

Current tax as per regular working
Net profit before tax  (138.74)  238.66 
Effective tax rate applicable to the Company  25.17%  25.17% 
Tax amount as per the enacted income tax rate (34.92) 60.07
Add: income tax on expenses not deductible in 
determining taxable profits

14.06 14.09

Less: income tax of allowances/ deductibles (11.66) (9.96)
Add: income tax on loss carried forward 32.76 0.00
Less: income tax of setoff of brought forward losses 0.00 (64.19)
Net current tax (A) 0.17 0.01
Current tax as per Minimum Alternative Tax is 
not applicable since Section 115BAA will be 
opted in current year
Deferred tax on account of temporary 
differences 

 (8.78)  (3.07)

Reversible of deferred tax liabilities on account 
of reduction in tax rate (from 26% to 25.17%)

(34.86) 0.00

Deferred tax (B) (43.64) (3.07)
Total tax expense (A+B)  (43.47)  (3.06)

c. 	 Deferred tax asset/ (liability)
(In ` lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2025

As at  
March 31, 2024

Depreciation on property, plant, and equipment  10.17  6.57 
Unamortised content   (1,070.64)  (1,107.45)
IndAS effects of security deposits and 
processing fees

 0.01 0.00

Unexpected credit loss  3.22 0.00
 Total  (1,057.24)  (1,100.88)

d. Reconciliation of deferred tax assets / (liabilities) net
(`. In lakhs)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2025

As at  
March 31, 2024

Opening balance  (1,100.88)  (1,103.95)
Adjustment 0.00 0.00
Deferred tax (charge)/ credit recognised in
Statement of profit and loss  43.64  3.07 
Total  (1,057.24)  (1,100.88)

38.	 INVENTORIES

	 a.	 The Company has revised the accounting estimate and taken the useful life of its audio-visual 
entertainment content, which are intengible in nature as 40 years considering the following:

		  i	 The economic useful life of content post digitisation.

		  ii.	 New avenues of content exploitation with the emergence of new technologies.

		  iii.	 Long tail realisations from the library of produced content.

		  iv.	 Increased reach of Indian content in new and existing global markets.

		  v.	 Increased scope of content exploitation in many new ways and languages as well as 
through multiple exploitation of content IPRs. 

		  vi.	 The continuing exploitation of the PNC library on existing platforms.

			   News-based content as well as content being produced currently for international 
streaming platform on commissioned basis will continue to be 100% written off on 
exploitation as per the current practice.
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			   During the year the Company has amortised ` 5.79 lakh against the revenue earned from 
exploitation of streaming rights of its existing library and unexploited content of ` 59.90 
lakh used for production of web series.

	 b.	 The details of cinematic and television content is as under

(In ` lakh)

Cinematic 
content

Television 
content

Total

Gross carrying amount as at April 1, 2024 20,616.46 11,337.00 31,953.46
Add: Additions during the year 2024-25 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total 20,616.46 11,337.00 31,953.46
Less: Amortised up to March 31, 2024 15,589.16 10,866.20 26,455.36
 Amortised during the year 2024-25 5.79 0.00 5.79

Unexploited content used for the production 
of web series

0.00 59.90 59.90

Total amortised 15,594.95 10,926.10 26,521.05
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2025 5,021.51 410.90 5,432.41

		  There is no individual content that is material to the financial statements of the Company as a whole.

		  Based on a review of estimates of future realisations taken as a whole, the management is of the view 
that future recoverable amount from content rights to be more than its carrying unamortised cost of 
content. Hence, no impairment/ write down is considered necessary on this account.

39.	 SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS

	 The Parent company and one subsidiary ‘PNC Digital Limited’ operates only in one segment i.e. 
‘Content’ but other subsidiary ‘PNC Wellness Limited’ is operates in ‘Wellness’ segment. The groups 
reportable segments under Ind AS 108 are ‘content’ and ‘wellness’.

	 Segment revenue and results

	 The following is an analysis of the Company’s revenue and results from continuing operations by 
reportable segments.

(In ` lakh)
Particulars  As at  

March 31, 2025 
 As at  

March 31, 2024 
Segment revenue 
Content  3,358.42  5,771.93 
Wellness 2.00 0.00
Revenue from operation  3,360.42  5,771.93 
Segment results 
Profit/ (loss) before tax from each segment
Content  (196.82)  186.24 
Wellness  (1.50)  (1.87)
Profit before finance cost and tax  (198.32)  184.37 
Add: other income 67.92 64.06
Less: finance cost  (8.34)  (9.77)
Profit before tax  (138.74)  238.66 
Less: current tax 0.17 0.01
Less: deferred tax  (43.64)  (3.07)
Profit after tax  (95.27)  241.72 

Segment assets and liabilities

(In ` lakh)
Particulars  As at  

March 31, 2025 
 As at  

March 31, 2024 
Segment assets
Content  10,082.72  9,849.20 
Wellness 35.54 34.17
Consolidated total assets  10,118.26  9,883.37 
Segment liabilities
Content  2,760.27  2,430.16 
Wellness 1.30 0.41
Consolidated total liabilities  2,761.57  2,430.57 
Segment capital employed
Content  7,322.45  7,419.04 
Wellness 34.24 33.76
Consolidated total capital employed  7,356.69  7,452.80 

40.	 EARNING PER SHARE

(In ` lakh except otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

a. 	 Profit after tax attributable to equity shareholders 
of the company

 (95.27)  241.72 

b. 	 Weighted average number of equity shares 
(numbers in lakh)

 144.67  144.67 

c. 	 Basic and diluted earning per share (amount in `)  (0.66)  1.67 

d. 	 Face value per equity share (Amount in `)  10.00  10.00 

41. 	 AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

(In ` lakh)

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

As auditor

Statutory audit 5.50 5.50

Tax audit 0.60 0.60

For limited review report 0.90 0.90

Taxation services 0.75 0.50

Total 7.75 7.50

42.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT

	 a.	 Methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair values

		  The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the 
instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a 
forced or liquidation sale.

		  The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

		  i.	 The carrying amounts of receivables and payables which are short term in nature such 
as trade receivables, other bank balances, deposits, loans to employees, trade payables, 
demand loans from banks and cash and cash equivalents are considered to be the same 
as their fair values.

		  ii.	 The fair values for long term security deposits given were calculated based on cash flows 
discounted using a current bank rate applicable to Company’s deposits with the bankers. 
They are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion 
of unobservable inputs.

			   Categories of financial instruments

			   The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value 
of financial instruments by valuation technique :

			   Level 1  unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

			   Level 2  directly or indirectly observable market inputs, other than Level 1 inputs; and

			   Level 3  inputs which are not based on observable market data

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Carrying 
Values

Fair 
Value

Carrying 
Values

Fair 
Value

Financial assets

Measured at amortised cost 

Trade receivables  2.66  2.66  130.38  130.38 

Cash and bank balances  955.14  955.14  387.06  387.06 

Other financial assets  1,209.97  1,209.97  1,405.65  1,405.65 

Measured at FVTPL 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Measured at FVTOCI 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Total financial assets  2,167.77  2,167.77  1,923.09  1,923.09 

Financial liabilities

Measured at amortised cost

Borrowings  226.23  226.23  112.81  112.81 

Trade payable  304.07  304.07  461.52  461.52 

Other financial liabilities 17.89 17.89 12.70 12.70 

Total financial liabilities  548.19  548.19  587.03  587.03 

	 b.	 Financial risk management objective and policies

		  The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. 
The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations including 
acquiring of PPE. The Company’s principal financial assets include investments, trade and 
other receivables, and cash and bank balances that derive directly from its operations.

		  The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board provides 
guidance for overall risk management. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for 
managing each of these risks, which are summarised below

		  i.	 Market Risk

			   Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument 
will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of 
risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and 
commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include borrowings and 
other financial instruments.

			   Interest rate risk:

			   The interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial 
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

			   The Company borrows at variable as well as fixed interest rates and the same is managed 
by the Company by constantly monitoring the trends and expectations. In order to 
reduce the overall interest cost, the Company has borrowed in a mix of short term and 
long term loans.

			   As variations in interest rate are not expected to have a significant impact on the results 
of operations, a sensitivity analysis is not presented.
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			   Currency risk

			   Currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of financial instruments 
will fluctuate because of the change in foreign currency exchange rates.

			   The Majority of the Company’s revenue and expenses are in Indian Rupees. Company 
also operates internationally with miniscule business transacted in foreign currency 
namely US Dollar and Singapore Dollar. Management considers currency risk to be 
low and hence does not hedge its currency risk. As variations in foreign currency 
exchange rates are not expected to have a significant impact on the results of operations, 
a sensitivity analysis is not presented.

		  ii.	 Credit Risk

			   Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a 
financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the 
Company’s receivables from customers, deposits given, investments and balances at bank. 

			   The Company has used expected credit loss (ECL) model for assessing the impairment 
loss. For the purpose, the Company uses a provision matrix to compute the expected 
credit loss amount. The provision matrix takes into account external and internal risk 
factors and historical data of credit losses from various customers.

			   Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. The Company considers the 
concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are well 
established companies besides in few cases Company receives advances from customers. 

	  		  The risk of default is assessed as low.

		  iii.	 Liquidity risk

			   Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its 
obligations on time or at a reasonable price.

			   The Company actively monitors its cash flows to ensure there is sufficient cash available 
to meet its working capital requirements. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying 
businesses, the Company maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability 
under committed credit lines. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s 
cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flow.

			   The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities as 
at March 31, 2025 based on contractual undiscounted payments

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2025

As at  
March 31, 2024

Carrying amount  548.19  587.03 

Less than 12 months  404.23  510.64 

More than 12 months  143.96  76.39 

	 c.	 Capital risk management 

		  The Board policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain shareholder, creditor 
and market confidence and to sustain the future development need of the business. The capital 
structure of the Company is based on Management’s judgement of the appropriate balance of 
key elements in order to meet its strategic and day to day needs. The Company considers the 
amount of capital in proportion to risk and manage the capital structure in light of changes 
in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. There were no 
changes to the Company’s approach to capital management during the year. 

		  Total Equity includes Capital Reserve, Securities Premium, General Reserve, Retained 
Earnings and Share Capital. Total Debt includes current debt plus non-current debt.

 (In ` lakh) 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2025

As at  
March 31, 2024

Total debt  226.23  112.81 

Equity attributable to owners  7,356.69  7,452.80 

Debt equity ratio  0.03  0.02 

43.	 OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION

	 a.	 The Company have not given any loans or advances to its promoters, directors or KMPs in the 
nature of loans. 

	 b.	 The Company does not have any benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or 
pending against the Company for holding any benami property.

	 c.	 The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution  or 
other lender during the year.

	 d.	 The Company does not have any transactions or balances with companies struck off under 
Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or under Section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956 
during the year. 

	 e.	 The Company does not have any charges which are yet to be registered or satisfied  with ROC, 
Mumbai except in respect of  certain Vehicle loans  which are fully repaid and no amount is 
outstanding, the documentation  for satisfaction of the aforesaid charges is in process.”   

	 f.	 The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of Section 
2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

	 g.	 UTILISATION  OF BORROWED FUNDS AND SHARE PREMIUM

		  i.	 The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or 
entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the 
Intermediary shall:

			   a.	 directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (ultimate beneficiaries) or

			   b.	  provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate 
beneficiaries

		  ii.	 The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including 
foreign entities (funding party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise) that the Company shall:

			   a.	 directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (ultimate beneficiaries) 
or

			   b.	 provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

	 h.	 The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the 
financial year.

	 i.	 The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts 
that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under 
the Income Tax Act, 1961 such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the 
Income Tax Act, 1961.

	 j.	 The Company does not have any borrowings from banks or financial institutions and on the 
basis of security of current assets during the financial year

44. Subsidiaries
a. Name of the Company Country of 

incorporation
Principal Activities Proportion (%) of equity interest

As at  March 
31, 2025

As at March 
31, 2024

i. 	 PNC Wellness 
Limited

India Health fitness activities 100% 100%

ii. 	 PNC Digital 
Limited

India Sourcing content, setting 
up delivery systems for 
digital streaming using 
the internet as its primary 
delivery platform

99.78% 99.78%

b. Disclosure of Additional Information on the entities which are included in the 
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Name of the entity in 
the Group

Net Assets, i.e, total 
assets minus total 

liabilities

Share in profit or loss 
(before tax)

Share in other 
comprehensive income

Share in total 
comprehensive income

As % of 
consolidate

Amount 
(in ` lakh)

As % of 
consolidate

Amount  
(in ` lakh)

As % of 
consolidate

Amount 
(in ` lakh)

As % of 
consolidate

Amount (in 
` lakh)

Parent Company:

Pritish Nandy 
Communications 
Limited

 99.57  7,325.52  99.39 (137.90) 100 (0.84)  98.95 (95.10)

Subsidiaries Indian :

i.  �PNC Digital 
Limited - Owner's 
interest

 0.27  19.71 (0.48) 0.66 0  - (0.51)  0.49 

ii  �PNC Digital 
Limited - non 
controlling interest

0.00 0.11 0.00 0.00 0  - 0.00 0.00

iii. �PNC Wellness 
Limited

 0.16  11.46 1.08 (1.50) 0  - 1.56 (1.50)

Total  100.00  7,356.80  100.00 (138.74)  100.00 (0.84)  100.00 (96.11)

45.	 There are no subsequent events upto the date of issue of this financial statements.
46.	 Previous year figures have been regrouped/ recast/ rearranged wherever necessary in order to conform 

with the current year’s presentation.
47.	 Disclosures which are not given are either nil or not applicable
48	 The Company uses an accounting software for maintaining books of account which complies with 

audit trail requirements as specified under Rule 3(1) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and Rule 
11 of Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules, 2014.

49.	 New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments 
	 The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendment to the existing 

standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For 
the year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has notified Ind AS – 117 Insurance contracts and amendments 
to Ind AS 116 – Leases, relating to sale and leaseback transactions, applicable to the Company w.e.f. 
April 1, 2024 and the MCA has amended Ind AS 21, “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange 
Rates,” effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2025. The Company has 
reviewed the new pronouncements based on its evaluation and has determined that it does not have any 
significant impact in its financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached
For BD Jokhakar & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 104345W

Bhavik Jain Pallab Bhattacharya Raghu Palat
Partner Wholetime Director and CEO Director
Membership number 160166 DIN 00008277 DIN 00311994

Kishor Palkar Priyanka Shah
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

Mumbai, May 27, 2025 Mumbai, May 27, 2025
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during the year. standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For 

+. The Company does not have ay chasges which ae yet to be registered o sts wih ROC, he year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has notified End AS — 117 Insurance contracts and senders 
Mumba except i respect of certain Vehicle loans which ar Ally repaid and no amount 5 to Lid AS 116 ~ Leases, relating to sale and lesseback: transaction, applicable to the Company we £ 
outstanding, the documentation for satisfaction of the aforesaid charges is in process.” April 1, 2024 and the MCA has amended Ind AS 21, “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates” effective for anal reporting periods begining on or afer April 1, 2025. The Company has 

£ The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of Section reviewed the new pronouncements based on its evaluation and has determined that it does not have any 
2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on mumber of Layers) Rules, 2017. Sonieant impact nfs Sane statements. 

As per our report of even date attached 
For BD Jokhakar & Co. For and on behalf ofthe Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No: 1043451 

Bhavik Jain Pallb Bhtiacharya Raghu Pat 
Parte Whole Director ad CEO Director 
Membership number 160166 DIN 00008277 DIN 00311994 

Kishor Paar Priyanka Shah 
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 

Mumbai, May 27, 2025 Mumbai, May 27, 2025
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NOTICE
PRITISH NANDY COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED
THE 32ND ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2025

Notice is hereby given that the 32nd Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Members of PRITISH NANDY 
COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED (CIN L22120MH1993PLC074214) will be held on Thursday, September 25, 
2025 at 3 pm through Video Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM), in compliance 
with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and relevant circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) 
and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.	 ADOPTION OF THE AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TOGETHER WITH THE REPORTS 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS.

	 To receive, consider and adopt:

	 a.	 the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, 
together with the reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon; and

	 b.	 the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2025, together with the report of the Auditors thereon.

2.	 RE-APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTOR RETIRING BY ROTATION

	 To re-appoint Mrs Rina Pritish Nandy (DIN: 00055748), who retires by rotation in terms of Section 152 
of the Companies Act, 2013, and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment as Director and in 
this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

	  “RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013, Mrs Rina Pritish Nandy (DIN: 00055748), who retires by rotation at this 
meeting, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

3.	 APPOINTMENT OF SECRETARIAL AUDITOR FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 2025-26 TO 2029-30.

	 To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant Section 204 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“Act”) and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014 and Regulation 24A and other applicable provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (including any statutory 
modifications or amendments thereto for the time being in force), approval of the shareholders be and is 
hereby accorded to appoint CS Vinayak Deodhar (FCS No. 1880, COP No. 898) of VN Deodhar & Co., 
Practicing Company Secretaries, as Secretarial Auditor of the Company for a term of 5 (five) 
consecutive years commencing from F Y 2025-26 to F Y 2029-30 on such terms and conditions and  
fees, as may be mutually agreed between the Board of Directors of the Company and Secretarial 
Auditors, from time to time.”

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT approval be and is hereby accorded to the Board to avail or obtain 
from the CS Vinayak Deodhar, Practicing Company Secretary, for such other services or certificates or 
reports which the Secretarial Auditor, may be eligible to provide or issue under the applicable laws.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT anyone Director, the Chief Financial Officer, and/ or the Company 
Secretary of the Company, be and are hereby severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters, 
and things authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things and to sign and execute all such 
documents, forms, and returns as may be necessary proper, expedient or incidental for giving effect to 
this Resolution.”

4.	 APPROVAL TO THE EXCESS REMUNERATION PAID TO WHOLETIME DIRECTORS OF THE 
COMPANY

	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT ₹ 36.13 lakh being excess remuneration paid to Wholetime Directors in excess 
of the limits prescribed under schedule V read with Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 be and is 
hereby approved”.

	 By Order of the Board of Directors

	 Sd/-
	 Priyanka Shah
	 Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

Mumbai, August 7, 2025
Registered Office: 87/88 Mittal Chambers, Nariman Point, Mumbai 400021
Email companysecretary@pritishnandycom.com | Web www.pritishnandycom.com

Brief profile of Mrs Rina Pritish Nandy

Author, belonging to the promoter group, and Founder-Director of Pritish Nandy Communications Limited, 
Mrs Rina Pritish Nandy is and has been a Non-Executive Director on the Board of the Company.

	 By Order of the Board of Directors

	 Sd/-
	 Priyanka Shah
	 Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

Mumbai, August 7, 2025
Registered Office: 87/88 Mittal Chambers, Nariman Point, Mumbai 400021
Email companysecretary@pritishnandycom.com | Web www.pritishnandycom.com

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 
2013 AND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION AS REQUIRED UNDER THE SECURITIES AND 
EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) 
REGULATIONS, 2015 AND CIRCULARS ISSUED THEREUNDER:

Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), the following Explanatory Statement sets out 
all material facts relating to the business, to be transacted at the 32nd Annual General Meeting to be held on 
September 25, 2025, mentioned under Item Nos. 3 and 4 of the accompanying Notice dated August 7, 2025.

Item No. 3

Pursuant to the Regulation 24A and other applicable provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) read with 
provisions of Section 204 read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, if any (“Act”), the Audit 
Committee and the Board of Directors at their respective meetings held on August 7, 2025 have approved, 
appointment of CS Vinayak Deodhar (FCS No. 1880, COP No. 898) of VN Deodhar & Co., Practicing 
Company Secretaries, Peer Reviewed Company Secretary in Practice, as Secretarial Auditors of the Company 
for a term of 5 (Five) consecutive years, commencing F Y 2025-26 to F Y 2029-30, is subject to approval of 
the members.

CS Vinayak Deodhar (FCS No. 1880, COP No. 898) of VN Deodhar & Co., Practicing Company Secretary, 
has over three decades of experience in the field of secretarial practice including secretarial audit, corporate 
laws & taxation, securities law, corporate governance, and secretarial compliance. Over the years, Secretarial 
Auditor has provided services to various companies and clients from diverse industries. VN Deodhar & Co. 
is peer reviewed in terms of the guidelines issued by the ICSI.

Over past several years, VN Deodhar & Co. has demonstrated expertise and proficiency in handling secretarial 
audits of the Company till date.

VN Deodhar & Co., has consented to the said appointment and confirmed that the appointment, if made, 
would be within the limits specified by the Institute of Companies Secretaries of India and that they are not 
disqualified to be appointed as Secretarial Auditor in term of provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the 
Companies Secretaries Act, 1980 and Rules and Regulations made thereunder and the Listing Regulations 
read with relevant SEBI Circular.

The Remuneration to be paid to the Secretarial Auditor shall be as finalized by the Board of Directors or its 
Audit Committee every year plus applicable taxes and other out-of-pocket expenses in connection with the 
above.

The Audit Committee and the Board of Directors have approved and recommended the aforesaid proposal 
for approval of Members taking into account the Secretarial Auditor’s knowledge, expertise and industry 
experience, and the proposed fee after taking into consideration the time and efforts required to be put in 
by the Secretarial auditor, which will be in line with the industry standards. The payment for services in the 
nature of certifications and other professional work as allowed by applicable law will be in addition to the 
Secretarial audit fee and shall be determined by the Board (which term includes Audit Committee or the 
person authorized by the Board).

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives is concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise, in this resolution. The Board recommends the resolution at item No. 3 
of the accompanying Notice for acceptance by the members by passing the same as Ordinary Resolution.

Item No. 4

The Company has incurred loss during the year ended March 31, 2025. In view of the same and based on 
effective capital of the Company, managerial remuneration as prescribed under Schedule V read with Section 
197 of the Companies Act, 2013 is restricted to ` 84.00 lakh for the year. The Company has paid managerial 
remuneration of ` 120.13 lakh which is in excess of the limits prescribed. The total excess remuneration paid 
being ` 36. 13 lakh to Mr Pallab Bhattacharya and Ms Rangita Pritish Nandy is subject to approval of the 
members.

The Board considers that it would be in the interest of the Company if members approve the payment of 
remuneration made to the executive directors which is in excess of the limits prescribed under Schedule V 
read with Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Board recommends the resolution at item No. 4 of the 
accompanying Notice for acceptance by the members by passing the same as Special Resolution.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Sd/-

Priyanka Shah

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

Mumbai, August 7, 2025

Registered Office: 87/88 Mittal Chambers, Nariman Point, Mumbai 400021

Email companysecretary@pritishnandycom.com | Web www.pritishnandycom.com

NOTES:

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS:

1.	 Pursuant to the General Circular No. 09/2024 dated September 19, 2024, issued by the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs (MCA) and circular issued by SEBI vide circular no. SEBI/ HO/ CFD/ CFDPoD-2/ 
P/ CIR/ 2024/ 133 dated October 3, 2024 (“SEBI Circular”) and other applicable circulars and 
notifications issued (including any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof for the time being 
in force and as amended from time to time, companies are allowed to hold EGM/AGM through Video 
Conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM), without the physical presence of members 
at a common venue. In compliance with the said Circulars, EGM/AGM shall be conducted through VC 
/ OAVM.

2.	 Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, 
the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM. 
However, the Body Corporates are entitled to appoint authorised representatives to attend the AGM 
through VC/OAVM and participate there at and cast their votes through e-voting.
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(COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED (CINL2120MHHSS3PLCOT4214) ill beheldon Thursday, September 25, 2013 AND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION AS REQUIRED UNDER THE SECURITIES AND 
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all material cts relating tothe business, to be transacted at the 32 Annual General Meeting to be held on 
ORDINARY BUSINESS Septeaber 25, 2025, mentioned under tem Nos. 3 and 4 of the ccompanying Notice dated August 7, 2025 
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ofthe Companies Act, 2013, and beng eligible, offers herself for re appointment as Ditector and in ha over thre decades of experience a the field of secretarial practic including secretarial audit. corporate 
{his regard, to consider nd f thought i, o pass the following resolution a an Ordinary Resolution: laws d exation, securities Lv, corporate governance, and secretarial compli, Over the years, Secretarial 

Auditor hs provided sevice 0 various companies and clients from diverse industries. VN Deodbar & Co. “RESOLVED THAT in sccordance withthe provisions f Section 152 ad other aplicsle provisions 1 mse seach im rns of he sees sort by te 1091 
ofthe Companies Act, 2013, Mrs Rina Pritt Nandy (DIN: 00055748), who refrs by rotation st i i 
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By Order ofthe Board of Directors: 

sa 
Priyanka Stak sa 

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer f— 
Mums, August 7, 2025 Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 
Registered Offic: 7/88 Mitel Charabers, Nariman Pot, Murabai 400021 Mamba, Aug, 2025 
Email companysectetary@pritsuandycon om | Web vw com 

panysecretary Gp ¥ ! prihnandycom. ‘Registered Office: 87/88 Mittal Chambers, Nariman Point, Mumbai 400021 
‘Email ompanysecrtary@pitisundycorn comm | eb wpitishandycons com 

Brie rofl of Ms Rina Pris Nandy NOTES: 
Author, belonging tothe promote group, and Founder Director of Pris Nandy Communications Limited, GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS: 
Mrs Rina Prt Nandy i and has been s Non Executive Director ou the Bosrd of the Company. 1. Pursuant tothe General Circular No. 09/2024 dated September 19, 2024, issued by the Mistry of 

By Order of the Board of Directors Corporate Airs (MCA) and circular issued by SEB vide circular mo. SEBU HO/ CFD/ CFDPoD-2 
P/ CIR/ 2024/ 133 dated October 3, 2024 (“SEBI Circular”) and other applicable circulars and 
‘mofifications issued (including any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof for the time being 

sa in force and as amended rom time to tim, companies are allowed to hold EGM/AGM trough Video 
Priyanka Shah Conferencing (VC) or ote audio visual means (OAV, without the physical presence of members 

Company Secretary and Compliance Offices ata common venue. In compliance with the ssid Circulars, EGM/AGM shall be conducted through VC 
T0AM. 

‘Mumbai, August 7, 2025 
Regitared Ofice: £758 ital Chambers Naiman Post, Me 400031 2. Paants e ilNo. 147020 dt A308 102 dy te Mii of Cope AT 
‘Email companysecretary @pritishnandycom com | Web www pritishnandycom. com ty to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote members is not av for spanysectetary @pritshuandy 1 Web vn: pri ‘However, the Body Corporates are entitled to appoint authorised representatives to attend the AGM. 

{hough VC/OAVM and participate ther a and cst thei vote through e-voting.
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3.	 The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled 
time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The 
facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for 1000 members 
on first come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% 
or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the 
Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on 
account of first come first served basis.

4.	 Explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Act and Secretarial Standard-2 on General 
Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, stating all material facts and reasons 
for business as set out in the Item no. 3 is annexed hereto and forms a part of the Notice. The Board of 
Directors has considered and decided to include Item No. 3 as Special Businesses in the forthcoming 
AGM.

5.	 The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the 
purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

6.	 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended)  the Secretarial Standard 
on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the ICSI and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and the Circulars issued by the Ministry 
of Corporate Affairs from time to time the Company is providing facility of remote e-Voting to its 
Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has 
entered into an agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting 
through electronic means, as the authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using 
remote e-Voting system as well as e-voting on the date of the AGM will be provided by NSDL.

7.	 In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the 
Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.pritishnandycom.
com. The Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and 
National Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com respectively 
and the AGM Notice is also available on the website of NSDL (agency for providing the Remote 
e-Voting facility) i.e. www.evoting.nsdl.com.

8.	 AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular issued from time to time.

The remote e-voting period begins on Monday, September 22, 2025 at 09:00 A.M. and ends on Wednesday, 
September 24, 2025 at 05:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting 
thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the 
record date (cut-off date) i.e. September 18, 2025 may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of 
shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the 
cut-off date, being September 18, 2025.

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned 
below:
Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system
A) 	 Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities 

in demat mode

	 In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat 
account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update 
their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:
Type of shareholders  Login Method
Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode 
with NSDL.

1.	 For OTP based login you can click on https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp. You will have to enter your 8-digit DP ID,8-
digit Client Id, PAN No., Verification code and generate OTP. Enter the OTP received on registered email id/mobile number and click on login. After 
successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting 
service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining 
virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

2.	 Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. On the 
e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will prompt you to enter your 
existing User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added services. Click on “Access 
to e-Voting” under  e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you 
will be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the 
meeting.

3.	 If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or 
click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

4.	 Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer 
or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 
A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a 
Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting 
page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote 
during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

5.	 Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless voting 
experience.

	
Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode 
with CDSL

1. 	 Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach 
e-Voting page without any further authentication. The users to login Easi /Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on 
login icon & New System Myeasi Tab and then user your existing my easi username & password.

2.	 After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the 
information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting 
your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to access 
the system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly.

3.	 If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New System Myeasi 
Tab and then click on registration option.

4.	 Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on www.
cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After 
successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting option where the e-voting is in progress and also able to directly access the system of all 
e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual Shareholders (holding securities in demat 
mode) login through their depository participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. 
upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting 
website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  evoting@nsdl.com or call at 022 - 4886 7000

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with CDSL Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll 
free no. 1800-21-09911
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B) 	 Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode.

	 How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1.	 Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.
evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2.	 Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ section.

3.	 A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification 
Code as shown on the screen.

	 Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.
nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in 
credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

4.	 Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat 
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical

Your User ID is:

a)  �For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with NSDL.

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 
12****** then your user ID is IN300***12******.

b)  �For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with CDSL.

16 Digit Beneficiary ID

For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12************** 
then your user ID is 12**************

c)  �For Members holding shares in 
Physical Form.

EVNNumber followed by Folio Number registered with 
the company

For example if folio number is 001*** and EVNis 101456 
then user ID is 101456001***

5.	 Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:

	 a)	 If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and 
cast your vote.

	 b)	 If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial 
password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you 
need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change your password.

	 c)	 How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

		  (i)	 If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial 
password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from 
NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open 
the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL 
account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in 
physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.

		  (ii)	 If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for 
those shareholders whose email ids are not registered.

6.	 If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten your 
password:

	 a)	  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account 
with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

	 b)	  Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available 
on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

	 c)	 If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request 
at evoting@nsdl.com mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your 
name and your registered address etc.

	 d)	 Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the 
e-Voting system of NSDL.

7.	 After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.

8.	 Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

9.	 After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

	 Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system.

	 How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system?

1.	 After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVN in which you are 
holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status.

2.	 Select “EVN of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period and 
casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on “VC/
OAVM” link placed under “Join Meeting”.

3.	 Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

4.	 Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of 
shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

5.	 Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

6.	 You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the 
confirmation page.

7.	 Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1.	 Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned 
copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen 
signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail 
to vndeodhar@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.com. Institutional shareholders (i.e. 
other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / 
Authority Letter etc. by clicking on “Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter” displayed under 
“e-Voting” tab in their login.

2.	 It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to 
keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful 
attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User 
Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to 
reset the password.

3.	 In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and 
e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or 
call on.: 022 - 4886 7000 or send a request to Mr Pallavi Mhatre at evoting@nsdl.com

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring user id 
and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice:

1.	 In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy 
of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self- attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR 
(self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to companysecretary@pritishnandycom.com.

2.	 In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 
digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self- 
attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self- attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to 
companysecretary@pritishnandycom.com. If you are an Individual shareholder holding securities in 
demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method 
for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode.

3.	 Alternatively, shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.com for procuring user id and 
password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents.

4.	 In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat 
account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update 
their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS UNDER:-

1.	 The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for 
remote e-voting.

2.	 Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and 
have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred 
from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the AGM.

3.	 Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they 
will not be eligible to vote at the AGM.

4.	 The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for 
e-Voting on the day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS 
UNDER:

1.	 Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL 
e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL 
e-Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM” placed under “Join meeting” 
menu against company name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join Meeting 
menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member login where the EVNof 
Company will be displayed. Please note that the members who do not have the User ID and Password 
for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the 
remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush.

2.	 Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.

3.	 Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any 
disturbance during the meeting.

4.	 Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting 
via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. 
It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid 
glitches.

5.	 Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in 
advance mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at 
companysecretary@pritishnandycom.com. The same will be replied by the company suitably.

6.	 Registration of Speaker related point needs to be added by company.

INSTAMEET VC Instructions for shareholders

In terms of Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) General Circular No. 09/2024 dated 19.09.2024, the 
Companies can conduct their AGMs/ EGMs on or before 30 September 2025 by means of Video Conference 
(VC) or other audio-visual means (OAVM).
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with NSDL or CDS) opion availble on wh votingusd com. en against company name. You re requested lick on VC/OAVM ik placed under Jon Meeting 
©) Physical User Reset Password?” 1 you are holding shares py sical mode) aption aval mem. The lnk for VC/OAVM wil be availble in Shareholder Member login where the EVNoE 
total oom Company willbe displayed. Please not tht the members ho do not ave the Use ID and Password 

for Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may reece the same by following the 
© Ifyou ae still unable 0 get the pasword by aforesaid wo options, you can se a request remot Voting instructions mentioned in the otcet avoid last minute rush. 

a xoting@nsdl com mentioning your deat account umberfoio mums, your PAN, your ER ne on men 2. Members ae encouraged to oi the Meeting through Laptops or beter exprin 
re om Com ine et gn cn nt TT Mer il be rei son Caer de ent ih dps 0 

Pes tng disturbance during the meeting 
er Voting system of NSDL 4 Please note that Participants Cx from Mobile De Tablets or through L: oun . BN sonote ats Connecting fom Mobile Devices o Tablets trough Laptop connecting 

7. After entering your password, tc on Agree to “Teas and Conditions” by selecting othe check bo. via Mobile Hotspot may experince Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network 
5 Now, you wll ave to lick on “Login” bution, Its therefore recommended fo us Sable Wi-Fi or LAN Comnectinto mitigate any kind of aforesaid 
9. Afteryou click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. hitches. 

5. Shareholders who would Like to express thei views'have questions may send ther questions in 
Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and oi Geseal Meeting ou NSDL o Ving syste. advance mentioning thee name deat account mumberfolio mums, email id, mobile mumber at 
How to cast your vot electronically and joi General Meeting on NSDL & Voting system? companysecttary @prtinandycon com. The same ill be replied by th company suiaby, 

1 After successful login at Step 1, you willbe abl o se ll the companies “EVN in which you re 6. Registration of Speake related point needs o be added by company: 
holding hare and whose voting cycle and General Meeting i inactive tts. INSTAMEET VC Instructions for shareholders 

2. Select "EVN of company fo which you wish to cast your vote during the remote -Votng period and In tems of Ministry of Corporate Aflsirs (MCA) General Circular No. 092024 dated 19.09.1024, the 
cating your ote durin the General Meeting. For fining vital meeting, you need to click on “VC! Companies can conduct their AGMs/ EGMs oor before 0 September 025 by meas of Video Conference 
(OAVM" lnk laced under “Join Meeting” (VC) o ther andio-viual means AVM. 

3. Now you are ready for e Voting as the Voting page opens. 
4 Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option i. assent or dissent, verify modify the mumbe of 

hares for which you with o cast your vote and click on "Sob" and sso “Confirms” when prompted. 
5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successful” will be displayed. 
6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the 

contirmation page. 
7. Ou you confi your vot onthe resolution, you will ct be allowed to modify your vote.
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Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id correctly in their demat accounts to access InstaMeet facility.

Login method for shareholders to attend the General Meeting through InstaMeet:

a)	 Visit URL: https://instameet.in.mpms.mufg.com & click on “Login”.

b)	 Select the “Company” and ‘Event Date’ and register with your following details:

	 A.	 Demat Account No. or Folio No:

		  Shareholders holding shares in NSDL demat account shall provide 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID.

		  Shareholders holding shares in CDSL demat account shall provide 16 Digit Beneficiary ID.

		  Shareholders holding shares in physical form – shall provide Folio Number.

	 B.	 PAN:

		  Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN)

		  (Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Depository Participant (DP)/ Company shall use the sequence number provided to you, if applicable.

	 C.	 Mobile No: Enter your Mobile No.

	 D.	 Email ID: Enter your email Id as recorded with your DP/ Company.

c)	 Click “Go to Meeting”

	 You are now registered for InstaMeet, and your attendance is marked for the meeting.

	 Instructions for shareholders to Speak during the General Meeting through InstaMeet:

	 a)	 Shareholders who would like to speak during the meeting must register their request with the company.

	 b)	 Shareholders will get confirmation on first cum first basis depending upon the provision made by the company.

	 c)	 Shareholders will receive “speaking serial number” once they mark attendance for the meeting. Please remember speaking serial number and start your conversation with panelist by switching on video mode 
and audio of your device.

d)	 Other shareholder who has not registered as “Speaker Shareholder” may still ask questions to the panelist via active chat-board during the meeting.

	 *Shareholders are requested to speak only when moderator of the meeting/ management will announce the name and serial number for speaking.

	 Instructions for Shareholders to Vote during the General Meeting through InstaMeet:

	 Once the electronic voting is activated during the meeting, shareholders who have not exercised their vote through the remote e-voting can cast the vote as under:

	 a)	 On the Shareholders VC page, click on the link for e-Voting “Cast your vote”

	 b)	 Enter your 16-digit Demat Account No. / Folio No. and OTP (received on the registered mobile number/ registered email Id) received during registration for InstaMEET

	 c)	 Click on ‘Submit’.

	 d)	 After successful login, you will see “Resolution Description” and against the same the option “Favour/ Against” for voting.

	 e)	 Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option i.e. “Favour/Against” as desired. Enter the number of shares (which represents no. of votes) as on the cut-off date under ‘Favour/Against’.

	 f)	 After selecting the appropriate option i.e. Favour/Against as desired and you have decided to vote, click on “Save”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “Confirm”, 
else to change your vote, click on “Back” and accordingly modify your vote. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or change your vote subsequently.

Note:

Shareholders/ Members, who will be present in the General Meeting through InstaMeet facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be 
eligible to vote through e-Voting facility during the meeting.

Shareholders/ Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting prior to the General Meeting will be eligible to attend/ participate in the General Meeting through InstaMeet. However, they will not be eligible to vote 
again during the meeting.

Shareholders/ Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Tablets/ Laptops connected through broadband for better experience.

Shareholders/ Members are required to use Internet with a good speed (preferably 2 MBPS download stream) to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

Please note that Shareholders/ Members connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptops connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Visual loss due to fluctuation in their network.  It is therefore 
recommended to use stable Wi-FI or LAN connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

Helpdesk:

Shareholders facing any technical issue in login may contact INSTAMEET helpdesk by sending a request at instameet@in.mpms.mufg.com or contact on: - Tel: 022 – 4918 6000 / 4918 6175.

Team InstaMeet
MUFG Intime India Private Limited
Formerly Link Intime India Private Limited 
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